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Strategic report update

2014 Half year results highlights

Net interest income

£1,673m
Up 20% on the first half of 2013, largely 
due to lower cost of retail liabilities and 
increased lending in Commercial Banking.

Adjusted cost-to-income ratio

52%
(1)

Costs remained tightly controlled, 
absorbing on-going investment, with 
10% positive jaws between income 
and expenses growth rates excluding 
significant items.

Gross mortgage lending

£12.8bn
An increase of £4.9bn compared with 
the first half of 2013, with a resumption 
of positive net lending in the first half 
of 2014.

Profit before tax

£545m
Up 18% on the first half of 2013, with 
continued growth in net interest income, 
strong cost discipline and good credit quality.

CET 1 Capital ratio

 11.8%
Common Equity Tier 1 (‘CET 1’) capital 
ratio strengthened from 11.6% at 31 
December 2013, and after a £237m 
interim dividend approved in June 2014.

1I2I3 World customers

3 million
Up 25% in the first half of 2014, with 
almost one-in-four current account 
switchers joining Santander UK since the 
introduction of guaranteed current account 
switching in September 2013(2). 

Banking net interest margin

 1.80%
Up 34 basis points from 1.46% in 
the first half of 2013, driven by lower 
customer deposit and wholesale 
funding costs.

Loan-to-deposit ratio

 124%
Improved two percentage points from 
126% at 31 December 2013 reflecting 
strong growth in customer deposits, 
particularly current account balances.  

Commercial lending 

 10% growth
Growth of 10% over the past 12 months 
to £23.1bn, and continues to be subject 
to prudent risk management criteria.

(1)	 A number of significant items impacted the financial results for the first half of 2014; their aggregate impact was £(206)m pre-tax and £(162)m post-tax. See page 8. Adjusted cost-to-income ratio of 52% 
for the first half of 2014 excludes significant items. The cost-to-income ratio for the first half of 2014 including significant items was 56%.

(2)	 Payments Council, Bacs for the industry and internal Management Information as reported to Bacs. Full switchers under the guarantee scheme from 24 September 2013 to 30 June 2014.
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Our relationship with the Banco 
Santander group
The Banco Santander group operates 
a subsidiary model. This model involves 
autonomous units, such as Santander UK, 
operating in core markets, with each unit 
being responsible for its own liquidity, 
funding and capital management on an 
ongoing basis. The model is designed to 
minimise the risk to individual Banco 
Santander group units from problems arising 
elsewhere in the Banco Santander group.

The subsidiary model also gives Santander 
UK considerable financial flexibility, yet 
enables it to continue to take advantage 
of the significant synergies that come from 
being part of a global group: in brand, 
products, systems, platforms, development 
and management capability. In the model, 
the Banco Santander group facilitates the 
sharing of best practice and provides common 
technology, operations and support services 

to all of its subsidiaries via independent 
operating entities, themselves established by 
the Banco Santander group so as to be able 
to continue operating as viable standalone 
businesses. 

On 10 January 2014, Santander UK Group 
Holdings Limited became the holding 
company of Santander UK plc following its 
acquisition of Santander UK plc from Banco 
Santander S.A.. The acquisition was satisfied 
by the issue of shares in Santander UK Group 
Holdings Limited. The new holding company 
was put in place in light of UK regulatory 
developments relating to Banking Reform 
and Resolution and Recovery planning under 
which having a holding company above the 
operating banking companies is considered 
preferable.

 � For more information see the Directors’ 
Report on page 188 of the 2013 
Annual Report.

Our heritage

Strong foundations

(1)	 On 10 January 2014.

NO GUARANTEE 100% owned

Banco Santander, S.A.

NO GUARANTEE 100% owned

Santander UK Group Holdings Limited (1)

CROSS GUARANTEE 100% owned

Santander UK plc

All Santander UK senior debt, covered bond and Euro Commercial Paper

Abbey National Treasury Services plc

1944
The Abbey National Building 
Society formed with the 
merger of two long-standing 
building societies

2008
Bradford & Bingley savings 
business and branches acquired 
by Santander UK

2010
Abbey, Alliance & Leicester and 
Bradford & Bingley rebranded 
as Santander

Abbey National plc 
incorporated and listed on 
the London Stock Exchange

Banco Santander, S.A. 
acquisition of Abbey National 
plc approved by the courts

Alliance & Leicester plc 
transferred to Santander UK

1I2I3 World Current 
Account launched

1989 2004 2009 2012

January
Santander UK Group 
Holdings Limited became 
the holding company of 
Santander UK plc

2014

March
Launch of the 1I2I3 Mini 
Current Account for 
children and the Select 
debit card

April
Implementation of the 
Mortgage Market Review

June
Launch of the new public 
website, new trade portal, 
Santander Passport and 
£500m AT1 Issuance by 
Santander UK plc

July
Launch of the 1I2I3 
Student Current Account 
and announcement of a 
US$100m Fintech fund
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Santander UK plc (the ‘Company’) and its 
subsidiaries collectively (‘Santander UK’ or 
the ‘Santander UK group’) operate primarily 
in the UK, are regulated by the UK Prudential 
Regulation Authority (‘PRA’) and the Financial 
Conduct Authority (‘FCA’) and are part of 
the Banco Santander, S.A. group (the ‘Banco 
Santander group’). Santander UK is a major 
financial services provider in the UK, offering 
a wide range of personal financial products 
and services, and is a growing participant 
in the corporate and commercial banking 
market. Santander UK is well positioned 
to continue to grow, with a distribution 
capability across our extensive branch and 
regional Corporate Business Centre (‘CBC’) 
network, and through our intermediary, 
telephony and digital channels.

Santander UK today(1)

Established UK market player

Active customers Branches Corporate Business Centres Employees

 14m  987 52  20,345

Our businesses

Retail Banking
Offers a wide range of products 
and financial services to individuals 
and small businesses (with a 
turnover of less than £250,000 
per annum) through a network 
of branches and ATMs, as well as 
through telephony, e-commerce 
and intermediary channels.

Commercial Banking
Provides a wide range of products 
and financial services to customers 
through a network of regional 
Corporate Business Centres (‘CBCs’) 
and through telephony and 
e-commerce channels across small 
and medium enterprise (‘SME’), 
mid‑cap and large-cap corporates. 

Markets
Delivers risk management and 
other services to financial 
institutions, as well as to other 
Santander UK divisions. Its main 
product areas are fixed income and 
foreign exchange, equities, capital 
markets and institutional sales. 

Corporate Centre
Principally comprises Financial 
Management & Investor Relations 
(‘FMIR’), responsible for managing 
capital and funding, balance 
sheet composition and structure, 
and strategic liquidity risk for 
the Santander UK group. Also 
includes the non-core corporate 
and legacy portfolios.

Income 

£1,991m
Income 

£395m
Income 

£58m
Short-term funding 

£25.3bn 
Profit before tax

£1,053m
Profit before tax

£145m
Profit before tax

£1m
Total wholesale funding 

£67.4bn
Residential mortgages 

£148.7bn
Customer loans

£23.1bn
Total assets 

£17.3bn
Total liquid assets 

£72.2bn
Loyal customers 

3m
Customers 

71,650

5

83

12

Customer loan balances
(%)

Commercial Banking

Retail Banking

Corporate Centre

(1)	 Data at 30 June 2014 and for the six months ended 30 June 2014.
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Our strategy and 
business model

Our purpose is to help people and businesses prosper throughout 
the United Kingdom.

Our aim is to be the best bank for our people, our customers, our shareholders 
and our communities...

Simple, Personal and Fair: the Santander Way

We want everything we do to be simple, 
personal and fair. This embodies what our 
stakeholders want from their bank and 

define how we work together and how 
we treat our customers, our shareholders 
and our communities.

By making everything we do simple, 
personal and fair, we will achieve our aim 
to become the best bank in the UK.

Our three strategic priorities are driving our transformation into a customer-focused, 
diversified retail and commercial bank...

Loyal and satisfied  
retail customers 

To deepen our customers’ loyalty by  
satisfying their changing needs

‘Bank of Choice’ 
for UK companies

To grow our Commercial Banking business  
and expand the range of products and  

services we offer to our corporate customers 
by understanding their needs

Consistent profitability 
and a strong balance sheet 

To provide our shareholders with a reliable 
return on their investment

1 2 3

People

Shareholders

CustomersCommunities

Best bank for  
our customers

We build long-lasting relationships 
with our retail customers by offering 
clear products with ongoing value. 

We build long-term partnerships with 
our corporate customers by 
understanding their needs, 
with better products and  

tailored services

Best bank for  
our people

We recruit, retain and reward the 
most talented and committed people 

so we can provide the best service 
to our customers

Best bank for  
our communities

We support communities around 
the UK in order to fulfil our 
responsibilities to society 

and deepen our links with those 
whom we serve

Best bank for our 
shareholders

We maintain a conservative capital, 
funding and liquidity profile, 

underpinned by a prudent approach 
to risk, in order to generate 

consistent returns for 
our shareholders through 

the economic cycle
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Performance indicator Actual performance Target for 2015

2012 2013
30 June

2014

Loyal customers
Our loyal customer base is growing, supported by the continued success 
of the 1I2I3 Current Account.

2.2
million

2.7 
million

3.0 
million

4 million

1I2I3 World customers
1I2I3 World has 3.0 million current account and credit card customers, 
more than 1 million higher than a year ago, and with a growing 
transactional primary customer base.

1.3 
million

2.4 
million

3.0 
million

4 million

Customer satisfaction (Financial Research Survey (‘FRS’))(1)

FRS reported that customer satisfaction continued to improve in the last 
year, with the gap between Santander UK and the average of our top 
three peers reducing to 2 percentage points.

55% 57.3% 58.4% Top 3
(Average of top 3 peers)(60%) (61.1%) (60.4%)

Commercial Banking percentage of customer loans
Commercial Banking customer loans increased by £1.0bn in the first half of 
2014 (and by £2.1bn over the last year) to £23.1bn, with growth in lending 
to large corporates and SMEs. We will not, however, compromise on our 
prudent risk management and returns objectives to achieve our 2015 mix 
aspiration for the Commercial Banking business. Our 20% target will not 
be achieved by the end of 2015, but remains a medium-term objective.

10% 12% 12% 20%

Return on tangible equity (‘RoTE’) 
Adjusted RoTE(3) improved to 11.7% in the first half of 2014. RoTE 
improved to 10.0% in the same period.

9.1%(2) 8.6%(2) 11.7%(3) 13%-15%

Cost-to-income ratio
Adjusted cost-to-income ratio for the first half of 2014 was 52%(4). 
Costs remained tightly controlled, absorbing ongoing investment, with 
10% positive jaws between income and expense growth rates excluding 
significant items. Cost-to-income ratio for the first half of 2014 was 56%, 
and for the first half of 2013 was 57%.

53% 54% 52%(4) <50%

Common Equity Tier 1 (‘CET 1’) capital ratio 
Capital was strengthened further, after declaring an interim dividend 
of £237m in the first half of 2014.

11.1% 11.6% 11.8% >10.5%

Loan-to-deposit ratio
The loan-to-deposit ratio improved 2 percentage points to 124%, 
reflecting growth in customer deposits, particularly current account 
balances, and we expect the ratio to reduce further over time. 
Consequently, we revised our 2015 target to <125% from <130%.

129% 126% 124% <125%

Non-performing loan (‘NPL’) ratio
The NPL ratio of 1.96% continued to improve, with retail and corporate 
loans performing in line with expectations.

2.16% 2.04% 1.96% ratio 
maintained

Dividend payout ratio
In the first half of 2014, we approved an interim dividend of £237m. 
All dividends are paid subject to the approval of the regulator.

50% 50% 50%(5) 50%

Key performance indicators (‘KPIs’) help measure our progress against 
our strategic priorities and represent the set of measures that 
management reviews and tracks on a regular basis. In the first half of 
2014, business performance improved further and we remain focused 
on delivering almost all of our key commitments for the end of 2015.

Key performance 
indicators

(1)	 The FRS is a monthly personal finance survey of around 5,000 consumers prepared by the independent market research agency, GfK NOP. The ‘Overall Satisfaction’ score refers to the proportion of extremely and very satisfied customers 
across mortgages, savings, main current accounts, home insurance, UPLs and credit cards, based on a weighting of those products calculated to reflect the average product distribution across Santander UK and competitor brands. Data 
shown is for the 12 months ended 30 June 2014, 12 months ended 31 December 2013 and 12 months ended 30 June 2013. The competitor set in this analysis is Barclays, Halifax, HSBC, Lloyds Bank (including Lloyds TSB) and NatWest. 
Previously this data was reported on a rolling three-month basis.

(2)	 Adjusted to reflect the retrospective adoption of IFRIC 21. (2011: 9.5%). See Note 1 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements.
(3)	 Adjusted RoTE for the first half of 2014 is annualised and adjusted for the effect of the UK Bank Levy and to exclude significant items (see page 8).
(4)	 Adjusted cost-to-income ratio for the first half of 2014 of 52% excludes significant items (see page 8).
(5)	 Dividend payout ratio is calculated as dividend paid and approved as a percentage of earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders (profit after tax less payment of dividend on preference shares and adjusted for the prior year restatement 

relating to FSCS).

Definitions of the KPIs and explanations of why the chosen indicators are important to management are set out on page 6 of the 2013 Annual 
Report. The financial results for the first half of 2014 included a number of pre-tax significant items in Corporate Centre, as outlined in the 
Chief Financial Officer’s Review. In the table below, RoTE and the cost-to-income ratio have been adjusted to exclude the impact of these items.
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Our aim is to become the best bank in the UK, for our people, 
our customers, our shareholders and the communities in which 
we operate, ensuring that everything we do is Simple, Personal and 
Fair. Our performance, with results once again ahead of our plans, 
reflects the strategic transformation we initiated in 2011.

In the first half of 2014, we continued 
to support our customers against the 
backdrop of a UK economy that is showing 
an increasing positive momentum across 
all regions, while we continue to make 
steady progress:

Our strategic priorities 

1. Loyal and satisfied retail customers 
1I2I3 World, which offers value and rewards 
customers’ loyalty, has continued to drive the 
success of our retail banking proposition. The 
number of 1I2I3 World customers increased by 
600,000 in the first half of 2014 to 3.0 million. 
Since the introduction of guaranteed current 
account switching in September 2013, almost 
one-in-four of the customers who have 
moved banks have joined Santander UK(1).

Current account balances have grown by 
around £1bn per month on average since 
2012. Our share of related savings balances 
has also grown, with total deposits held by 
our primary banking customers up 19% to 
£62.4bn in the first half of 2014, and now 
accounting for 49% of total retail liabilities.

During the first half of 2014, we helped 
19,300 first-time buyers (£2.6bn gross 
lending) and 3,100 Help to Buy customers 
(£450m) purchase a home. Our total gross 
mortgage lending was £12.8bn, with a 
resumption of positive net lending. Our 
average loan-to-value on new mortgages was 
65% with an average loan to income multiple 
of 3.1. We also offer our 1I2I3 current account 
customers exclusive mortgage rates and, as a 
result, since the beginning of the year more 
than 22% of mortgages sold in our branches 
have been to 1I2I3 customers.

Our performance reflects improvements we 
have made to the customer experience. In July 
2014, the FRS reported that the gap between 
our satisfaction score and that of our top 3 
peers had narrowed to two percentage points 
from a gap of nine points at the end 2011. 
The experience of 1|2|3 World customers 
is now consistently among the highest in 
the industry. 

We are building on our successful approach 
by developing more targeted products and 
services for our key customer segments, 
including our new segment for more affluent 
customers, Select, to which we have now 
introduced 540,000 customers. In the first 
half of 2014, we have also launched a 1I2I3 
Mini, a new current account for children, 
and a 1I2I3 Student account.

By the end of 2014, our programme of 
refurbishment will have covered 40% of our 
branches since it began, and we will have 
invested further to provide better products 
and improve customer service, with a strong 
emphasis on technology and digital capability. 
Our digital service is well advanced with 
about 25% of our sales now coming from 
digital channels, and we have already made 
a number of improvements, including a new 
public website unveiled in June and 
improvements to our secure site. 

Lastly, in order to support our focus on digital 
innovation, we have announced a new 
US$100m Santander Fintech Fund, based 
in London, to invest in financial technology 
start-ups in the UK and elsewhere.

2. ‘Bank of Choice’ for UK companies 
Our Commercial Banking proposition is built 
on four pillars: a business model, based on 
‘proximity’; an IT platform, offering new 
products and services; a segmented risk 
approach; and our Breakthrough programme, 
to provide funding for fast growth SMEs.

Commercial Banking lending has grown by 
10% over the past year. During the first half 
of 2014, we extended £3.9bn of new facilities 
to UK corporates and SMEs, with loan 
balances increasing to £23.1bn.

We continued to invest in our local presence 
and now have 52 Corporate Business Centres 
and 677 relationship managers.

Customer satisfaction with our SME banking 
continues to improve and now matches that 
of our top 3 competitors(2).

Chief Executive 
Officer’s review

Ana Botín 
Chief Executive Officer

(1) 	 Payments Council, Bacs for the industry and internal Management Information as reported to Bacs. Full switchers under the guarantee scheme from 
24 September 2013 to 30 June 2014.

(2)	 The Charterhouse UK Business Banking Survey, published May 2014.

Loyal customers
(million)

2012 2013 Jun 2014

2.2

2.7
3.0
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We are investing further in our Commercial 
Banking business by building on the expertise 
and presence of the wider Banco Santander 
group. In the first half of 2014, we launched 
a new corporate internet banking capability 
(‘Connect’), a new trade portal, the Santander 
Passport, and a range of other international 
financial services. 

Our pioneering Breakthrough programme, 
aimed at helping the UK’s fast growth 
companies, has now supported 25 SMEs 
with £58m of growth-related finance and 
has created 1,082 new jobs.

The success of Breakthrough and our support 
for UK businesses was highlighted at the 
recent International Festival for Business in 
Liverpool, which Santander UK co-sponsored, 
at which we launched a new incubator for 
SMEs in the heart of the city.

3. Consistent profitability and a strong 
balance sheet 
Our results in the first half of 2014 were once 
again ahead of expectations. Our profit 
before tax grew by 18%, rising to £545m. 

Our strong capital position continued to 
strengthen with a CET 1 capital ratio of 
11.8% at 30 June 2014, after approving 
an interim dividend of £237m.

We remain confident of achieving almost 
all our key performance objectives for 2015. 
For a more detailed update on our financial 
performance, please refer to the Chief 
Financial Officer’s review on pages 8 to 10.

Operating environment 
During the first half of 2014, the UK 
economic environment continued to improve. 
Demand for loans increased steadily and 
we saw growth in both Retail Banking and 
Commercial Banking lending. Following a 
managed reduction in selected higher risk 
segments of our mortgage book in 2012 and 
2013, we expect to grow our portfolio this 
year broadly in line with the market. At the 
same time, we will continue to increase our 
corporate lending in contrast to the wider fall 
in the availability of credit to UK SMEs and 
corporates. 

Looking ahead 
Once again, our results show that we have 
the right strategy to deliver consistent and 
sustainable growth. As the UK economy 
strengthens we will continue to transform 
Santander UK, improving still further our 
technology, digital offering, products and 
customer service.

Competition in UK banking is strengthening. 
Customers are becoming more active and 
competitors are stabilising their businesses 
and focusing more on the UK. We are 
confident that our innovative approach and 
our continued investment in products and 
services will bring us further success.

I would like to thank the Board for the 
support they have given to the transformation 
of the business. The forthcoming arrival of 
Nathan Bostock will add further to the depth 
of experience of the Board. Finally, a very 
special thank you to everyone at Santander 
UK for their hard work. Our continued success 
depends on the energy and commitment of 
our team – and these results show that we 
have what it takes to achieve our aim of 
building the best bank, a bank that is Simple, 
Personal and Fair.

Ana Botín
Chief Executive Officer
13 August 2014

CET 1 capital ratio
(%)

2013 Jun 2014

11.811.6

2012

11.1

Commercial Banking customer loans
(£bn)

2013 Jun 2014

23.122.1

2012

19.6
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Overview 
In the first half of 2014, we maintained our 
track record of consistent profitability and 
a strong balance sheet.

RoTE improved to 10.0%, supported by 
increased net interest income, and banking 
NIM rose strongly to 1.80% (H1’13: 1.46%), 
a consequence of lower deposit and wholesale 
funding costs. Costs remained tightly 
controlled and absorbing investment spend, 
with an adjusted cost-to-income ratio of 52% 
(2013: 54%) and a 10 percentage point positive 
jaws between income and expenses growth 
rates excluding significant items.

Credit quality remains good across all portfolios 
and in the mortgage book in particular where 
NPLs fell to 1.79%.

The CET 1 capital ratio continued to strengthen 
to 11.8% at 30 June 2014 (31 December 2013: 
11.6%) after approving a £237m interim 
dividend. The dividend was in line with our 
policy to pay 50% of attributable earnings 
and was approved by the UK regulator.

Income statement highlights(A) 

Profit before tax from continuing operations 
increased by 18% to £545m in the first half 
of 2014, with continued growth in net 
interest income, strong cost discipline and 
good credit quality. A number of significant 
items impacted the financial results for the 
period; their aggregate impact was £(206)m 
pre-tax and £(162)m post-tax, as follows:

Significant items
–– A net gain of £218m arose in administrative 
expenses as a result of defined benefit 
pension scheme changes that limit future 
entitlements and provide for the longer-term 
sustainability of our staff pension 
arrangements.

–– Software write-offs of £206m were 
charged in depreciation, amortisation and 
impairment, and investment costs of £98m 
were charged in administrative expenses. 
Following implementation of our new digital 
platform and completion of our product 
simplification programme, we made 
write-offs for decommissioning redundant 
systems, and charged investment costs for 
technology and digital capability build out.

–– Provisions for other liabilities and charges 
were impacted by £120m. These comprised 
a £50m provision for the costs of our 
ongoing branch de-duplication 
programme. There was also £70m, 
including related costs, as provisions for 
conduct remediation. Of this, £65m related 
to payment protection insurance (‘PPI’), 
following a review of recent claims activity 
which indicates that claims are now 
expected to continue for longer than 
originally anticipated. There was a net 
£5m charge related to other retail products.

Net interest income for the six months ended 
30 June 2014 was 20% higher at £1,673m 
(H1’13: £1,391m). This was largely due to the 
lower cost of retail liabilities following the 
maturity of several tranches of higher cost 
eSaver products in 2013, and the reduced 
cost of new ISA deposits originated in the first 
half of 2014, as well as increased lending in 
Commercial Banking. Reduced mortgage 
stock margins partly offset these effects.

Non-interest income was 9% lower at £519m 
(H1’13: £570m), reflecting a significantly 
reduced credit arising from the debit valuation 
adjustments on derivatives written by 
Santander UK, and lower banking fees 
in Retail Banking.

Costs remained tightly controlled to 
accommodate continued investment in the 
transformation of the business. Administrative 
costs were 12% lower at £876m (H1’13: 
£992m), mainly due to the pensions gain 
described above. 

In the first six months of 2014 we delivered profit before tax from 
continuing operations of £545m, an increase of 18% and profit after 
tax of £438m.

We continue to deliver improved returns, strong capital and leverage 
with a better quality, lower cost funding mix, which will provide a 
solid backdrop for our future growth.

Chief Financial 
Officer’s review

Stephen Jones 
Chief Financial Officer

Income statement highlights

Six months ended 30 June 30 June 2014
£m

30 June 2013(1) 
£m

Profit before tax from continuing operations(3) 545 461
Profit after tax from continuing operations(3) 438 371
Banking net interest margin (‘NIM’)(2) 1.80% 1.46%

(1)	 Adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21. See Note 1 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 
(2) 	Banking NIM is calculated as annualised net interest income divided by average customer assets.
(3) 	In accordance with IFRS, regulatory costs relating to the FSCS of £100m were recognised in the first half of 2014 (restated first half of 2013: £88m). 

Costs relating to the UK Bank Levy are recognised in the second half of the year (second half of 2013: £59m).

(A)

Return on tangible equity (’RoTE’)
(%)

2012 2013 Jun 2014

9.1 8.6
10.0
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Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 
increased significantly to £347m (H1’13: 
£121m), due to the software write-offs 
described above. 

Impairment losses on loans and advances 
were 27% lower at £172m (H1’13: £235m). 
Credit quality in the Retail and Commercial 
Banking loan books continued to be good, 
supported by the improving economic 
environment. 

Provisions for other liabilities and charges 
were 66% higher at £252m (H1’13: £152m), 
principally due to the charges for branches 
and conduct described above, partially offset 
by a reduced provision for restructuring. For 
more information on conduct remediation, 
including PPI, see Note 25 to the Condensed 
Consolidated Interim Financial Statements on 
page 103. 

The taxation charge was up 19% largely due 
to higher profits. Our effective tax rate was 
stable at 20% (H1’13: 20%).

Customer balances(B)

Customer loans increased £1.3bn in the first 
half of 2014 to £188.4bn as we remained 
focused on supporting households and 
businesses while maintaining our prudent risk 
management objectives. 

In Retail Banking, mortgage balances 
increased to £148.7bn following a resumption 
of positive net lending in the first half of the 
year. Standard Variable Rate (‘SVR’) mortgage 
loan balances fell £4.2bn to £48.1bn, 
although we have been successful in the 
targeted retention of SVR customers on new 
offers. Commercial Banking loans increased 
with growth in both SMEs and mid corporate 
lending, and we made further progress in 
reducing balances in the non-core corporate 
and legacy portfolios with balances down 
£0.7bn in the past six months. 

Customer deposits increased £4.3bn in the 
first half of 2014 to £150.7bn, as we focused 
on originating and retaining balances held by 
more loyal Retail Banking customers. Included 
in this, current account balances increased 
£7.2bn in the first half of 2014, partially offset 
by lower savings deposit balances as we 
focused on reducing more price sensitive 
short-term retail deposits. The loan-to-deposit 
ratio of 124% was two percentage points 
lower (31 December 2013: 126%), reflecting 
the growth in customer deposits.

Credit quality(C)

The overall credit quality of our loan portfolios 
remained good, with the total NPL ratio 
improving to 1.96% at 30 June 2014 
(31 December 2013: 2.04%).

The Retail Banking NPL ratio fell to 1.77% 
(31 December 2013: 1.89%), with an 
improvement across both the secured and 
unsecured lending portfolios.

Credit quality in Commercial Banking remains 
strong as we continue to follow our prudent 
lending criteria, a policy we will adhere to as 
we deliver on our business plan and develop 
our Commercial Banking business. 

The Commercial Banking NPL ratio increased 
to 3.15% (31 December 2013: 3.02%), largely 
due to a single long-standing loan of £89m 
which moved to non-performance. A 
successful restructuring of this loan is 
anticipated and a conservative provision 
is held against it. 

Credit quality

	 30 June 
2014

%

31 December 
2013

%

Retail Banking NPL ratio 1.77 1.89
– of which mortgage NPL ratio(1) 1.79 1.88
Commercial Banking NPL ratio(1) 3.15 3.02
Corporate Centre NPL ratio(1) 2.10 2.36
Total NPL ratio(1) 1.96 2.04

(1)	 NPL balance as a percentage of the asset balance at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013.

(C)

Customer balances

	 30 June 
2014
£bn

31 December 
2013
£bn

Total customer loans 188.4 187.1
Total customer deposits 150.7 146.4
Loan-to-deposit ratio(1) 124% 126%

(1)	 Calculated as loans and advances to customers (excluding reverse repos) divided by deposits by customers (excluding repos).

(B)

Mortgage Non-performing loan ratio
(%)

2013 Jun 2014

1.791.88

2012

1.74

Profit before tax
(£m)

2012 2013

545

1,152

695

1,109

461

Jun 2014
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Liquidity and funding
Our funding strategy is to develop and 
maintain a diversified funding base, which 
allows us access to a variety of funding 
sources. In the first half of 2014, we raised 
medium-term funding of £6.7bn (sterling 
equivalent), largely through unsecured 
issuances. In the second quarter of 2014, we 
also drew down a further £500m of Treasury 
Bills under the Bank of England and HM 
Treasury ‘Funding for Lending’ scheme.

Total liquid assets fell slightly in the period to 
£72.2bn (31 December 2013: £73.0bn) and 
PRA-eligible liquid assets increased by £2.7bn 
to £32.2bn (31 December 2013: £29.5bn). 
Both total and PRA-eligible liquid assets 
significantly exceeded short-term wholesale 
funding requirements. At 30 June 2014, 
PRA-eligible liquid assets amounted to 127% 
(31 December 2013: 139%) of wholesale 
funding with a residual maturity of less than 
one year. The Liquidity Coverage Ratio (‘LCR’) 
was 107% (31 December 2013: 103%). 

Our level of encumbrance decreased in the first 
half of 2014 as planned, reflecting both the 
overall reduction in wholesale funding and 
the desire to better balance new wholesale 
funding issuance between secured and 
unsecured markets where possible.

Capital and leverage(D)

Our CET 1 capital ratio increased to 11.8% 
at 30 June 2014 (31 December 2013: 11.6%). 
On 24 June 2014, Santander UK plc issued 
a £500m Additional Tier 1 (‘AT1’) security to 
its immediate parent Santander UK Group 
Holdings Ltd which, in turn, issued a similar 
security to Banco Santander, S.A.

We expect that the strength of our CET 1 
capital ratio, our ability to generate capital 
organically and the rebalancing of our 
business mix will enable us to meet our 
targeted capital ratios even once the capital 
requirements of CRD IV and the PRA are 
phased in. 

Our end-point Tier 1 leverage ratio as defined 
by the PRA was 3.6%. Retained profits, and 
further AT1 issuance if required, are expected 
to result in a continued improvement in our 
leverage ratio.

Risk weighted assets (‘RWAs’) increased 
to £79.9bn (31 December 2013: £77.7bn), 
reflecting the growth of customer lending. 

Outlook
We expect the developments in the business 
and investment made to date to help 
maintain a strong business performance. 
A further reduction in the overall cost of 
deposits is expected to compensate for any 
further asset margin declines. Our tight 
control of costs will continue, while we invest 
further in the transformation of our business. 

Over the coming months, we anticipate 
greater clarity in respect of capital levels, 
leverage and the detailed rules necessary 
to meet the requirements of the Financial 
Services (Banking Reform) Act 2013 that will 
enable us to better plan the required structure 
of the business. However, considerable 
uncertainty will still remain and we cannot 
therefore be certain of the impact on our 
business model that the banking reform 
agenda will require.

The increased positive momentum of the UK 
economy should also support our business 
in 2014 and we believe that our performance 
over time should continue to demonstrate 
the consistency and strength of Santander UK.

Stephen Jones
Chief Financial Officer
13 August 2014

Chief Financial Officer’s review 
continued

Capital and leverage– CRD IV

	 30 June 
2014
£bn

31 December 
2013
£bn

CET 1 capital 9.4 9.0
CET 1 capital ratio 11.8% 11.6%
Risk Weighted Assets (‘RWAs’) 79.9 77.7(1)

End-point Tier 1 PRA leverage ratio(2) 3.6% 3.3%

(1)	 Adjusted for consistency to reflect the CRD IV rules as if they had applied on 31 December 2013 as described in ‘Risk-weighted assets’ in the Balance Sheet 
Review on page 32.

(2) 	The leverage ratio defined by the PRA uses an exposure measure consistent with the Basel Committee’s January 2014 Leverage Ratio Framework.

(D)
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As a significant financial services provider, managing risk is at the 
core of Santander UK’s day-to-day activities. The understanding and 
control of risk is critical for the effective management of the business. 

This Summary Risk Report describes our 
approach to risk management and how 
we manage and control risk through our 
Risk Framework, which supports the 
implementation of Santander UK’s strategic 
business objectives and business plan via 
the risk culture statement and our overriding 
principles. It also highlights our top and 
emerging risks.

Risk management
In managing risk, Santander UK aims to:
–– Maintain a predictable medium-low risk 
profile in our business;

–– Employ effective and advanced risk 
management techniques; and

–– Deliver robust financial performance, 
and ultimately build sustainable value 
for all our stakeholders.

Risk framework
Santander UK manages and controls risk 
through its Risk Framework, which:
–– Defines risk, enterprise-wide risk and key 
risk types;

–– Sets out the required risk culture, the 
overriding principles and minimum 
standards;

–– Summarises key roles and responsibilities 
and how Santander UK is organised for 
risk;

–– Defines the terms of reference for risk 
committees and how and where decisions 
are made, reviewed and challenged; and

–– Lists and explains the key internal risk 
regulation documents.

The Risk Framework supports the 
implementation of Santander UK’s strategic 
business objectives and business plan via the 
risk culture statement, guiding overriding 
principles and minimum standards to manage 
and control risks, and thus reduces the 
uncertainty around Santander UK meeting 
its objectives. 

Separate risk frameworks are in place for each 
key risk type and core risk activities such as 
those relating to risk appetite, stress testing 
and policy. These specific risk frameworks 
establish the principles, standards, rules 
and governance requirements for the 
management and control of each risk type. 
In support of these frameworks, each specific 
risk type has its own suite of policies and 
limits. These set out the rules and risk limits 
for the management of risk at a more 
granular level.  

Allocation of risk
As Santander UK’s business is focused on 
retail and commercial lending, its largest 
source of risk is credit risk. This is illustrated in 
the chart opposite, which sets out the 
allocation of risk across Santander UK based 
on the economic capital requirement at 30 
June 2014 and 31 December 2013 by key risk 
type. This allocation is limited to risks for 
which capital is considered a mitigant, and 
does not make allowance for the effects of 
diversification across risks or assets.  

During the first half of 2014, the allocation of 
risk remained broadly stable, with only minor 
movements evident in line with the evolution 
of our balance sheet. 

Summary risk report

Allocation of risk
(%)

2012 2013 Jun 2014

16
11
1

72

15

15
1

69

15

15
1

69

Operational risk
and others

Traded market risk

Credit risk

Balance sheet 
management risk
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All of our activities involve, to varying degrees, identification, 
assessment, management and reporting of risk or combinations of 
risks. During the first half of 2014, senior management focused on 
certain top and emerging risks and their causes. These are described in 
the following section, including how they link to our strategic business 
priorities which are described in more detail on page 4, as well as 
the change in importance for each of them in the first half of 2014.

Summary risk report continued

Top risks

Risk description Strategic priorities Risk features and impact Developments in the first half of 2014 2014 changes

Capital
Capital risk is the risk that Santander UK does 
not have an adequate amount, or quality, 
of capital to meet its internal business 
objectives, market expectations and 
regulatory requirements. 3

Capital risk has the potential to disrupt our business model and stop the 
normal functions of Santander UK. It could also cause Santander UK to fail 
to meet the capital requirements of regulators, who would then have powers 
to constrain disbursements, such as the payment of dividends, or to resolve 
Santander UK. Capital risk in Santander UK is driven primarily by credit risk 
and the effects of regulatory change as well as management’s ability to raise 
capital to meet demand over the economic cycle.

  See ‘Capital risk’ on page 76. Management’s approach to capital risk is 
described in more detail on page 144 of the 2013 Annual Report.

During the first half of 2014, regulatory developments continued to have the potential to impact Santander UK’s capital plans 
materially and were mitigated through close monitoring, scenario analysis and capital issuance. During the second quarter of 2014, 
Santander UK participated in the Bank of England’s concurrent stress testing exercise, the results of which were presented to the 
PRA. Our CET 1 capital ratio increased to 11.8% at 30 June 2014 (2013: 11.6%). On 24 June 2014, Santander UK plc issued a £500m 
Additional Tier 1 (‘AT1’) security to its immediate parent Santander UK Group Holdings Ltd who, in turn, issued a similar security 
to Banco Santander, S.A.. We expect that the strength of our CET 1 capital ratio, our ability to generate capital organically and the 
rebalancing of our business mix will enable us to meet our targeted capital ratios even once the capital requirements of CRD IV 
and the PRA are phased in. 

Our end-point Tier 1 leverage ratio as defined by the PRA was 3.6%. Retained profits, and further AT1 issuance if required, are 
expected to result in a continued improvement in our leverage ratio. RWAs increased to £79.9bn (2013: £77.7bn), reflecting the 
growth of higher risk-weighted corporate lending. 

Conduct
Conduct risk is the risk that the business 
and operational decisions we take and the 
behaviours displayed lead to poor outcomes 
for our customers.

1

2

3

Conduct risk is a key risk to Santander UK in view of the evolving regulatory 
environment and to enable us to meet our aim to be the best bank for our 
customers.  Specific conduct risks to which we are exposed include: products 
and services not meeting customer needs; failing to deal with complaints 
effectively; and the risk that customers are sold unsuitable products or not 
provided adequate information to make informed decisions. 

  See ‘Conduct risk’ on page 77. Management’s approach to conduct risk is 
described in more detail on page 146 of the 2013 Annual Report. 

Building on the enhanced Conduct Risk Framework developed in 2013, a programme of work is planned to continue throughout 2014 
to further embed effective management of conduct risk throughout the business, including a comprehensive cultural change project. 

In the second quarter of 2014, a £70m provision for conduct remediation, including related costs, was made. This included £65m 
relating to PPI and a net £5m for claims in respect of other retail products. During the first half of 2014, the volume of PPI complaints 
decreased at a slower rate than in previous periods. A review of recent claims activity indicated that claims are now expected to 
continue for longer than originally anticipated. As a result, the provision was increased. During the first half of 2014, the high 
proportion of invalid complaints continued. Monthly redress costs, including related costs, decreased to an average of £10m per 
month in the first half of 2014, compared with a monthly average of £18m per month in 2013 and £25m per month in 2012.

Credit
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 
arising from the default or credit quality 
deterioration of a customer or counterparty 
to which we have directly provided credit, 
or for which we have assumed a financial 
obligation.

1

2

3

Deterioration in the credit quality of our customers and counterparties could 
reduce the value of our assets, and increase our write-downs and allowances 
for impairment losses. A deterioration in credit risk can be caused by a range 
of macroeconomic environment and other factors, including increased 
unemployment, falling house prices, increased corporate insolvency levels, 
reduced corporate profits, increased personal insolvency levels, increased 
interest rates and/or higher tenant defaults.  

  See ‘Credit risk – Retail Banking’, ‘Credit risk – Commercial Banking’, ‘Credit 
risk – Corporate Centre’ and ‘Credit risk – Markets’ on pages 43, 54, 62 and 61. 
Management’s approach to credit risk is described in more detail on page 73 of 
the 2013 Annual Report.

During the first half of 2014, the overall Santander UK NPL ratio improved to 1.96% (2013: 2.04%), with the performance across 
the business units as follows:

The Retail Banking NPL ratio decreased to 1.77% at 30 June 2014 (2013: 1.89%), with an improvement across both the secured 
and unsecured lending portfolios. There was a particular improvement in unsecured personal lending and 1I2I3 Credit Cards which 
benefited from the better risk profile of 1I2I3 World customers.

The Commercial Banking NPL ratio increased to 3.15% at 30 June 2014 (2013: 3.02%) largely due to a single long-standing loan of £89m 
which moved to non-performance. A successful restructure of this loan is still anticipated and a conservative provision is held against it.

The Corporate Centre NPL ratio decreased to 2.10% at 30 June 2014 (2013: 2.36%), reflecting the on-going sale and run-off of the 
non-core corporate and legacy assets which continue with no significant impact on the income statement. Social Housing comprised 
80% of customer loans in Corporate Centre at 30 June 2014, and this portfolio is fully performing.

Liquidity
Liquidity risk is the risk that Santander UK, 
although solvent, either does not have 
sufficient financial resources available to meet 
its obligations as they fall due, or can secure 
them only at excessive cost.

3

All major banks, including Santander UK, can be impacted by changes in 
confidence in the banking sector, the wholesale funding markets or the banking 
institution. Should Santander UK be unable to continue to source sustainable 
funding due to exceptional circumstances, our ability to fund our financial 
obligations could be adversely affected, potentially disrupting the day-to-day 
operations, business model or leading to the insolvency of Santander UK plc.

  See ‘Liquidity risk’ on page 70. Management’s approach to Liquidity risk is 
described in more detail on page 133 of the 2013 Annual Report.

Eligible liquid assets increased £2.7bn to £32.2bn at 30 June 2014 (2013: £29.5bn). Throughout the first half of 2014, Santander UK 
continued to maintain a strong liquidity position and a conservative balance sheet structure (i.e. maintaining high levels of high 
quality liquid assets) as well as robust risk management controls to monitor and manage the levels of the liquid asset portfolio and 
encumbrance. Eligible liquid assets continued to significantly exceed wholesale funding of less than one year, with a coverage ratio 
of 127% at 30 June 2014 (2013: 139%).

At 30 June 2014, the Basel Liquidity Coverage Ratio (‘LCR’) was 107% (2013: 103%). Further clarity on the implementation of the 
LCR and Net Stable Funding Ratio (‘NSFR’) has continued to help to reduce the degree of uncertainty in this area.

Pension
Pension risk is the risk to Santander UK 
caused by its contractual or other liabilities 
to or with respect to its defined benefit 
pension schemes. 3

Pension schemes can be impacted by the uncertainty of future investment 
returns and the projected cost of liabilities. The key risk factors include 
long-term interest rates, inflation expectations, accounting discount rates, 
salary growth, life expectancy of the scheme members, investment 
performance as well as changes in the regulatory environment. Individually, 
or in combination, these factors may cause additional contributions to be 
required, or can directly impact the capital position of Santander UK.  

  See ‘Pension risk’ on page 76. Management’s approach to pension risk 
is described in more detail on page 132 of the 2013 Annual Report.

During the first half of 2014, the latest triennial Trustee pension scheme funding valuation at 31 March 2013 was agreed. Following 
this, an updated schedule of deficit funding contributions was agreed with the Scheme Trustee. During the first half of 2014, the risk 
profile of the Santander UK group’s defined benefit pension scheme remained stable with the focus on positive performance of the 
assets relative to liabilities, whilst managing volatility through hedging a proportion of the liabilities with bond assets and derivatives. 

The accounting deficit of the Scheme improved by £381m, partially driven by positive asset returns as well as a net gain of £218m 
that arose from scheme changes that limit future defined benefit pension entitlements and provide for the longer-term sustainability 
of our staff pension arrangements.

Operational
Operational risk is the direct, or indirect, 
risk of loss to Santander UK resulting from 
inadequate or failed internal processes, 
people and systems, or from external events.

1

2

3

Operational risk is inherent within all the processes Santander UK operates 
and occurs where unexpected or unplanned events associated with people, 
processes, systems or external events may prevent us from achieving any 
of our planned or desired business outcomes.

  See ‘Operational risk’ on page 76. Management’s approach to operational 
risk is described in more detail on page 148 of the 2013 Annual Report. 

During the first half of 2014, Santander UK continued to develop and embed its operational risk management framework in line with 
regulatory expectations. During the first six months of 2014, the majority of Santander UK’s £83m (year ended 31 December 2013: 
£221m) of Operational Risk losses arose within the clients, products and business practices category. These principally represented 
redress payouts (excluding related costs) on the sales of PPI products, largely provided for in previous years.

Industry-wide concerns about external cyber crime remain high. On-going monitoring and oversight continued to be strengthened.
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Top risks
A top risk is defined as being a current risk within our business that 
could potentially have a material impact on our financial results, 
reputation and the sustainability of our business model. 

Strategic priority key:

1 Loyal and satisfied retail customers

2 ‘Bank of Choice’ for UK companies

3 Consistent profitability and a strong balance sheet

Risk description Strategic priorities Risk features and impact Developments in the first half of 2014 2014 changes

Capital
Capital risk is the risk that Santander UK does 
not have an adequate amount, or quality, 
of capital to meet its internal business 
objectives, market expectations and 
regulatory requirements. 3

Capital risk has the potential to disrupt our business model and stop the 
normal functions of Santander UK. It could also cause Santander UK to fail 
to meet the capital requirements of regulators, who would then have powers 
to constrain disbursements, such as the payment of dividends, or to resolve 
Santander UK. Capital risk in Santander UK is driven primarily by credit risk 
and the effects of regulatory change as well as management’s ability to raise 
capital to meet demand over the economic cycle.

  See ‘Capital risk’ on page 76. Management’s approach to capital risk is 
described in more detail on page 144 of the 2013 Annual Report.

During the first half of 2014, regulatory developments continued to have the potential to impact Santander UK’s capital plans 
materially and were mitigated through close monitoring, scenario analysis and capital issuance. During the second quarter of 2014, 
Santander UK participated in the Bank of England’s concurrent stress testing exercise, the results of which were presented to the 
PRA. Our CET 1 capital ratio increased to 11.8% at 30 June 2014 (2013: 11.6%). On 24 June 2014, Santander UK plc issued a £500m 
Additional Tier 1 (‘AT1’) security to its immediate parent Santander UK Group Holdings Ltd who, in turn, issued a similar security 
to Banco Santander, S.A.. We expect that the strength of our CET 1 capital ratio, our ability to generate capital organically and the 
rebalancing of our business mix will enable us to meet our targeted capital ratios even once the capital requirements of CRD IV 
and the PRA are phased in. 

Our end-point Tier 1 leverage ratio as defined by the PRA was 3.6%. Retained profits, and further AT1 issuance if required, are 
expected to result in a continued improvement in our leverage ratio. RWAs increased to £79.9bn (2013: £77.7bn), reflecting the 
growth of higher risk-weighted corporate lending. 

Conduct
Conduct risk is the risk that the business 
and operational decisions we take and the 
behaviours displayed lead to poor outcomes 
for our customers.

1

2

3

Conduct risk is a key risk to Santander UK in view of the evolving regulatory 
environment and to enable us to meet our aim to be the best bank for our 
customers.  Specific conduct risks to which we are exposed include: products 
and services not meeting customer needs; failing to deal with complaints 
effectively; and the risk that customers are sold unsuitable products or not 
provided adequate information to make informed decisions. 

  See ‘Conduct risk’ on page 77. Management’s approach to conduct risk is 
described in more detail on page 146 of the 2013 Annual Report. 

Building on the enhanced Conduct Risk Framework developed in 2013, a programme of work is planned to continue throughout 2014 
to further embed effective management of conduct risk throughout the business, including a comprehensive cultural change project. 

In the second quarter of 2014, a £70m provision for conduct remediation, including related costs, was made. This included £65m 
relating to PPI and a net £5m for claims in respect of other retail products. During the first half of 2014, the volume of PPI complaints 
decreased at a slower rate than in previous periods. A review of recent claims activity indicated that claims are now expected to 
continue for longer than originally anticipated. As a result, the provision was increased. During the first half of 2014, the high 
proportion of invalid complaints continued. Monthly redress costs, including related costs, decreased to an average of £10m per 
month in the first half of 2014, compared with a monthly average of £18m per month in 2013 and £25m per month in 2012.

Credit
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 
arising from the default or credit quality 
deterioration of a customer or counterparty 
to which we have directly provided credit, 
or for which we have assumed a financial 
obligation.

1

2

3

Deterioration in the credit quality of our customers and counterparties could 
reduce the value of our assets, and increase our write-downs and allowances 
for impairment losses. A deterioration in credit risk can be caused by a range 
of macroeconomic environment and other factors, including increased 
unemployment, falling house prices, increased corporate insolvency levels, 
reduced corporate profits, increased personal insolvency levels, increased 
interest rates and/or higher tenant defaults.  

  See ‘Credit risk – Retail Banking’, ‘Credit risk – Commercial Banking’, ‘Credit 
risk – Corporate Centre’ and ‘Credit risk – Markets’ on pages 43, 54, 62 and 61. 
Management’s approach to credit risk is described in more detail on page 73 of 
the 2013 Annual Report.

During the first half of 2014, the overall Santander UK NPL ratio improved to 1.96% (2013: 2.04%), with the performance across 
the business units as follows:

The Retail Banking NPL ratio decreased to 1.77% at 30 June 2014 (2013: 1.89%), with an improvement across both the secured 
and unsecured lending portfolios. There was a particular improvement in unsecured personal lending and 1I2I3 Credit Cards which 
benefited from the better risk profile of 1I2I3 World customers.

The Commercial Banking NPL ratio increased to 3.15% at 30 June 2014 (2013: 3.02%) largely due to a single long-standing loan of £89m 
which moved to non-performance. A successful restructure of this loan is still anticipated and a conservative provision is held against it.

The Corporate Centre NPL ratio decreased to 2.10% at 30 June 2014 (2013: 2.36%), reflecting the on-going sale and run-off of the 
non-core corporate and legacy assets which continue with no significant impact on the income statement. Social Housing comprised 
80% of customer loans in Corporate Centre at 30 June 2014, and this portfolio is fully performing.

Liquidity
Liquidity risk is the risk that Santander UK, 
although solvent, either does not have 
sufficient financial resources available to meet 
its obligations as they fall due, or can secure 
them only at excessive cost.

3

All major banks, including Santander UK, can be impacted by changes in 
confidence in the banking sector, the wholesale funding markets or the banking 
institution. Should Santander UK be unable to continue to source sustainable 
funding due to exceptional circumstances, our ability to fund our financial 
obligations could be adversely affected, potentially disrupting the day-to-day 
operations, business model or leading to the insolvency of Santander UK plc.

  See ‘Liquidity risk’ on page 70. Management’s approach to Liquidity risk is 
described in more detail on page 133 of the 2013 Annual Report.

Eligible liquid assets increased £2.7bn to £32.2bn at 30 June 2014 (2013: £29.5bn). Throughout the first half of 2014, Santander UK 
continued to maintain a strong liquidity position and a conservative balance sheet structure (i.e. maintaining high levels of high 
quality liquid assets) as well as robust risk management controls to monitor and manage the levels of the liquid asset portfolio and 
encumbrance. Eligible liquid assets continued to significantly exceed wholesale funding of less than one year, with a coverage ratio 
of 127% at 30 June 2014 (2013: 139%).

At 30 June 2014, the Basel Liquidity Coverage Ratio (‘LCR’) was 107% (2013: 103%). Further clarity on the implementation of the 
LCR and Net Stable Funding Ratio (‘NSFR’) has continued to help to reduce the degree of uncertainty in this area.

Pension
Pension risk is the risk to Santander UK 
caused by its contractual or other liabilities 
to or with respect to its defined benefit 
pension schemes. 3

Pension schemes can be impacted by the uncertainty of future investment 
returns and the projected cost of liabilities. The key risk factors include 
long-term interest rates, inflation expectations, accounting discount rates, 
salary growth, life expectancy of the scheme members, investment 
performance as well as changes in the regulatory environment. Individually, 
or in combination, these factors may cause additional contributions to be 
required, or can directly impact the capital position of Santander UK.  

  See ‘Pension risk’ on page 76. Management’s approach to pension risk 
is described in more detail on page 132 of the 2013 Annual Report.

During the first half of 2014, the latest triennial Trustee pension scheme funding valuation at 31 March 2013 was agreed. Following 
this, an updated schedule of deficit funding contributions was agreed with the Scheme Trustee. During the first half of 2014, the risk 
profile of the Santander UK group’s defined benefit pension scheme remained stable with the focus on positive performance of the 
assets relative to liabilities, whilst managing volatility through hedging a proportion of the liabilities with bond assets and derivatives. 

The accounting deficit of the Scheme improved by £381m, partially driven by positive asset returns as well as a net gain of £218m 
that arose from scheme changes that limit future defined benefit pension entitlements and provide for the longer-term sustainability 
of our staff pension arrangements.

Operational
Operational risk is the direct, or indirect, 
risk of loss to Santander UK resulting from 
inadequate or failed internal processes, 
people and systems, or from external events.

1

2

3

Operational risk is inherent within all the processes Santander UK operates 
and occurs where unexpected or unplanned events associated with people, 
processes, systems or external events may prevent us from achieving any 
of our planned or desired business outcomes.

  See ‘Operational risk’ on page 76. Management’s approach to operational 
risk is described in more detail on page 148 of the 2013 Annual Report. 

During the first half of 2014, Santander UK continued to develop and embed its operational risk management framework in line with 
regulatory expectations. During the first six months of 2014, the majority of Santander UK’s £83m (year ended 31 December 2013: 
£221m) of Operational Risk losses arose within the clients, products and business practices category. These principally represented 
redress payouts (excluding related costs) on the sales of PPI products, largely provided for in previous years.

Industry-wide concerns about external cyber crime remain high. On-going monitoring and oversight continued to be strengthened.
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Emerging and future risks
An emerging and future risk is defined as being a risk with largely 
uncertain outcomes which may develop or crystallise in the future. 
Crystallisation of an emerging risk could have a material effect on 
long-term strategy.

Summary risk report continued

Emerging and 
future risks

Timeframe
Strategic
 priorities Risk description and mitigation

Less than 
1 year

1

2

3

UK economic and political environment
The financial performance of Santander UK is intrinsically linked to the UK economy. Whilst evidence of 
recovery is becoming increasingly apparent, the possibility of economic downturn, along with its concomitant 
impact on profitability, remains a risk. In the event that the UK economy continues to improve, there is an 
increasing likelihood of a higher interest rate environment. In such a scenario, the reaction of our customers 
and other market participants might result in different patterns of behaviour. These could include increased 
customer attrition and more competitive product pricing. 

In addition, any significant changes in UK Government policies or political structure could have an impact 
on our business. In particular, the first half of 2014 saw continued debate on Scotland’s constitutional future 
in the run up to the referendum in September. We continue to monitor the potential consequences such 
changes may have with action to be taken as appropriate. The impacts of this risk may also be seen over 
more than a one-year period.

1-3 years

3

Emerging regulation
The aftermath of the financial crisis has seen the emergence of a significant volume of additional regulation. 
In some cases, the impacts this regulation has on Santander UK have become clearer and more precisely 
quantified. On the other hand, there remains a significant body of new regulation where the impact and 
timing remain uncertain. Over the coming months, we also anticipate greater clarity in respect of capital 
levels, leverage and the detailed rules necessary to meet the requirements of the Financial Services (Banking 
Reform) Act 2013. However, considerable uncertainty will still remain and we cannot therefore be certain of 
the impact on our business model that the banking reform agenda will have.

1

2

3

IT and business change
Santander UK continues to invest in the roll-out of new IT platforms and systems to support its strategic 
growth plans. As with any significant programme of this nature, there is a need to ensure that the risks 
associated with the pace of change are properly monitored and controlled.

More than 
3 years

1

2

3

New competitors and technology
Innovations in technology applied to the delivery of financial services continued to develop at a rapid pace. 
We have also seen the advent of new financial services providers. These factors bring with them the potential 
for increased levels of competition in the medium term.

Credit risk 
highlights

The Santander UK group’s main credit portfolios are its UK residential 
mortgage portfolio and its Corporate Banking portfolio, as follows:

Mortgage non-performing loans

2012 2013

2,657

1.791.74

2,719

1.88

2,788

Jun 2014

Non-performing loan ratio (%)

Non-performing loans (£m)

Mortgage NPLs
During the first half of 2014, the mortgage asset NPL 
stock decreased to £2,657m (2013: £2,788m). This 
reduction resulted largely from improvements in the 
economic environment and prolonged low interest 
rates, coupled with improved collections efficiencies 
introduced both in 2013 and the first half of 2014. 
The NPL ratio decreased to 1.79% (2013: 1.88%) 
due to a reduction in NPL stock and a more stable 
mortgage asset stock. 

The improving economy also helped to contribute to 
a reduction in the level of early arrears (31-90 days), as 
well as in the proportion of impaired loans. However, 
the economic recovery remains at an early stage, and 
a conservative stance was therefore maintained in 
the provisioning policy. This included allowances 
made for losses which could stem from factors 
including regional variation in the risk profile, changes 
to regulation and contractual maturity defaults.

Commercial Banking 
non-performing loans

2012 2013

728

3.15
4.26

835

3.02

666

Jun 2014

Non-performing loan ratio (%)

Non-performing loans (£m)

Commercial Banking NPLs
During the first half of 2014, the Commercial Banking 
NPL ratio increased to 3.15% (2013: 3.02%), largely 
due to a single long-standing loan of £89m which 
moved to non-performance. A successful 
restructuring of this loan is anticipated and a 
conservative provision is held against it. The 
underlying NPL ratio excluding this case reduced 
to 2.76%.

Credit quality remains strong as we continued 
to adhere to our prudent lending criteria and 
as we further deliver on our business plan to grow 
Commercial Banking lending.
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GROUP SUMMARY 
 
SUMMARISED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT  
 

  Six months ended  
30 June 2014 

£m 

Six months ended  
30 June 2013(1) 

£m 

Net interest income 1,673 1,391 
Non-interest income 519 570 
Total operating income 2,192 1,961 
Administrative expenses (876) (992) 
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (347) (121) 
Total operating expenses excluding impairment losses, provisions and charges (1,223) (1,113) 
Impairment losses on loans and advances (172) (235) 
Provisions for other liabilities and charges (252) (152) 
Total operating impairment losses, provisions and charges (424) (387) 
Profit on continuing operations before tax 545 461 
Tax on profit on continuing operations (107) (90)
Profit on continuing operations after tax 438 371
Loss from discontinued operations after tax - (12)
Profit after tax for the period 438 359 

(1) Adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as described in Note 1 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 

 
Six months ended 30 June 2014 compared to six months ended 30 June 2013 
Profit on continuing operations before tax increased by £84m to £545m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £461m). By income statement line, the 
movements were: 

 
> Net interest income increased by £282m to £1,673m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £1,391m). This was largely due to the lower cost 

of retail liabilities following the maturity of several tranches of higher cost eSaver products in the second half of 2013, the reduced 
cost of new ISA liabilities originated in the first half of 2014, as well as increased lending in Commercial Banking. 

These increases were partly offset by reduced mortgage stock margins reflecting the lower customer rates available on 
incentive products as the current environment for mortgage lending led to increased activity. This activity, combined with UK 
Government schemes (such as Help to Buy), led to an increase in customers moving from SVR mortgages. We have been successful in 
the targeted retention of customers into new Santander UK mortgages. 

In addition, the returns on our structural hedge strategy were lower than in the first half of 2013 following the maturity of 
historic contracts that benefited from higher returns. 

 
> Non-interest income decreased by £51m to £519m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £570m), largely reflecting a significantly reduced 

credit arising from the debit valuation adjustments on derivatives written by Santander UK. The decrease was also driven by lower 
banking fees, including higher cashback on 1|2|3 World products and lower overdraft fees, partially offset by an increase in credit 
cards business and new product promotions, and continued growth in 1|2|3 World product balances. 

These decreases were partially offset by a recovery of non-interest income to more normalised levels in our Equity Derivatives 
and Securities Financing businesses. 

 
> Administrative expenses decreased by £116m to £876m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £992m) principally due to a net gain of £218m 

which arose as a result of scheme changes that limit future defined benefit pension entitlements and provide for the longer term 
sustainability of our staff pension arrangements. Costs remained tightly controlled, and the decrease was also driven by on-going 
efficiencies including the consolidation of multi-branch locations. 

These decreases were partially offset by major investment programmes, including a continued investment in the growth of 
the businesses serving SME and corporate customers, as well as branch network and digital systems. These support the business 
transformation and will continue to improve the customer experience across all our distribution channels. 

 
> Depreciation, amortisation and impairment costs increased by £226m to £347m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £121m). This was 

principally due to software write-offs of £206m for the decommissioning of redundant systems following the implementation of our 
new digital platform and the completion of our product simplification programme. The write-offs will reduce our future depreciation 
charge. The increase also reflected continued investment in business growth, including branch network systems and digital channels as 
well as the commencement of depreciation on a new data centre. 
 

> Impairment losses on loans and advances decreased by £63m to £172m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £235m). This was largely due 
to the reduction in impairment losses on mortgages as a result of improving economic conditions, rising house prices, prolonged low 
interest rates and collections efficiencies introduced both in 2013 and the first half of 2014. 
 

> Provisions for other liabilities and charges increased by £100m to £252m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £152m), principally due to a 
charge of £50m relating to the costs for our on-going branch de-duplication programme. There was also an additional provision of 
£70m, including related costs, for conduct remediation, of which £65m related to PPI, following a review of recent claims activity 
which indicates that claims are now expected to continue for longer than originally anticipated; the remaining net £5m charge was for 
other retail products. In addition, the first half of 2014 benefitted from a reduced provision for restructuring, while 2013 benefitted 
from a reassessment of the provision for non-PPI retail customer remediation payments. 

Provision for other liabilities and charges included regulatory costs relating to the FSCS of £100m (2013: £88m).  
 

> The taxation charge was higher by 19% largely due to higher profits. The effective tax rate for 2014, based on profit on continuing 
operations before tax was 19.6% (2013: 19.5%).  
 

Loss from discontinued operations after tax of £nil in the first half of 2014 (2013: £12m) reflected the sale of the co-brand credit cards business 
in 2013.   



 

Detailed Business Review 

Group and Divisional Results continued 
 

16  Santander UK plc 2014 Half Yearly Financial Report  

Critical factors affecting results 
The preparation of our Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements requires management to make estimates and judgements that 
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date and the reported amount of income and expenses during the 
reporting period. Management evaluates its estimates and judgements on an ongoing basis and bases its estimates and judgements on historical 
experience and other factors believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different 
assumptions or conditions. Estimates and judgements that are considered important to the portrayal of our financial condition including, where 
applicable, quantification of the effects of reasonably possible ranges of such estimates are set out in ‘Critical Accounting Policies and Areas of 
Significant Management Judgement’ in Note 1 on page 229 of the 2013 Annual Report 
 
The rest of this section contains a summary of the results, and commentary thereon, by income statement line item for each segment. 
 
Basis of results presentation 
The segmental information in this Half Yearly Financial Report reflects the reporting structure in place at the reporting date in accordance with 
which the segmental information in Note 2 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements has been presented. The Company’s 
board of directors (the ‘Board’) is the chief operating decision maker for Santander UK. The segmental information below is presented on the 
basis used by the Board to evaluate performance and allocate resources. The Board reviews discrete financial information for each segment of 
the business which follows Santander UK’s normal accounting policies and principles, including measures of operating results, assets and 
liabilities.  

 
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BY SEGMENT 
 
30 June 2014 Retail  

Banking 
£m 

Commercial 
Banking 

£m 
Markets 

£m 

Corporate 
 Centre 

£m 
Total 

£m 
Net interest income/(expense) 1,685 264 1 (277) 1,673
Non-interest income 306 131 57 25 519
Total operating income 1,991 395 58 (252) 2,192
Administration expenses (719) (181) (56) 80 (876)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (112) (13) (1) (221) (347)
Total operating expenses excluding impairment losses, 

provisions and charges 
(831) (194) (57) (141) (1,223)

Impairment losses on loans and advances (107) (56) - (9) (172)
Provisions for other liabilities and charges - - - (252) (252)
Total operating impairment losses, provisions and charges (107) (56) - (261) (424)
Profit/(loss) on continuing operations before tax 1,053 145 1 (654) 545
      
Loss from discontinued operations after tax - - - - - 

 
30 June 2013 Retail  

Banking 
£m 

Commercial 
Banking 

£m 
Markets 

£m 

Corporate  
Centre(1) 

£m 
Total(1) 

£m 
Net interest income/(expense) 1,382 199 (1) (189) 1,391
Non-interest income 328 137 40 65 570
Total operating income 1,710 336 39 (124) 1,961
Administration expenses (772) (147) (48) (25) (992)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (95) (9) (1) (16) (121)
Total operating expenses excluding impairment losses, 

provisions and charges 
(867) (156) (49) (41) (1,113)

Impairment losses on loans and advances (184) (51) - - (235)
Provisions for other liabilities and charges - - - (152) (152)
Total operating impairment losses, provisions and charges (184) (51) - (152) (387)
Profit/(loss) on continuing operations before tax 659 129 (10) (317) 461
      
Loss from discontinued operations after tax - - - (12) (12) 
(1) Adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as described in Note 1 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 

 
 



 

Detailed Business Review 

Group and Divisional Results continued 
 

Santander UK plc 2014 Half Yearly Financial Report 17 

RETAIL BANKING 
 
Retail Banking offers a wide range of products and financial services to customers through a network of branches and ATMs, as well as through 
telephony, e-commerce and intermediary channels. It principally serves personal banking customers, but also services small businesses with a 
turnover of less than £250,000 per annum. Retail Banking products include residential mortgage loans, savings and current accounts, credit cards 
and personal loans as well as a range of insurance policies. 
 
Summarised income statement 
 

 Six months ended 
30 June 2014 

£m 

Six months ended  
30 June 2013 

£m 
Net interest income 1,685 1,382
Non-interest income 306 328
Total operating income 1,991 1,710
Administration expenses (719) (772)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (112) (95)
Total operating expenses excluding impairment losses, provisions and charges (831) (867)
Impairment losses on loans and advances (107) (184)
Total operating impairment losses, provisions and charges (107) (184)
Profit on continuing operations before tax 1,053 659

 
Six months ended 30 June 2014 compared to six months ended 30 June 2013 
Profit on continuing operations before tax increased by £394m to £1,053m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £659m). By income statement line, 
the movements were: 
 

> Net interest income increased by £303m to £1,685m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £1,382m). This was largely due to the 
lower cost of retail liabilities following the maturity of several tranches of higher cost eSaver savings products in the second 
half of 2013 and the reduced cost of new ISA liabilities originated in the first half of 2014. 

These increases were partly offset by reduced mortgage stock margins reflecting the lower customer rates available 
on incentive products as the current environment for mortgage lending led to increased activity. This activity, combined with 
UK Government schemes (such as Help to Buy), led to an increase in customers moving from SVR mortgages. We have been 
successful in the targeted retention of customers into new Santander UK mortgages. 
 

> Non-interest income decreased by £22m to £306m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £328m). The decrease was driven by lower 
banking fees, including higher cashback on 1|2|3 World products and lower overdraft fees, partially offset by an increase in 
credit cards business and new product promotions, and continued growth in 1|2|3 World product balances. 
 

> Administration expenses decreased by £53m to £719m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £772m). The decrease was driven by 
on-going efficiencies including the consolidation of multi-branch locations.  
 

>  Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expenses increased by £17m to £112m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £95m). The 
increase reflected continued investment in business growth, including branch network systems and digital channels as well as 
the commencement of depreciation on a new data centre. 
 

> Impairment losses on loans and advances decreased by £77m to £107m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £184m). This was 
largely due to the reduction in impairment losses on mortgages as a result of improving economic conditions, rising house 
prices, prolonged low interest rates and collections efficiencies introduced both in 2013 and the first half of 2014. 
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Balances and ratios 
 

 
30 June 2014 

£bn 
31 December 2013 

£bn 
Total assets 161.9 160.5
Customer loans 156.6 155.6
- of which mortgages 148.7 148.1
- of which unsecured consumer and vehicle finance 7.9 7.5 
Risk-weighted assets 37.3 36.3(1)

Customer deposits 126.9 123.2
- of which current accounts 35.1 27.9
   
NPL ratio(2) (3) 1.77% 1.89% 
Coverage ratio (4) 32% 31% 
Mortgage NPL ratio(2)(5) 1.79% 1.88%
Mortgage coverage ratio(2)(6) 22% 21%

(1) Adjusted for consistency to reflect the CRD IV rules as if they had applied on 31 December 2013 as described in ‘Risk-weighted assets’ in the Balance Sheet Review on page 32. 
(2) The balances include interest charged to the customer’s account, but exclude interest accrued but not yet charged to the account. 
(3) NPLs as a percentage of customer loans. 
(4) Impairment loss allowance as a percentage of NPLs. 
(5) Mortgage NPLs as a percentage of mortgage assets. 
(6) Mortgage impairment loss allowance as a percentage of mortgage NPLs. 

 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013 
 

> Total assets increased to £161.9bn at 30 June 2014 (2013: £160.5bn), mainly due to the rise in customer loans described below.  
 

> Customer loans increased to £156.6bn at 30 June 2014 (2013: £155.6bn). Mortgage customer loans increased by £0.6bn as a 
result of higher new business lending. Increased gross mortgage lending is resulting in modest growth of the mortgage book, and 
growth is expected to be in line with our internal estimate for the market outlook for 2014 of approximately 1%. 

SVR mortgage loan balances decreased by £4.2bn in the first half of 2014 to £48.1bn. We have been successful in the 
targeted retention of customers into new Santander UK mortgages.  

Unsecured consumer and vehicle finance balances, which include bank overdrafts, unsecured personal loans, credit cards 
and consumer finance, increased £0.4bn largely in line with our 1|2|3 World loyalty strategy. 
 

> Risk-weighted assets increased by 3% to £37.3bn at 30 June 2014 (2013: £36.3bn), reflecting increased mortgage loan approvals 
and the unsecured personal lending balances growth described above.  
 

> Customer deposits increased 3% to £126.9bn at 30 June 2014 (2013: £123.2bn) as current account balances continued to grow. 
The 1|2|3 Current Account remains central to our retail customer relationship model and was the main driver of a 26% increase in 
current account balances during the period, partially offset by a managed reduction in other deposit balances without a broader 
customer relationship, as we continued to focus on retaining and originating accounts held by more loyal customers. 

 
> The NPL ratio decreased to 1.77% at 30 June 2014 (2013: 1.89%), with an improvement across both the secured and unsecured 

lending portfolios. There was a particular improvement in unsecured personal lending and 1|2|3 Credit Cards which benefitted 
from the better risk profile of 1|2|3 World customers. 
 

> The mortgage NPL ratio decreased to 1.79% at 30 June 2014 (2013: 1.88%) as a result of a decrease in mortgage NPLs, which 
reflected the good credit quality of the portfolio, supported by the improving economic environment for UK households, with low 
interest rates, rising house prices and falling unemployment. We remain aware that these trends may not continue and we take 
account of this in setting our provisions. 
 

 

Business volumes 
 

 

Six months ended  
30 June 2014 

£bn 

Six months ended  
30 June 2013 

£bn 
Mortgage gross lending 12.8 7.9 
Mortgage net lending 0.6 (4.3) 
Retail deposit flows 3.7 (0.5) 
   
 30 June 2014 31 December 2013 
Number of 1I2I3 World customers 3.0 million 2.4 million 
Number of loyal customers  3.0 million 2.7 million 

 
Six months ended 30 June 2014  
 

> Mortgage gross lending increased to £12.8bn in the first half of 2014, due to improved markets, including gross lending driven by 
the UK Government-backed Help to Buy scheme. We maintained our prudent lending criteria with an average LTV of 65% (2013: 
62%) on new lending in the first half of 2014, including the effect of higher LTV Help to Buy business. 
 

> The number of 1|2|3 World customers increased 25% to 3.0 million in the first half of 2014 (2013: 2.4 million), with a continued 
growing transactional primary customer base. In the first half of 2014, we further expanded the 1|2|3 World by launching the 1|2|3 
Mini, a simple current account for children and a 1|2|3 Student account. This makes 1|2|3 World accessible to the whole family and 
is helping us to deepen customer relationships. 

Our 1|2|3 World products are competitively priced, and are attracting new customers through our advertising campaigns, 
positive media feedback, and benefits from other 1|2|3 World products. 1|2|3 World customers tend to have higher balances, more 
products with us, transact more frequently and with a higher average credit card spend than other customers. 
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COMMERCIAL BANKING 
 
Commercial Banking offers a wide range of products and financial services to customers through a network of regional CBCs and through 
telephony and e-commerce channels. Commercial Banking products and services include loans, bank accounts, deposits, treasury services, invoice 
discounting, cash transmission and asset finance. The management of our customers is organised according to the annual turnover of their 
business, enabling us to offer a differentiated service to small and medium enterprises (‘SMEs’), mid and large corporate customers. 

The SME and mid corporate business principally serves SMEs with an annual turnover of more than £250,000 up to £50m, and other 
corporate customers with an annual turnover of up to £500m. This also includes real estate lending. 

The Large Corporates business offers specialist treasury services in fixed income and foreign exchange, lending, transactional banking 
services, capital markets and money markets to large multinational corporate customers with an annual turnover of more than £500m. Lending 
includes syndicated loans and structured finance. Transactional banking includes trade finance and cash management. Money market activities 
include securities lending/borrowing and repos. 
 
Summarised income statement 
 

 Six months ended  
30 June 2014 

£m 

Six months ended  
30 June 2013 

£m 
Net interest income 264 199
Non-interest income 131 137
Total operating income 395 336
Administration expenses (181) (147)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (13) (9)
Total operating expenses excluding impairment losses, provisions and charges (194) (156) 
Impairment losses on loans and advances (56) (51)
Total operating impairment losses, provisions and charges (56) (51)
Profit on continuing operations before tax 145 129

 
Six months ended 30 June 2014 compared to six months ended 30 June 2013 
Profit on continuing operations before tax increased by £16m to £145m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £129m). By income statement line, the 
movements were:  
 

> Net interest income increased by £65m to £264m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £199m), principally as a result of continued 
growth in customer loans and improved new business margins in the core SME segments, with margins on deposits also 
improving. Much of this growth was generated through the network of regional CBCs.  
 

> Non-interest income decreased by £6m to £131m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £137m) reflecting lower income from Large 
Corporates, primarily as a result of lower demand for interest rate risk management products in a relatively stable, low interest 
rate environment, partially offset by increased client short-term market activity. 

> Administration expenses increased by £34m to £181m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £147m). The increase reflected the 
continued investment in the growth of the businesses serving SME and corporate customers through the increasing number of 
relationship managers in our growing network of CBCs as we open new financial centres across the UK.  

We are investing further in our Commercial Banking business by building on the expertise and presence of the wider 
Banco Santander group. In the first half of 2014, we launched a new corporate internet banking capability (‘Connect’), a new 
trade portal, the Santander Passport and a range of other international financial services.  
 

> Depreciation, amortisation and impairment increased by £4m to £13m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £9m) due to the 
continued investment in systems to improve and support new transactional capabilities for our customers and the increase in our 
growing network of CBCs.  
 

> Impairment losses on loans and advances increased by £5m to £56m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £51m). Credit quality in the 
loan books continued to be good, supported by the improving economic environment.  
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Balances and ratios 
 

 
30 June 2014  

£bn 
31 December 2013 

£bn 
Total assets 28.6 32.7
Total customer loans 23.1 22.1
- of which corporate SMEs 11.9 11.7
Risk-weighted assets 28.4 26.8(1) 
Customer deposits 14.6 12.6
   
NPL ratio(2) (3) 3.15% 3.02%
Coverage ratio(2) (4) 49% 53%

(1) Adjusted for consistency to reflect the CRD IV rules as if they had applied on 31 December 2013 as described in ‘Risk-weighted assets’ in the Balance Sheet Review on page 32. 
(2) The balances include interest charged to the customer’s account, but exclude interest accrued but not yet charged to the account. 
(3) NPLs as a percentage of customer loans. 
(4) Impairment loss allowance as a percentage of NPLs. 

 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013 
 

> Total assets comprise customer loans and assets relating to short-term markets activities including repos and derivatives. Total 
assets decreased by 13% to £28.6bn at 30 June 2014 (2013: £32.7bn) driven by the net of an increase in customer loans 
(described below), and a decrease in repo and securities financing activities in short-term markets. 
 

> Customer loans increased by 5% to £23.1bn at 30 June 2014 (2013: £22.1bn) maintaining growth momentum. Corporate 
lending growth continues to be subject to prudent risk management criteria. This growth was predominantly driven by our 
network of CBCs as we continue to invest in growing our SME market share. 

Following a periodic review in the first quarter of 2014, the management of a number of customers was 
transferred from the SME portfolio to the large corporate portfolio as the annual turnover of their businesses had increased; 
prior periods have not been restated. The balance associated with these loans was £327m. Excluding this transfer, SME 
lending growth amounted to 6% in the first half of the year.  
 

> Risk-weighted assets increased by 6% to £28.4bn at 30 June 2014 (2013: £26.8bn) due to higher lending to customers, 
described above. 
 

> Customer deposits increased by 16% to £14.6bn at 30 June 2014 (2013: £12.6bn) principally reflecting strong inflows during 
the period as we continued to develop deeper relationships with our clients, and build on our new enhanced corporate cash 
management and liability capabilities. 
 

> The NPL ratio increased to 3.15% at 30 June 2014 (2013: 3.02%), largely due to a single long-standing loan of £89m which 
moved to non-performance. A successful restructure of this loan is still anticipated and a conservative provision is held against 
it. Credit quality remains strong as we continue to adhere to our prudent lending criteria and as we further deliver on our 
business plan to expand Commercial Banking lending.  
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MARKETS 
 
Markets offers risk management and other services to financial institutions, as well as to other Santander UK divisions. Its main product areas are 
fixed income and foreign exchange, equity, capital markets and institutional sales.  
 
Summarised income statement 
 

 Six months ended  
30 June 2014 

£m 

Six months ended  
30 June 2013 

£m 

Net interest income/(expense) 1 (1)
Non-interest income 57 40
Total operating income 58 39
Administration expenses (56) (48)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (1) (1)
Total operating expenses excluding impairment losses, provisions and charges (57) (49)
Provisions for other liabilities and charges - -
Total operating impairment losses, provisions and charges - -
Profit on continuing operations before tax 1 (10)

 
Six months ended 30 June 2014 compared to six months ended 30 June 2013 
Profit on continuing operations before tax increased by £11m to £1m in the first half of 2014 (2013: loss of £10m). By income statement line, 
the movements were: 
  
> Net interest income/(expense) increased by £2m to £1m in the first half of 2014 (2013: expense of £1m), primarily due to a 

decrease in funding costs. 
 

> Non-interest income increased by £17m to £57m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £40m). Following a refocusing of the Equity 
Derivatives and Securities Financing businesses in 2013, non-interest income recovered to more normalised levels.  

> Administration expenses increased by £8m to £56m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £48m), reflecting investment in developing 
interest rate and fixed income product capabilities offset by tight cost control. 
 

> Depreciation, amortisation and impairment remained unchanged at £1m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £1m). 
 

 
Balances 
 

 
30 June 2014 

£bn 
31 December 2013 

£bn 
Total assets (1) 17.3 19.3
Risk-weighted assets 6.7 6.7(2) 

(1) Primarily comprises derivative assets 
(2) Adjusted for consistency to reflect the CRD IV rules as if they had applied on 31 December 2013 as described in ‘Risk-weighted assets’ in the Balance Sheet Review on page 32. 

 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013 
 

> Total assets comprise derivatives for fixed income and equity products. Total assets decreased by 10% to £17.3bn at 30 June 
2014 (2013: £19.3bn). The decrease was mainly driven by the maturity of trades which were economically hedging a portfolio 
which also matured in the period. This was partially offset by movements in yield curves. 
 

> Risk-weighted assets were broadly flat at £6.7bn at 30 June 2014 (2013: £6.7bn) as the reduction in derivatives, which are 
subject to netting and collateral, did not impact risk-weighted assets. 
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CORPORATE CENTRE  
 
Corporate Centre includes Financial Management & Investor Relations (‘FMIR’) and the non-core corporate and legacy portfolios, as well as the 
co-brand credit cards business sold in 2013 which has been presented as discontinued operations. FMIR is responsible for managing capital and 
funding, balance sheet composition and structure, and strategic liquidity risk for the Santander UK group. The non-core corporate and legacy 
portfolios include aviation, shipping, infrastructure, commercial mortgages, Social Housing loans and structured credit assets, all of which are 
being run-down and/or managed for value. 
 
Summarised income statement 
 

 Six months ended 
30 June 2014 

£m 

Six months ended 
30 June 2013(1) 

£m 

Net interest expense (277) (189)
Non-interest income 25 65
Total operating expense (252) (124)
Administration expenses 80 (25)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (221) (16)
Total operating expenses excluding impairment losses, provisions and charges (141) (41)
Impairment losses on loans and advances (9) -
Provisions for other liabilities and charges (252) (152)
Total operating impairment losses, provisions and charges (261) (152)
Loss on continuing operations before tax (654) (317)
    
Loss on discontinued operations after tax - (12)

 (1) Adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as described in Note 1 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 

 
Six months ended 30 June 2014 compared to six months ended 30 June 2013 
Loss on continuing operations before tax increased by £337m to £654m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £317m). By income statement line, the 
movements were: 
 
> Net interest expense increased by £88m to £277m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £189m) as the returns on our structural hedge 

strategy were lower than in the first half of 2013 following the maturity of historic contracts that benefited from higher returns. 
 

> Non-interest income decreased by £40m to £25m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £65m) largely reflecting a significantly reduced 
credit arising from the debit valuation adjustments on derivatives written by Santander UK. 
 

> Administration expenses decreased by £105m to a benefit of £80m in the first half of 2014 (2013: expense of £25m). This was 
largely due to a net gain of £218m which arose as a result of scheme changes that limit future defined benefit pension 
entitlements and provide for the longer term sustainability of our staff pension arrangement. This was partially offset by 
additional project costs, including those relating to our investment programme, which were borne centrally. 
 

> Depreciation, amortisation and impairment increased by £205m to £221m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £16m). This was 
principally due to software write-offs of £206m for the decommissioning of redundant systems following the implementation of 
our new digital platform and the completion of our product simplification programme. The write-offs will reduce our future 
depreciation charge.  
 

> Impairment losses on loans and advances increased by £9m to £9m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £nil) due to modest provisions 
raised in relation to the non-core corporate and legacy portfolios in run-off.  
 

> Provision for other liabilities and charges increased by £100m to £252m in the first half of 2014 (2013: £152m), principally due to 
a charge of £50m relating to the costs for our on-going branch de-duplication programme. There was also an additional 
provision of £70m, including related costs, for conduct remediation, of which £65m related to PPI, following a review of recent 
claims activity which indicates that claims are now expected to continue for longer than originally anticipated; the remaining net 
£5m charge related to other retail products. In addition, the first half of 2014 benefitted from a reduced provision for 
restructuring, while 2013 benefitted from a reassessment of the provision for non-PPI retail customer remediation payments. 

Provision for other liabilities and charges included regulatory costs relating to the FSCS of £100m (2013: £88m). 
Following the adoption of IFRIC 21 on 1 January 2014, the charge for the FSCS is now recognised in the first half of the year as 
set out in Note 1 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. IFRIC 21 has been applied retrospectively and 
prior periods have been adjusted. 
 

Loss from discontinued operations after tax of £nil in the first half of 2014 (2013: £12m) reflected the sale of the co-brand credit cards business 
in 2013. 
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Balances and ratios 
 

 
30 June 2014 

£bn 
31 December 2013 

£bn 
Total assets 62.4 57.8
Eligible liquid assets(1) 32.2 29.5
Total customer loans (non-core) 8.7 9.4
Risk-weighted assets 7.5 7.9(2)

Customer deposits 9.2 10.6
   
NPL ratio(3) (4) 2.10% 2.36%
Coverage ratio(3) (5) 132% 125%

(1) Includes off balance sheet items per liquid assets table on page 70. 
(2) Adjusted for consistency to reflect the CRD IV rules as if they had applied on 31 December 2013 as described in ‘Risk-weighted assets’ in the Balance Sheet Review on page 32. 
(3) The balances include interest charged to the customer’s account, but exclude interest accrued but not yet charged to the account. 
(4) NPLs as a percentage of customer loans.  
(5) Impairment loan loss allowance as a percentage of non-performing loans. The impairment loan loss allowance includes provisions against both non-performing loans and other loans where a     

provision is required. As a result the ratio can exceed 100% 

 
Non-core assets 
 

 
30 June 2014 

£bn 
31 December 2013 

£bn 
Social housing 7.0 7.1
Commercial mortgages 1.0 1.2
Shipping 0.3 0.4
Aviation 0.2 0.4
Other 0.2 0.3
Non-core customer loans 8.7 9.4
Legacy Treasury asset portfolio 1.3 2.0
Total non-core assets 10.0 11.4

 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013 
 

> Total assets increased by 8% to £62.4bn at 30 June 2014 (2013: £57.8bn) driven by the increase in eligible liquid assets, 
partially offset by the reduction in non-core customer loans described below. Eligible liquid asset balances continued to be 
managed against liquidity requirements with a focus on efficiency, given stability in capital markets and as a consequence of 
historic actions taken to strengthen the balance sheet. As in 2013, surplus liquidity was also utilised to fund maturing medium 
term funding and to invest in the ALCO portfolio.  
 

> Customer loans decreased by 7% to £8.7bn at 30 June 2014 (2013: £9.4bn) due to the rundown of the non-core corporate and 
legacy portfolios as we continued to successfully implement our on-going exit strategy from individual loans and leases. 
Disposals of assets continued across the portfolios with no significant impact on the income statement. The Social Housing loan 
portfolio remained relatively stable, reflecting its long-term, low risk nature. 
 

> Risk-weighted assets decreased by 5% to £7.5bn at 30 June 2014 (2013: £7.9bn) principally due to the reduction in customer 
loans due to the continued run-down of the non-core corporate and legacy portfolios. 
   

> Customer deposits decreased by 13% to £9.2bn at 30 June 2014 (2013: £10.6bn), as part of a plan for the management of our 
less relationship driven deposit base. 
 

> The NPL ratio decreased to 2.10% at 30 June 2014 (2013: 2.36%), reflecting the on-going sale and run-off of the non-core 
corporate and legacy assets which continue with no significant impact on the income statement. Social Housing comprised 80% 
of customer loans in Corporate Centre at 30 June 2014, and this portfolio is fully performing. 
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This Balance Sheet Review describes Santander UK’s significant assets and liabilities and its strategy and reasons for entering into such 
transactions. Throughout this section, references to UK and non-UK, in the geographic analysis, refer to the location of the office where the 
transaction is recorded. 

This Balance Sheet Review focuses on those areas that have changed significantly during the first half of 2014, and represents an 
update to the Balance Sheet Review in the 2013 Annual Report, with which it should be read in conjunction. The Balance Sheet Review in the 
2013 Annual Report contains additional disclosures which have not changed significantly during the first half of 2014. 

 Index 
25 Summarised condensed consolidated balance sheet 
27 Short-term borrowings 
28 Capital management and resources 
34 Liquidity and funding 
35 Average balance sheet 
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SUMMARISED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET  
 
 30 June 2014 

£m 
31 December 2013(1) 

£m 
Assets   
Cash and balances at central banks 26,568 26,374 
Trading assets 18,701 22,294
Derivative financial instruments  19,159 20,049
Financial assets designated at fair value 2,754 2,747
Loans and advances to banks 2,325 2,347
Loans and advances to customers 186,094 184,587
Loans and receivables securities 869 1,101
Available for sale securities 7,755 5,005
Macro hedge of interest rate risk 727 769
Interest in other entities 36 27 
Property, plant and equipment 1,530 1,521
Retirement benefit assets 235 118
Tax, intangibles and other assets 3,467 3,347
Total assets 270,220 270,286
Liabilities   
Deposits by banks 8,234 8,696
Deposits by customers 150,734 147,167
Trading liabilities 17,848 21,278
Derivative financial instruments  19,030 18,863
Financial liabilities designated at fair value 3,252 3,407
Debt securities in issue 50,258 50,870
Subordinated liabilities 4,272 4,306
Retirement benefit obligations 408 672
Tax, other liabilities and provisions 2,586 2,437
Total liabilities 256,622 257,696
Equity   
Total shareholders’ equity 13,598 12,590
Total equity 13,598 12,590
Total liabilities and equity 270,220 270,286
(1) Adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as described in Note 1 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 
 
A more detailed consolidated balance sheet is contained in the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements.  
 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013 
 
Assets 
 
Trading assets 
Trading assets decreased by 16% to £18,701m at 30 June 2014 (2013: £22,294m), reflecting lower levels of activity relating to securities 
purchased under resale agreements to both banks and customers partially offset by increased holdings of £2,507m of equity instruments as part 
of short-term markets trading activity. 
 
Derivative financial instruments - assets 
Derivative assets decreased by 4% to £19,159m at 30 June 2014 (2013: £20,049m). The decrease was mainly driven by the maturity of trades 
which were economically hedging a portfolio which also matured in the period. This was partially offset by movements in yield curves.  
 
Loans and advances to customers  
Loans and advances to customers increased by 1% to £186,094m at 30 June 2014 (2013: £184,587m) principally due to increased mortgage 
lending and Commercial Banking loans. We remain focused on increasing new mortgage lending in line with the market. 
 
Available for sale securities  
Available for sale securities increased by 55% to £7,755m at 30 June 2014 (2013: £5,005m) largely due to the purchase of Government bonds 
as part of normal liquid asset portfolio management activity. 
 
Retirement benefit assets 
Retirement benefit assets increased by 99% to £235m at 30 June 2014 (2013: £118m). For those sections of the Santander UK Group Pension 
Scheme which had surpluses, the key drivers of the increase were scheme changes that limit future defined benefit pension entitlements and 
provide for the longer term sustainability of our staff pension arrangements. In remeasurement of the defined benefit pension schemes during 
the period, the return on plan assets (excluding net interest income) exceeded the actuarial losses arising from changes in financial assumptions.  
 
Tax, intangibles and other assets 
Tax, intangibles and other assets increased by 3% to £3,467m at 30 June 2014 (2013: £3,347m). The increase primarily reflected an increase in 
prepayments, partially offset by a reduction in intangible software assets as a result of write-offs for the decommissioning of redundant systems 
following the implementation of our new digital platform and the completion of our product simplification programme. 
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Liabilities 
 
Deposits by customers 
Deposits by customers increased by 2% to £150,734m at 30 June 2014 (2013: £147,167m) as we focused on retaining and originating accounts 
held by more loyal Retail Banking customers. Current account balances increased, partially offset by lower savings deposit balances as we 
focused on reducing short-term retail deposits without a broader customer relationship. 
 
Trading liabilities 
Trading liabilities decreased by 16% to £17,848m at 30 June 2014 (2013: £21,278m). A decrease in securities sold under repurchase activities 
and the cash collateral received as part of normal trading activity were offset by an increase in short-term deposits and short positions in 
securities. 
 
Derivative financial instruments - liabilities 
Derivative liabilities were broadly unchanged at £19,030m at 30 June 2014 (2013: £18,863m).  
 
Debt securities in issue 
Debt securities in issue decreased by 1% to £50,258m at 30 June 2014 (2013: £50,870m) as new issuances during the period were broadly 
offset by maturities and changes in foreign exchange rates. 
 
Subordinated liabilities 
Subordinated liabilities decreased by 1% to £4,272m at 30 June 2014 (2013: £4,306m) due to changes in foreign exchange rates. 
 
Retirement benefit obligations 
Retirement benefit obligations decreased by 39% to £408m at 30 June 2014 (2013: £672m). The explanation for the movement is the same as 
that given for retirement benefit assets above. 
 
Tax, other liabilities and provisions 
Tax, other liabilities and provisions increased by 6% to £2,586m at 30 June 2014 (2013: £2,437m). The increase principally reflected provisions 
for vacant property and conduct remediation, partially offset by utilisation during the period. 
 
Equity 
 
Total shareholders’ equity increased by 9% to £13,598m at 30 June 2014 (2013: £12,590m). The increase was principally attributable to the 
issuance of £500m Perpetual Capital Securities to our immediate parent company, actuarial gains and the retained profit for the period. 
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SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 
 
Santander UK includes short-term borrowings within deposits by banks, trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated at fair value and debt 
securities in issue and does not show short-term borrowings separately on the balance sheet. Short-term borrowings are defined by the US 
Securities and Exchange Commission (the ‘SEC’) as amounts payable for short-term obligations that are US Federal funds purchased and 
securities sold under repurchase agreements, commercial paper, borrowings from banks, borrowings from factors or other financial institutions 
and any other short-term borrowings reflected on Santander UK’s balance sheet. Santander UK’s only significant short-term borrowings are 
securities sold under repurchase agreements, commercial paper, borrowings from banks, negotiable certificates of deposit, and certain other 
debt securities in issue. Additional information on short-term borrowings is provided in the table below for the six months ended 30 June 2014 
and 2013. 
 
 Six months ended 

30 June 2014 
£m 

Six months ended 
30 June 2013 

£m 

Securities sold under repurchase agreements    
- Period-end balance 14,673 23,664 
- Period-end interest rate 0.65% 0.35% 
- Average balance(1)  24,479 19,740 
- Average interest rate(1) 0.47% 0.39% 
- Maximum balance(1) 27,396 23,664 
Commercial paper   
- Period-end balance 3,862 4,687 
- Period-end interest rate 0.61% 0.47% 
- Average balance(1)  4,043 4,223 
- Average interest rate(1) 0.39% 0.53% 
- Maximum balance(1) 4,610 4,687 
Borrowings from banks (Deposits by banks)(2)   
- Period-end balance 3,213 2,374 
- Period-end interest rate 0.08% 0.00% 
- Average balance(1)  1,485 2,592 
- Average interest rate(1) 0.03% 0.03% 
- Maximum balance(1) 3,213 3,401 
Negotiable certificates of deposit   
- Period-end balance 4,119 2,336 
- Period-end interest rate 2.00% 1.96% 
- Average balance(1) 3,588 2,299 
- Average interest rate(1) 2.51% 1.77% 
- Maximum balance(1) 4,119 2,724 
Other debt securities in issue   
- Period-end balance 4,864 4,661 
- Period-end interest rate 2.86% 2.92% 
- Average balance(1) 4,967 6,578 
- Average interest rate(1) 3.09% 2.90% 
- Maximum balance(1) 5,975 8,308 
(1) Calculated using monthly data. 
(2) The period-end deposits by banks balance includes non-interest bearing items in the course of transmission of £315m (30 June 2013: £586m). 
 

 
Santander UK issues commercial paper generally in denominations of not less than US$50,000, with maturities of up to 365 days. Commercial 
paper is issued by Abbey National Treasury Services plc and Abbey National North America LLC. 
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND RESOURCES 

 
Capital management and capital allocation 
 
Santander UK adopts a centralised capital management approach, based on an assessment of both regulatory requirements and the economic 
capital impacts of our businesses. Details of Santander UK’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital can be found in Note 47 in 
the 2013 Annual Report. Details of Santander UK’s capital at 30 June 2014 can be found in Note 33 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim 
Financial Statements. 
 
Capital and risk management disclosures required by Pillar 3 
Banco Santander, S.A. is supervised by the Banco de España (the Bank of Spain) on a consolidated basis. The European Central Bank (‘ECB’) will 
commence supervision of the Banco Santander group from late 2014 as part of the Single Supervisory Mechanism (‘SSM’). Santander UK has 
applied Banco Santander, S.A.’s approach to capital measurement and risk management in its implementation of Basel II. As a result, Santander 
UK has been classified as a significant subsidiary of Banco Santander, S.A. at 30 June 2014. Further information on the Basel II risk measurement 
of Santander UK’s exposures is included in Banco Santander, S.A.’s Pillar 3 report. 
 
Additional capital disclosures 
In addition, in previous periods further disclosures on capital could be found in Santander UK’s “Additional Capital and Risk Management 
Disclosures” on www.santander.co.uk. This information principally consisted of transitional disclosures about CRD IV. Following the adoption of 
CRD IV with effect from 1 January 2014, such transitional disclosures are no longer required, and the remaining disclosures have been 
incorporated into the following sections. Consequently, a separate “Additional Capital and Risk Management Disclosures” document has not 
been published at this half year. 
 
Scope of Santander UK’s capital adequacy  
Santander UK is a UK banking group effectively subject to two tiers of supervision. Santander UK is subject to prudential supervision by both the 
PRA (as a UK authorised bank) and the Banco de España (as a member of the Banco Santander group). The ECB will commence supervision of 
the Banco Santander group from late 2014 as part of the SSM. As a PRA regulated entity, Santander UK is expected to satisfy the PRA capital 
requirements on a standalone basis. Similarly, Santander UK must demonstrate to the PRA that it can withstand capital stress tests without 
parental support. Reinforcing the corporate governance framework adopted by Santander UK, the PRA exercises oversight through its rules and 
regulations on the Santander UK plc Board and senior management appointments.  

Santander UK Group Holdings Limited became the holding company of Santander UK plc with effect from 10 January 2014. From this 
date, Santander UK Group Holdings Limited became the head of the Santander UK group for regulatory capital and leverage purposes. The basis 
of consolidation used for capital-related disclosures in this document reflects the Santander UK group, which corresponds to the basis of 
consolidation of the financial statements. At 30 June 2014, the capital and leverage ratios of the Santander UK Group Holdings Limited 
consolidated group were substantially the same as those of the Santander UK group. 

Capital transferability between Santander UK’s subsidiaries is managed in accordance with Santander UK’s corporate purpose and 
strategy, its risk and capital management policies and with regard to UK legal and regulatory requirements. There are no other current or 
foreseen material practical or legal impediments to the prompt transfer of capital resources or repayment of liabilities when due between the 
Company and its subsidiaries. 
 
Key capital ratios  
 
The calculations of capital are prepared on a basis consistent with Santander UK’s regulatory filings at 30 June 2014, following the adoption of 
CRD IV with effect from 1 January 2014. The amounts presented for 31 December 2013 have been prepared on a consistent basis, to aid 
comparability, as described above. Ratios are calculated by taking the relevant capital resources as a percentage of risk-weighted assets.  

The table below summarises Santander UK’s capital ratios under CRD IV: 
 
 30 June 2014 

% 
31 December  2013 

% 
CET 1 capital ratio 11.8 11.6 
Total capital ratio 17.8 17.1 
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Regulatory capital resources  
 
The table below analyses the composition of Santander UK’s regulatory capital resources. The calculations reflect the amounts prepared on a 
basis consistent with Santander UK’s regulatory filings at 30 June 2014, following the adoption of CRD IV with effect from 1 January 2014. The 
amounts presented for 31 December 2013 have been prepared on a consistent basis, to aid comparability. The amounts presented for 2013 have 
not been adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as set out in Note 1 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. The 
adjustment would not have had a material effect on Santander UK’s regulatory position. 
 
 30 June 2014 

£m 
31 December 2013 

£m 

Common Equity Tier 1 (‘CET 1’) capital instruments and reserves:   
- Capital instruments and related share premium accounts 8,725 8,725 
- Retained earnings 3,640 3,307 
- Accumulated  other comprehensive income and other reserves 129 (116) 
CET 1 capital before regulatory adjustments 12,494 11,916 
   
CET 1 regulatory adjustments:   
- Additional value adjustments (85) (75) 
- Intangible assets (net of tax) (2,085) (2,319) 
- Fair value reserves related to gains or losses on cash flow hedges (104) 110 
- Negative amounts resulting from the calculation of regulatory expected loss amounts (545) (544) 
- Gains or losses on liabilities valued at fair value resulting from changes in own credit standing (25) (25) 
- Defined benefit pension fund assets (185) (94) 
Total regulatory adjustments to CET 1 (3,029) (2,947) 
   
CET 1 capital  9,465 8,969 
   
Additional Tier 1 (‘AT1’) capital instruments:   
- Capital instruments and the related share premium accounts 500 - 
- Amounts of qualifying items and related share premium accounts subject to phase out from AT1 1,297 1,298 
AT1 capital before regulatory adjustments 1,797 1,298 
Total regulatory adjustments to AT1 - - 
AT1 capital 1,797 1,298 
   
Tier 1 capital  11,262 10,267 
   
Tier 2 capital instruments:   
- Capital instruments and related share premium accounts 1,737 1,767 
- Amounts of qualifying items and related share premium accounts subject to phase out from Tier 2 1,253 1,253 
Tier 2 capital before regulatory adjustments 2,990 3,020 
Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 - - 
Tier 2 capital 2,990 3,020 
   
Total capital  14,252 13,287 

 
Total regulatory capital consists of: 
 
CET 1 capital instruments and reserves 
Capital instruments and related share premium accounts comprise ordinary share capital of £3,105m (2013: £3,105m) and share premium of 
£5,620m (2013: £5,620m). Also included within CET 1 capital before regulatory adjustments are retained earnings of £3,640m (2013: £3,307m) 
and other reserves of £129m (2013: deduction of £116m), as per the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet. 
 
CET 1 regulatory adjustments 
CET1 regulatory adjustments represent adjustments to capital and reserves attributable to ordinary shareholders required under CRD IV. The 
adjustments applicable to Santander UK are as follows: 

 
> Additional value adjustments: Prudent valuation adjustments of £85m (2013: £75m) assessed using a PRA-defined approach. 
> Intangible assets: Goodwill and intangible assets of £2,085m (2013: £2,319m) net of deferred tax of £20m (2013: £16m) represent 

goodwill arising on the acquisition of businesses and certain capitalised computer software costs.  
> Fair value reserves relating to gains or losses on cash flow hedges: Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedges of £104m (2013: £110m 

loss) which have been recognised in reserves. 
> Negative amounts resulting from the calculation of regulatory expected loss amounts: Excess expected losses deduction of 

£545m (2013: £544m) representing the difference between expected loss calculated in accordance with Santander UK’s  Internal 
Rating-Based (‘IRB’) and Advanced Internal Rating-Based (‘AIRB’) models, and impairment loss allowances calculated in accordance 
with IFRS. Santander UK’s accounting policy for impairment loss allowances is set out in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements in the 2013 Annual Report. Regulatory expected losses are calculated using risk parameters based on either through-the-
cycle or economic downturn estimates, and are subject to conservatism due to the imposition of regulatory floors. They are therefore 
currently higher than the impairment loss allowances under IFRS which only reflect losses incurred at the balance sheet date. 

> Gains or losses on liabilities valued at fair value resulting from changes in own credit standing: This consists of a debit 
valuation adjustment of £29m (2013: £29m) relating to changes in OTC derivatives and changes in liabilities designated at fair value 
through profit and loss of £4m (2013: £4m) relating to resulting from changes in Santander UK’s own credit risk. 

> Defined benefit pension fund assets: Removal or the defined benefit pension scheme assets of £185m (2013: £94m) net of 
deferred tax of £50m (2013: £22m).    
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AT1 capital instruments 
AT1 capital consists of preference shares and innovative/hybrid Tier 1 securities. All such instruments issued by the Santander UK group prior to 1 
January 2014 do not fully meet the CRD IV requirements for AT1 capital which became effective on that date. These instruments are subject to 
transitional phase out provisions under CRD IV which restrict their recognition as capital. The £500m Perpetual Capital Securities issued in June 
2014 meet the CRD IV AT1 rules and are fully recognised as AT1 capital. 
 
Tier 2 capital 
Tier 2 capital consists of fully CRD IV eligible Tier 2 instruments and grandfathered Tier 2 instruments whose capital recognition is subject to CRD 
IV transitional phase out provisions. 
 
A reconciliation of Core Tier 1 capital at 31 December 2013, calculated in accordance with PRA rules in force at that date, and CET 1 capital 
calculated in accordance with CRD IV rules which came into force on 1 January 2014 is set out below: 
 
  31 December 2013 

£m 
Core Tier 1 capital - PRA rules   9,680 
CRD IV adjustments to Core Tier 1:   
- Excess of regulatory expected losses over impairment losses  (335) 
- Defined benefit pension adjustment  (310) 
- Other(1)  (66) 
CET 1 capital - CRD IV rules  8,969  

(1) Other adjustments to Core Tier 1 capital include the effect of additional valuation adjustments, deferred tax, securitisation and unrealised losses on available-for-sale securities. 

 
Movements in regulatory capital  
 
Movements in regulatory capital during the six months ended 30 June 2014 and the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out below. The 
calculations are prepared on a basis consistent with Santander UK’s regulatory filings at 30 June 2014, following the adoption of CRD IV with 
effect from 1 January 2014. The amounts presented for 2013 have been prepared on a consistent basis, to aid comparability, as described above.  
 
 30 June 2014 

£m 
31 December 2013 

£m 

CET 1 capital   
Opening amount 8,969 9,302 
Contribution to CET 1 capital from profit for the period/year:   
  - Increase in retained earnings 333 (5) 
  - Increase/(decrease) in comprehensive income 245 (134) 
  - Decrease in additional value adjustments (10) - 
  - (Increase)/decrease in intangible assets (net of tax) 234 (10) 
  - (Increase)/decrease in fair value reserves related to gains and losses on cash flow hedges (214) 110 
  - Decrease in negative amounts resulting from the calculation of regulatory expected loss amounts (1) 15 
  - Gain on liabilities valued at fair value resulting from changes in own credit standing - (19) 
  - (Increase)/decrease in defined benefit pension fund assets (91) 382 
Additional filters and deductions required pre-CRR - 39 
Basel II to CRD IV impact - (711) 
Closing amount 9,465 8,969 
   
AT1 capital   
Opening amount  1,298 1,901 
 - Increase/(decrease) in capital instruments and related share premium accounts 499 (512) 
 - Decrease in amount of qualifying items and related share premium amounts subject to phase out from AT1 - (10) 
Basel II to CRD IV impact - (81) 
Closing amount 1,797 1,298 
   
Tier 2 capital   
Opening amount 3,020 2,756 
- Decrease/(increase) in capital instruments (30) 735 
- Increase in qualifying items subject to phase out from Tier 2 - 22 
Basel II to CRD IV impact - (493) 
Closing amount 2,990 3,020 
   
Total regulatory capital 14,252 13,287 
 
The changes in Santander UK’s CET 1 capital reflect movements in ordinary share capital, share premium and profits for the six months ended 30 
June 2014 and the year ended 31 December 2013 after adjustment to comply with the PRA’s rules. Santander UK complied with the PRA’s 
capital adequacy requirements during the first half of 2014 and the year ended 31 December 2013.  

During the six months ended 30 June 2014, CET 1 capital increased by £496m to £9,465m. This was largely due to profits for the period 
of £438m, less an interim ordinary dividend approved of £237m and a decrease in intangible assets due to the write-off of software of £206m. 
During the first half of 2014, the increase in AT1 capital was due to the issuance of £500m Perpetual Capital Securities to Santander UK plc’s 
immediate parent company as set out in Note 31 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. During the year ended 31 
December 2013: CET 1 capital decreased by £333m to £8,969m comprising an increase in Core Tier 1 capital of £378m combined with a 
decrease of £711m from the impact of moving from Basel II Core Tier 1 to CRD IV CET1. 
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Regulatory Leverage – using PRA definition 
 
The Basel III and CRD IV rules include proposals for the use of a leverage ratio as a backstop measure to risk-based capital ratios. The 
methodology for calculation of the leverage ratio has continued to evolve, with the Basel Committee in January 2014 producing a revised 
definition of the exposure measure in the ‘Basel III leverage ratio framework and disclosure requirements’ document. 

The PRA has requested that UK banking groups disclose leverage ratios using a methodology based on the January 2014 Basel 
Committee framework for exposure measurement, and an end-point definition of Tier 1 capital at 30 June 2014.  

The table below presents the Santander UK group leverage ratio calculated using the approach requested by the PRA. This is the same 
as the leverage ratio for the Santander UK Group Holdings Limited prudential consolidation group. The position at 31 December 2013 below has 
been restated to reflect the same basis as that used for the presentation of the position at 30 June 2014. Santander UK exceeded the proposed 
minimum 3% leverage ratio at both 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013. 

 
 30 June 2014 

£m 
31 December 2013 

£m 
Regulatory exposure 273,157 272,084 
End-point Tier 1 capital 9,965 9,037 
PRA end-point Tier 1 leverage ratio 3.6% 3.3% 
 
The Basel leverage ratio framework requires certain adjustments to be made to total assets per the consolidated balance sheet to arrive at 
regulatory exposure for leverage purposes. A reconciliation of total assets per the consolidated balance sheet to the regulatory exposure for 
leverage purposes at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013 is as follows: 
 
 30 June 2014 

£m 
31 December 2013 

£m 

Total assets per consolidated balance sheet              270,220               270,286  
Derivatives netting adjustment and potential future exposure (10,516) (11,367) 
Securities financing current exposure add-on 1,825 1,963 
Removal of IFRS netting 2,006 2,085 
Commitments calculated in accordance with Basel Committee Leverage Framework 12,507                 12,114  
CET 1 regulatory adjustments (2,885) (2,997) 
              273,157               272,084  
 
The adjustments are as follows: 
 
> Derivatives netting and potential future exposure: Where derivative netting is allowed in the calculation of regulatory risk weights 

for derivatives, this is also allowed for the purposes of the leverage ratio. This is partially offset by the inclusion of the potential future 
exposure as used in the calculation of regulatory risk-weighted assets for derivatives. 

> Securities financing current exposure add-on: An add-on for securities financing transactions to reflect current exposure is included 
for the purposes of the leverage ratio. 

> Removal of IFRS netting: Where netting of assets and liabilities is permitted under IFRS, this is removed for the purposes of the 
leverage ratio. 

> Commitments calculated in accordance with Basel Committee Leverage Framework: The gross value of undrawn commitments 
is added to total assets for leverage purposes after applying regulatory credit conversion factors. 

> CET 1 regulatory adjustments: Where assets are deducted from CET 1, they can be deducted from total assets for the purposes of 
the leverage ratio. 
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Risk-weighted assets (‘RWAs’)  
 
The tables below analyse the composition of Santander UK’s RWAs. The calculations reflect the amounts prepared on a basis consistent with 
Santander UK’s regulatory filings at 30 June 2014, following the adoption of CRD IV with effect from 1 January 2014. The amounts presented 
for 2013 have been prepared on a consistent basis, to aid comparability. The amounts presented for 31 December 2013 have not been adjusted 
to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as set out in Note 1 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. The adjustment would not 
have had a material effect on Santander UK’s regulatory position. 
 

RWAs by risk 
30 June 2014 

£bn 
31 December 2013 

£bn 
Credit risk  63.0 61.1 
Counterparty risk 4.7 4.8 
Market risk 5.1 4.8 
Operational risk 7.1 7.0 
Total  79.9 77.7 
 

 

RWAs by division 
30 June 2014 

£bn 
31 December 2013 

£bn 
Retail Banking 37.3 36.3 
Commercial Banking 28.4 26.8 
Markets 6.7 6.7 
Corporate Centre 7.5 7.9 
Total  79.9 77.7 
 
A reconciliation of RWAs at 31 December 2013, calculated in accordance with PRA rules in force at that date, and calculated in accordance with 
CRD IV rules which came into force on 1 January 2014 is set out below: 
 
  31 December 2013 

£bn 
Pillar 1 RWAs - PRA rules   75.2 
CRD IV adjustments to RWAs:   
- Securitisation  1.1  
- Counterparty Risk and Other(1)  1.4  
RWAs - CRD IV rules  77.7 

(1) The counterparty risk adjustments to RWAs include credit valuation adjustment, central counterparty clearing, asset value correlation, operational risk and changes to credit risk from provision 
treatment and SME risk weight reduction. 

 
RWAs by division may be further analysed into the balance sheet amount, the equivalent regulatory exposure measured under the standardised 
and IRB approaches, the risk-weighting applied to those regulatory exposures, and the resulting risk-weighted assets calculated, as follows:  

 
30 June 2014 Regulatory exposure      Risk-weighting applied RWAs  

 Balance 
sheet 

amount 
£bn 

 
Standardised 

approach 
£bn 

 
IRB 

approach 
£bn 

Total 
£bn 

 
Standardised 

approach 
% 

 
IRB 

approach 
% 

Total 
% 

 
Standardised 

approach 
£bn 

 
IRB 

approach 
£bn 

Total 
£bn 

Retail Banking           
- Secured lending 148.7 - 158.8 158.8 - 14.8 14.8 - 23.5 23.5 
- Unsecured lending 7.9 5.3 6.8 12.1 79.2 63.2 70.2 4.2 4.3 8.5 
- Operational risk - - - - - - - 5.3 - 5.3 
           
Commercial Banking           
- Customer assets 23.1 16.2 14.4 30.6 80.9 75.7 78.4 13.1 10.9 24.0 
- Non-customer assets(1) 7.5 1.6 1.0 2.6 46.4 34.9 41.9 0.7 0.4 1.1 
- Market risk(2) - - - - - - - 1.8 - 1.8 
- Operational risk - - - - - - - 1.5 - 1.5 
           
Markets           
- Credit risk 0.1 0.1 - 0.1 - - - - - - 
- Counterparty risk 17.2 1.1 4.0 5.1 63.6 60.0 60.8 0.7 2.4 3.1 
- Market risk(2) - - - - - - - 3.3 - 3.3 
- Operational risk - - - - - - - 0.3 - 0.3 
           
Corporate Centre           
- Customer assets(3) 8.7 1.8 7.9 9.7 55.6 12.7 20.6 1.0 1.0 2.0 
- Eligible liquid assets (4) 33.5 30.6 - 30.6 - - - - - - 
- Counterparty Risk - - - - - - - - 0.4 0.4 
           
Intangible assets &  
securitisation deductions 

2.1 - - - - - - - - -

           
Other assets(5) 21.4 8.4 3.3 11.7 39.3 54.5 43.6 3.3 1.8 5.1 
           
 270.2 65.1 196.2 261.3    35.2 44.7 79.9 
(1) Non-customer assets principally consist of the securities lending/borrowing and repo businesses of the Short Term Markets business. 
(2) Market Risk RWAs are determined using both internal model-based and standardised approaches. See the Market Risk section. 
(3) Customer assets in Corporate Centre largely comprise social housing. 
(4) Eligible liquid assets include reverse repurchase agreements collateralised by eligible sovereign securities. 
(5) The balance sheet amounts of other assets have not been allocated segmentally, although the RWAs have been allocated to Corporate Centre. The RWAs cover Credit Risk, Market Risk and 

Operational Risk. 
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31 December 2013        Regulatory exposure Risk-weighting applied  RWAs  
 Balance 

sheet 
amount 

£bn 

 
Standardised 

approach 
£bn 

 
IRB  

approach 
£bn 

Total 
£bn 

 
Standardised 

approach 
% 

 
IRB 

approach 
% 

Total 
% 

 
Standardised 

approach 
£bn 

 
IRB 

approach 
£bn 

Total 
£bn 

Retail Banking           
- Secured lending 148.1 0.2 157.3 157.5 77.1 14.5 14.5 0.1 22.8 22.9 
- Unsecured lending 7.5 4.8 6.5 11.3 78.2 65.1 70.7 3.8 4.2 8.0 
- Operational risk - - - - - - - 5.4 - 5.4 
           
Commercial Banking           
- Customer assets 22.1 13.5 14.6 28.1 90.4 72.6 81.1 12.2 10.6 22.8 
- Non-customer assets(1) 13.4 0.8 1.5 2.3 100.0 26.7 52.2 0.8 0.4 1.2 
- Market risk(2) - - - - - - - 1.4 - 1.4 
- Operational risk - - - - - - - 1.4 - 1.4 
           
Markets           
- Credit risk 0.1 - 0.1 0.1 - - - - - - 
- Counterparty risk 19.2 2.0 3.8 5.8 100.0 31.6 55.2 2.0 1.2 3.2 
- Market risk(2) - - - - - - - 3.3 - 3.3 
- Operational risk - - - - - - - 0.2 - 0.2 
           
Corporate Centre           
- Customer assets(3) 9.4 2.0 9.1 11.1 77.2 21.5 31.5 1.5 2.0 3.5 
- Eligible liquid assets (4) 31.5 28.1 - 28.1 - - - - - - 
- Operational risk   - - - - - - - - - 
- Counterparty risk - - - - - - - 0.5 - 0.5 
           
Intangible assets &  
securitisation deductions 

2.3 - - - - - - - - -

           
Other assets(5) 16.7 7.0 3.6 10.6 42.2 26.4 36.8 3.0 0.9 3.9 
           
 270.3 58.4 196.5 254.9    35.6 42.1 77.7 
(1) Non-customer assets principally consist of the securities lending/borrowing and repo businesses of the Short Term Markets business. 
(2) Market Risk RWAs are determined using both internal model-based and standardised approaches. See the Market Risk section. 
(3) Customer assets in Corporate Centre largely comprise social housing. 
(4) Eligible liquid assets include reverse repurchase agreements collateralised by eligible sovereign securities. 
(5) The balance sheet amounts of other assets have not been allocated segmentally, although the RWAs have been allocated to Corporate Centre. The RWAs cover Credit Risk, Market Risk and 

Operational Risk. 
 
Regulatory exposure represents the Exposure at Default (‘EAD’) calculated in accordance with CRR and related PRA supervisory statements. EAD 
for customer loans includes unutilised credit facilities and is adjusted for a credit conversion factor. EAD for repurchase, reverse repurchase, 
securities financing and derivative transactions are calculated net of any associated collateral and are adjusted for regulatory changes and 
potential future exposure adjustments (‘PFE’) where applicable. 

Santander UK applies Basel III to the calculation of its capital requirement. In addition, Santander UK applies the Retail IRB and AIRB 
approaches to its credit portfolios. Residential lending capital resources requirements include securitised residential mortgages. During the six 
months ended 30 June 2014, RWAs increased in line with the growth in Retail Banking mortgage lending and Commercial Banking lending. 
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LIQUIDITY AND FUNDING 
 
The Board’s risk objective is to be a risk resilient institution at all times, and to be perceived as such by stakeholders, preserving the short and 
long-term viability of Santander UK. While recognising that a bank engaging in maturity transformation cannot hold sufficient liquidity to cover 
all possible stress scenarios, the Board requires Santander UK to hold sufficient liquidity to cover extreme situations. The requirements arising 
from the PRA’s regulatory liquidity regime are reflected in the Board’s Liquidity Risk Appetite. Liquidity risk is the risk that Santander UK, although 
solvent, either does not have available sufficient financial resources to enable it to meet its obligations as they fall due, or can secure them only at 
excessive cost. In Santander UK’s opinion, working capital is sufficient for its present requirements. 

Santander UK primarily generates funding and liquidity through UK retail and corporate deposits, as well as in the financial markets 
through its own debt programmes and facilities to support its business activities and liquidity requirements. It does this with reliance on the 
strength of its balance sheet and profitability and its own network of investors. It does not rely on a guarantee from Banco Santander, S.A. or 
any other member of the Banco Santander group to generate this funding or liquidity. Santander UK does not raise funds to finance other 
members of the Banco Santander group or guarantee the debts of other members of the Banco Santander group (other than certain of 
Santander UK plc’s own subsidiaries). As a PRA regulated group, Santander UK is expected to satisfy the PRA liquidity and capital requirements 
on a standalone basis. Similarly, Santander UK must demonstrate to the PRA that it can withstand liquidity and capital stress tests without 
parental support. 

See the “Liquidity and Funding Risk” section of the Risk Management Report for more information. 
 
Sources of liquidity and funding  
 
Santander UK is primarily funded by retail deposits. This, together with corporate deposits, forms its commercial bank franchise, which attracts 
deposits through a variety of entities. More than three quarters of Santander UK’s customer lending is financed by customer deposits. The retail 
sources primarily originate from the Retail Banking savings business. Although largely callable, these funds provide a stable and predictable core 
of funding due to the nature of the retail accounts and the breadth of personal customer relationships. Additionally, Santander UK has a strong 
wholesale funding base, which is diversified across product types and geography.  

Through the wholesale markets, Santander UK has active relationships with many counterparties across a range of sectors, including 
banks, other financial institutions, corporates and investment funds. Other sources of funding include collateralised borrowings, mortgage 
securitisations and long-term debt issuance. Short-term funding is accessed through money market instruments, including time deposits, 
certificates of deposit and commercial paper. Medium to long-term funding is accessed primarily through asset securitisation and covered bond 
arrangements and Santander UK’s euro medium-term note programmes. The major debt issuance programmes are managed by, and in the 
name of, Abbey National Treasury Services plc on its own behalf (except for the US commercial paper programme, which is managed by, and in 
the name of, Abbey National North America LLC, a guaranteed subsidiary of Santander UK plc) and are set out in Note 33 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements in the 2013 Annual Report. 

The ability to sell assets quickly is also an important source of liquidity for Santander UK. Santander UK holds marketable investment 
securities, such as central bank-eligible debt securities, which could be disposed of either by entering into sale and repurchase agreements or by 
being sold to provide additional funding should the need arise.  

Within the framework of prudent funding and liquidity management, Santander UK manages its commercial banking activities to 
minimise liquidity risk.  
 
Encumbrance - securitisation of assets and covered bonds 
Santander UK has provided prime retail mortgage-backed products to a diverse investor base through its mortgage-backed funding programmes, 
as described in Note 15 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. Funding has historically been raised via mortgage-backed 
notes, both issued directly to third parties and retained for repo with third parties (the latter being eligible collateral for liquidity purposes under 
certain central bank facilities). Santander UK, via its subsidiary Abbey National Treasury Services plc, has an established covered bond programme, 
whereby securities are issued to investors and are guaranteed by a pool of ring-fenced residential mortgages.  

Santander UK’s level of encumbrance arising from external issuance of mortgage-backed funding decreased in the first half of 2014 as 
planned, reflecting both the overall reduction in wholesale funding and the desire to better balance new wholesale funding issuance between 
secured and unsecured markets where possible. At 30 June 2014, total notes issued externally from secured programmes (securitisations and 
covered bonds) decreased to £34,585m (2013: £36,307m), reflecting gross issuance of £2.6bn in the first half of 2014 (2013: £3.1bn) and 
maturities/redemptions of £4.3bn. At 30 June 2014, a total of £14,440m (2013: £14,599m) of notes issued under securitisation and covered 
bond programmes had also been retained internally, a proportion of which had been used as collateral for raising funds via third party bilateral 
secured funding transactions, which totalled £7.2bn at 30 June 2014 (2013: £7.6bn). 
 
Cash flows 
 
 Six months ended  

30 June 2014 
£m 

Six months ended  
30 June 2013 

£m 

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (252) 10,275 
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities (2,905) 282 
Net cash outflow from financing activities (813) (6,824) 
(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (3,970) 3,733 

 
The major activities and transactions that affected Santander UK’s cash flows during the first six months of 2014 were as follows: 

The net cash outflow from operating activities of £252m resulted from the reduction in trading balances offset by increased customer 
savings and deposits from other banks.  

The net cash outflow from investing activities of £2,905m principally reflected the purchase and sale of available-for-sale securities.  
The net cash outflow from financing activities of £813m reflected the repayment of debt securities maturing in the period of 

£12,046m offset by new issues of debt securities of £10,983m and the issuance of £500m capital securities. Further outflows of cash occurred in 
the payment of interim dividends of £210m on ordinary shares and £40m of dividends on other equity instruments.  
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AVERAGE BALANCE SHEET 

 
As period-end statements may not be representative of Santander UK’s activity throughout the period, average balance sheets for Santander UK 
are presented below. The average balance sheets summarise the significant categories of assets and liabilities, together with average interest 
rates. 
 

 Six months ended 30 June 2014 Six months ended 30 June 2013 

 

Average 
balance(1) 

£m 

  
Interest (4) (5) 

£m 

Average 
rate 

% 

Average 
balance(1) 

£m 

  
Interest(4) (5) 

£m 

Average 
rate 

% 
Assets       
Loans and advances to banks:       
- UK 20,851 61 0.59 29,770 70 0.47 
- Non-UK 11,302 14 0.25 4,862 8 0.33 
Loans and advances to customers:(3)       
- UK 186,180 3,297 3.54 190,736 3,506 3.68 
- Non-UK 5 - - 6 - - 
Debt securities:       
- UK 7,933 49 1.24 6,143 39 1.27 
- Non-UK - - - 289 1 0.69 
Total average interest-earning assets, interest income(2) 226,271 3,421 3.02 231,806 3,624 3.13 
Impairment loss allowances  (1,523) - - (1,792) - - 
Trading business 19,321 - - 26,320 - - 
Assets designated at FVTPL 2,815 - - 3,507 - - 
Other non-interest-earning assets 33,026 - - 41,621 - - 
Total average assets 279,910 - - 301,462 - - 
Non-UK assets as a % of total 4.04% - - 1.71% - - 
Liabilities       
Deposits by banks:       
- UK (7,242) (46) 1.27 (9,052) (84) 1.86 
- Non-UK (2) - - (2) - - 
Deposits by customers - retail demand:       
- UK (88,696) (593) 1.34 (83,951) (663) 1.58 
- Non-UK (698) (2) 0.57 (1,262) (11) 1.74 
Deposits by customers - retail time:       
- UK (33,436) (427) 2.55 (39,940) (583) 2.92 
- Non-UK (1,378) (12) 1.74 (3,549) (46) 2.59 
Deposits by customers – wholesale:       
- UK (25,299) (90) 0.71 (22,148) (177) 1.60 
- Non-UK - - - - - - 
Bonds and medium-term notes:       
- UK (46,764) (485) 2.07 (51,720) (554) 2.14 
- Non-UK (4,287) (5) 0.23 (4,357) (11) 0.50 
Dated and undated loan capital and other subordinated 

liabilities: 
      

- UK (4,390) (66) 3.01 (3,539) (84) 4.75 
- Non-UK - - - (243) (11) 9.05 
Other interest-bearing liabilities:       
- UK (627) (22) 7.02 (324) (9) 5.56 
Total average interest-bearing liabilities, interest expense(2) (212,819) (1,748) 1.64 (220,087) (2,233) 2.03 
Trading business (25,339) - - (31,460) - - 
Liabilities designated at FVTPL (4,085) - - (4,902) - - 
Non-interest-bearing liabilities:       
- Other (24,686) - - (31,921) - - 
Shareholders’ funds (12,981) - - (13,092) - - 
Total average liabilities and shareholders’ funds (279,910) - - (301,462) - - 
Non-UK liabilities as a % of total 2.27% - - 3.12% - - 
(1) Average balances are based upon monthly data. 
(2) The ratio of average interest-earning assets to interest-bearing liabilities for the six months ended 30 June 2014 was 106.32% (Six months ended 30 June 2013: 105.32%). 
(3) Loans and advances to customers include non-performing loans. See the “Credit Risk” section of the Risk Management Report. 
(4) The net interest margin for the six months ended 30 June 2014 was 1.48% (Six months ended 30 June 2013: 1.20%). Net interest margin is calculated as net interest income divided by average 

interest earning assets. This differs from the Banking Net Interest Margin, discussed on page 8, which is calculated as net interest income divided by average customer assets.  
(5) The interest spread for the six months ended 30 June 2014 was 1.38% (Six months ended 30 June 2013: 1.10%). Interest spread is the difference between the rate of interest earned on 

average interest-earning assets and the rate of interest paid on average interest-bearing liabilities. 
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This Risk Management Report contains information that forms an integral part of the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements,except 
as otherwise marked as unreviewed. 
 This Risk Management Report focuses on those areas that have changed significantly during the first half of 2014, and represents an 
update to the Risk Management Report in the 2013 Annual Report, with which it should be read in conjunction. The Risk Management Report in 
the 2013 Annual Report contains additional disclosures which have not changed significantly during the first half of 2014.  

 Santander UK plc 201



 

Detailed Business Review 

Risk Management Report continued 
 

4 Half Yearly Financial Repor 37Santander UK plc 201 t  

This Risk Management Report contains information that forms an integral part of the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. The 
information on pages 36 to 82 is within the scope of the review report of Deloitte LLP except for those items marked as unreviewed. This Risk 
Management Report should be read in conjunction with the Summary Risk Report on pages 11 to 14, which forms part of this Risk Management 
Report. 

 
RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
INTRODUCTION (unreviewed) 
 
As a significant financial services provider, risk is at the core of SantanderUK’s day-to-day activities. The understanding and control of risk is critical 
for the effective management of the business. Santander UK aims to employ a prudent approach and advanced risk management techniques to 
facilitate the delivery of robust financial performance, and ultimately build sustainable value for all our stakeholders, including our people, 
customers, shareholders and the communities in which we operate. 

Santander UK aims to maintain a predictable medium-low risk profile, consistent withits business model, which is key to the successful 
achievement of our strategic objectives set out in “Our Strategy and Business Model” on page 4, and pages 4 and 5 of the 2013 Annual Report. 

 
RISK FRAMEWORK  
 
The Risk Framework in place at 30 June 2014 was based upon the following key components: 
 

> Risk definition and structure; 
> Risk Culture, overriding principles and minimum standards; 
> Governance, roles and responsibilities; and 

System of internal control for risk. > 
 
In December 2013, the Board approved an updated Risk Framework which operated throughout the first half of 2014. The key risk types were 
simplified and the lines of defence model streamlined. There was no change to the overriding principles. The main changes were: 
 

> With respect to risk definition and structure, the key risk types were reorganised as: Credit, Traded Market, Balance Sheet Management 
(previously known as Structural) including Banking Market (previously known as Non-traded Market), Operational, Conduct, Regulatory 
and Legal, as set out diagrammatically below; and 

> The additional classification of financial / non-financial risks was removed;  
> With respect to governance, roles and responsibilities, a Conduct & Regulatory Risk Committee was created which reports to the 

Executive Risk Committee; and  
A Risk Culture statement was included. > 

 

Risk definition and structure 
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CREDIT RISK REVIEW 
 
SANTANDER UK GROUP EXPOSURE 
 
Maximum exposure and net exposure to credit risk 
 
The tables below set out the main differences between the Santander UK group’s maximum exposure and net exposure to credit risk. They show 
the effects of collateral, netting, and risk transfer to mitigate the Santander UK group’s exposure.  

For balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit risk represents the carrying value, including accrued interest, after allowance 
for impairment losses. Off-balance sheet exposures comprise guarantees, formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments. For off-
balance sheet guarantees, the maximum exposure is the maximum amount that Santander UK would have to pay if the guarantees were to be 
called upon. For formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments that are irrevocable over the life of the respective facilities, the 
maximum exposure is the full amount of the committed facilities. 

The tables presented below include only those financial assets subject to credit risk, and therefore exclude equity securities. 
Subsequent analyses of credit risk in this section cover loans and advances to customers and banks, at carrying value. 

 
30 June 2014 Maximum exposure     
 Balance 

sheet asset 
£bn 

Off-balance 
sheet  

£bn 
Collateral(1) 

£bn 
Netting(2) 

£bn 

Risk 
Transfer(3) 

£bn 

Net 
Exposure 

£bn 
Cash and balances at central banks 26.6 - - - - 26.6 
Trading assets:       
- Loans and advances to banks  6.2 - (2.3) (1.1) - 2.8 
- Loans and advances to customers  1.8 - (1.2) - - 0.6 
- Debt securities 7.5 - - - - 7.5 
Total trading assets 15.5 - (3.5) (1.1) - 10.9 
Financial assets designated at fair value:       
- Loans and advances to customers 2.2 0.2 (2.2) - - 0.2 
- Debt securities 0.5 - - - - 0.5 
Financial assets designated at fair value 2.7 0.2 (2.2) - - 0.7 
Available-for-sale debt securities 7.7 - - - - 7.7 
Derivative financial instruments  19.2 - (1.1) (15.3) - 2.8 
Loans and advances to banks  2.3 1.5 - - (0.1) 3.7 
Loans and advances to customers:       
- Advances secured on residential property   148.4 6.7 (155.0) - - 0.1 
- Corporate loans  26.3 13.7 (19.3) - - 20.7 
- Finance leases  3.2 - (2.3) - - 0.9 
- Other secured advances  2.2 0.2 (2.2) - - 0.2 
- Other unsecured advances 5.2 10.5 - - - 15.7 
- Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 0.8 - - - - 0.8 
Total loans and advances to customers 186.1 31.1 (178.8) - - 38.4 
Loans and receivables securities 0.9 - - - (0.1) 0.8 
Total 261.0 32.8 (185.6) (16.4) (0.2) 91.6 

 
31 December 2013 Maximum exposure     

 

Balance 
sheet asset 

£bn 

Off-balance 
sheet  

£bn 
Collateral(1) 

£bn 
Netting(2) 

£bn 

Risk 
Transfer(3) 

£bn 

Net 
Exposure 

£bn 
Cash and balances at central banks 26.4 - - - - 26.4 
Trading assets:       
- Loans and advances to banks  9.3 - (0.8) (3.4) - 5.1 
- Loans and advances to customers  4.4 - (4.2) - - 0.2 
- Debt securities 7.9 - - - - 7.9 
Total trading assets 21.6 - (5.0) (3.4) - 13.2 
Financial assets designated at fair value:       
- Loans and advances to customers 2.2 0.2 (2.3) - - 0.1 
- Debt securities 0.5 - - - - 0.5 
Financial assets designated at fair value 2.7 0.2 (2.3) - - 0.6 
Available-for-sale debt securities 5.0 - - - - 5.0 
Derivative financial instruments  20.0 - (1.7) (15.4) - 2.9 
Loans and advances to banks  2.3 - (0.3) - (0.1) 1.9 
Loans and advances to customers:       
- Advances secured on residential property   147.8 6.8 (154.3) - - 0.3 
- Corporate loans  24.9 13.2 (18.6) - - 19.5 
- Finance leases  3.1 - (2.2) - - 0.9 
- Other secured advances  2.7 0.2 (2.4) - - 0.5 
- Other unsecured advances 5.3 9.6 - - - 14.9 
- Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 0.8 - - - - 0.8 
Total loans and advances to customers 184.6 29.8 (177.5) - - 36.9 
Loans and receivables securities 1.1 - - - - 1.1 
Total 263.7 30.0 (186.8) (18.8) (0.1) 88.0 

(1) The forms of collateral which Santander UK takes to mitigate credit risk include: residential and commercial property; other physical assets, including motor vehicles; liquid securities, including 
those transferred under reverse repurchase agreements; cash, including that which is used to collateralise derivative transactions and receivables. In terms of exposure, charges on residential 
property represent the majority of collateral taken. 

(2) Credit risk exposures can be reduced by applying netting and set-off. SantanderUK uses this approach mainly for derivative and repurchase transactions with financial institutions. For 
derivatives transactions, SantanderUK uses standard master netting agreements (e.g. ISDA). These agreements allow for netting of credit risk exposure to a counterparty resulting from a 
derivative transaction against SantanderUK’s obligations to the counterparty in the event of default, to produce a lower net credit exposure. They may also reduce settlement exposure.  

(3) Certain financial instruments can be used to transfer credit risk from one counterparty to another. The main form of risk transfer employed by SantanderUK is through the use of credit 
default swaps. 



 

Detailed Business Review 

Risk Management Report continued 

 

Santander UK plc2014 Half Yearly Financial Repor   39 t

 

Credit quality 
 
Santander UK uses a single rating scale to provide a consistent approach for reporting default risk across all the credit risk portfolios. The scale is 
comprised of eight grades for non-defaulted exposures numbered from 9 (lowest risk) to 2 (highest risk). Each grade is defined by an upper and 
lower probability of default (‘PD’) value and is scaled so that the default risk increases by a factor of 10 for every 2 step reduction in the grade 
number. For example, risk grade 9 equates to an average PD of 0.01%, and risk grade 7 equates to an average PD of 0.1%. Defaulted exposures 
are assigned to grade 1 and a PD value of 100%.An approximation to the equivalent credit rating grade used by Standard and Poor’s Rating 
Services (‘S&P’) is shown in the final column of the table. 
 

 PDrange  

SantanderUK risk grade Mid 
% 

Lower 
% 

Upper 
% S&P equivalent 

9 0.010 0.000 0.021 AAA to AA- 
8 0.032 0.021 0.066 A+ to A 
7 0.100 0.066 0.208 A- to BBB+ 
6 0.316 0.208 0.658 BBB to BBB- 
5 1.000 0.658 2.081 BB+ to BB- 
4 3.162 2.081 6.581 B+ to B 
3 10.000 6.581 20.811 B- to CCC 
2 31.623 20.811 99.999 CC TO C 
1 Default 100.000 100.000 100.000 D 
 
The tables below set out the distribution across the credit rating scale for loans and advances to banks and customers. For further detail and 
commentary on the credit rating profiles of key portfolios, see pages 54 and 62 for Commercial Banking and Corporate Centre, respectively. 
 
30 June 2014 SantanderUK rating guide 
 9 8 7 6 5 4 1 to 3 Other(1) Total 
 (AAA toAA-) (A+ to A) (A- to BBB+) (BBB to BBB-) (BB+ to BB-) (B+ to B) (B- to D)   
 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 
Loans and advances to banks 384 726 1,205 1 - 9 - - 2,325 
Loans and advances to customers:          
- Advances secured on residential property 2,525 15,584 62,732 43,705 8,301 8,191 7,379 19 148,436 
- Corporate loans  1,722 3,234 3,171 9,033 5,652 2,562 700 264 26,338 
- Finance leases 2 13 259 789 797 898 401 33 3,192 
- Other secured advances 2 7 9 87 381 270 24 1,392 2,172 
- Other unsecured advances - 25 162 767 1,793 746 335 1,367 5,195 
- Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, 

associates & joint ventures 
576 - - 78 107 - - - 761 

Loans and advances to customers 4,827 18,863 66,333 54,459 17,031 12,667 8,839 3,075 186,094 
Total 5,211 19,589 67,538 54,460 17,031 12,676 8,839 3,075 188,419 
 
31 December 2013 SantanderUK rating guide 
 9 8 7 6 5 4 1 to 3 Other(1) Total 
 (AAA to AA-) (A+ to A) (A- to BBB+) (BBB to BBB-) (BB+ to BB-) (B+ to B) (B- to D)   
 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 
Loans and advances to banks 600 571 1,024 - 152 - - - 2,347 
Loans and advances to customers:          
- Advances secured on residential property 3,376 15,229 61,014 43,050 8,514 8,816 7,805 21 147,825 
- Corporate loans  1,824 3,050 3,658 8,215 4,807 2,435 623 223 24,835 
- Finance leases 2 13 410 747 726 805 371 40 3,114 
- Other secured advances 7 12 41 163 361 218 286 1,628 2,716 
- Other unsecured advances - 40 120 709 1,907 963 516 1,029 5,284 
- Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, 

associates & joint ventures 
648 - - - 153 - - 12 813 

Loans and advances to customers 5,857 18,344 65,243 52,884 16,468 13,237 9,601 2,953 184,587 
Total 6,457 18,915 66,267 52,884 16,620 13,237 9,601 2,953 186,934 
(1) Represents smaller cases predominantly within the commercial mortgages portfolio which are subject to scorecards rather than a rating model. 
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Non-performing loans and advances(1)(2) 
 
An analysis of Santander UK’s NPLs is presented below. 
 

 
30 June 2014 

£m 
31 December 2013 

£m 

Loans and advances to customers of which:(2) 188,470 187,048 
Customers in Arrears(3) 3,172 3,431 
NPLs - impaired(3)(4) 1,643 1,467 
NPLs - not impaired(3) 2,048 2,356 
Total NPLs 3,691 3,823 
Total impairment loss allowances 1,499 1,555 
 % % 
Arrears ratio(5) 1.68 1.83 
NPL ratio(6) 1.96 2.04 
Coverage ratio(7) 41 41 
(1) Loans and advances are classified as non-performing as described in the footnotes to the tables on pages 47, 56 and 64 for Mortgage loans, Commercial Banking loans and Corporate Centre 

loans, respectively. 
(2) Loans and advances to customers include social housing loans and finance leases, and exclude trading assets. 
(3) All balances are UK and continue accruing interest. For the data presented, the balances include interest charged to the customer’s account, but exclude interest accrued but not yet charged 

to the account. 
(4) NPLs against which an impairment loss allowance has been established. 
(5) Loans and advances to customers in arrears as a percentage of loans and advances to customers. 
(6) NPLs as a percentage of loans and advances to customers. 
(7) Impairment loss allowances as a percentage of NPLs. 

 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013 (unreviewed) 
During the first half of 2014, the NPL ratio of 1.96% (2013: 2.04%), continued to improve, with retail and corporate loans performing in line 
with our expectations. The reduction in the NPL ratio resulted largely from improvements in the economic environment and prolonged low 
interest rates. In Retail Banking, this was coupled with improved collections efficiencies introduced both in 2013 and the first half of 2014, a 
decrease in mortgage NPLs and increase in mortgage asset, higher credit quality in the newer 1|2|3 Current Account customers and unsecured 
personal loans. These decreases were partially offset by the increase in NPL stock in Commercial Banking largely due to a single long-standing 
loan of £89m which moved to non-performance. A successful restructure of this loan is still anticipated and a conservative provision is held 
against it. 

Loans and advances to customers in arrears and the arrears ratio decreased to £3,172m (2013: £3,431m) and 1.68% (2013: 1.83%), 
respectively, as a result of the improving economy and as Santander UK continued to execute the strategy of exiting problem exposures through 
sale of the debt or through the realisation of the collateral. This decrease was partially offset by the increase in customers in arrears in 
Commercial Banking due to the same single long-standing loan noted above. 
 The coverage ratio remained unchanged at 41% (2013: 41%). 
 
Ratio of write-offs to average loans (annualised) 
 
 30 June 2014 

% 
31 December 2013 

% 

Ratio of write-offs to average loans during the period/year 0.29 0.43 
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Concentrations of credit risk exposures 
 
The management of risk concentration is a key part of risk management. Santander UK tracks the degree of concentration of its credit risk 
portfolios using various criteria, including geographic areas and countries, economic sectors, products and groups of customers. Although 
SantanderUK’s operations are based mainly in the UK, it has built up exposures to various entities around the world and is therefore exposed to 
concentrations of risk related to geographic area. These are further analysed below: 
 
Geographic concentrations 
 
As part of its approach to credit risk management and risk appetite, Santander UK sets exposure limits to countries and certain geographic areas. 
These limits are set by SantanderUKwith reference to the country limits set by Banco Santander, S.A. These are determined according to the 
classification of the country (whether it is a developed OECD country or not), the rating of the country, its gross domestic product and the type 
of business activities and products the Banco Santander group wishes to engage in within that country. 

The tables below set out the distribution, by geographic area, of loans and advances to banks and customers. 
 

UK 
Peripheral 

eurozone(1) 
Rest of 

eurozone 
Rest of 
Europe US 

Rest of 
world Total 

30 June 2014 

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m 
Loans and advances to banks 1,882 16 8 12 359 48 2,325 
Loans and advances to customers:        
- Advances secured on residential property 148,436 - - - - - 148,436 
- Corporate loans 24,236 400 345 635 134 588 26,338 
- Finance leases 3,189 - - 3 - - 3,192 
- Other secured advances 2,172 - - - - - 2,172 
- Other unsecured advances 5,195 - - - - - 5,195 
- Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 761 - - - - - 761 
Loans and advances to customers 183,989 400 345 638 134 588 186,094 
Total 185,871 416 353 650 493 636 188,419 
 

UK 
Peripheral 

eurozone(1) 
Rest of 

eurozone 
Rest of 
Europe US 

Rest of 
world Total 

31 December 2013 

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m 
Loans and advances to banks 1,528 68 62 222 415 52 2,347 
Loans and advances to customers:        
- Advances secured on residential property 147,825 - - - - - 147,825 
- Corporate loans 22,705 263 157 734 159 817 24,835 
- Finance leases 3,106 4 - 4 - - 3,114 
- Other secured advances 2,716 - - - - - 2,716 
- Other unsecured advances 5,284 - - - - - 5,284 
- Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 813 - - - - - 813 
Loans and advances to customers 182,449 267 157 738 159 817 184,587 
Total 183,977 335 219 960 574 869 186,934 
(1) Peripheral eurozone comprises Cyprus, Greece, Ireland, Italy, Portugal and Spain. 
 
For additional geographic information and commentary, see “Country Risk Exposures” on pages 78 to 82. 
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Credit risk exposures by industry 
 
As part of its approach to credit risk management and risk appetite, SantanderUK sets exposure limits to certain key industry sectors. The tables 
below set out the distribution, by industry sector, of loans and advances to banks and customers. The data is presented gross of impairment loss 
allowances, with the total impairment loss allowance shown separately. 
 

Social 
Housing Banks SME(1) Real estate(1) Transport Residential 

Cards and 
unsecured  

personal 
lending Other Total 

30 June 2014 
 

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 
Loans and advances to banks - 2,325 - - - - - - 2,325 
Loans and advances to customers:          
- Advances secured on residential property - - - - - 149,022 - - 149,022 
- Corporate loans 5,523 - 10,237 3,369 519 - - 7,098 26,746 
- Finance leases - - - - 1,076 - - 2,164 3,240 
- Other secured advances - - 881 - - - - 1,480 2,361 
- Other unsecured advances - - - - - - 5,463 - 5,463 
- Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, 

associates & joint ventures 
- - - - - - - 761 761 

Loans and advances to customers (gross) 5,523 - 11,118 3,369 1,595 149,022 5,463 11,503 187,593 
Less: impairment loss allowance         (1,499) 
Loans and advances to customers (net)         186,094 
Total         188,419 
 

(1) Real estate SMEs are included in the ‘Real estate’ column. 

Social 
Housing Banks SME(1) Real estate(1) Transport Residential 

Cards and  
unsecured 

personal 
lending Other Total 

31 December 2013 
 

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 
Loans and advances to banks - 2,347 - - - - - - 2,347 
Loans and advances to customers:          
- Advances secured on residential property - - - - - 148,418 - - 148,418 
- Corporate loans 5,763 - 10,372 3,602 746 - - 4,756 25,239 
- Finance leases - - - - 1,110 - - 2,048 3,158 
- Other secured advances - - 1,001 - - - - 1,944 2,945 
- Other unsecured advances - - - - - - 5,569 - 5,569 
- Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, 

associates & joint ventures 
- - - - - - - 813 813 

Loans and advances to customers (gross) 5,763 - 11,373 3,602 1,856 148,418 5,569 9,561 186,142 
Less: impairment loss allowance         (1,555) 
Loans and advances to customers(net)         184,587 
Total         186,934 

 
For additional industry information, see “Country Risk Exposures” on pages 78 to 82. 
 
Forbearance summary  
 
The following tables provide a summary of the population of loans and advances to customers which have been subject to forbearance 
programmes and are included in the previous tables. Discussion and analysis of forbearance activities for mortgages in Retail Banking are set out 
on page 49. Discussion and analysis of forbearance activities in Commercial Banking and Corporate Centre are set out on pages 57 and 65 
respectively. 
 
30June 2014 Forbearance of NPL Forbearance of non-NPL Total 
 £m £m £m 
Retail Banking:    

- Mortgages 710 3,287 3,997 
- Unsecured loans 2 4 6 
- Credit cards 34 - 34 
- Bank accounts 1 13 14 
  

161 
 

666 
 

827 Commercial Banking  
Corporate Centre  51 312 363 
Total 959 4,282 5,241 
 
31 December 2013 Forbearance of NPL Forbearance of non-NPL Total 
 £m £m £m 
Retail Banking:    

- Mortgages 691 3,396 4,087 
- Unsecured loans 2 7 9 
- Credit cards 33 - 33 
- Bank accounts 2 15 17 

    
Commercial Banking  196 728 924 
Corporate Centre  58 322 380 
Total 982 4,468 5,450 
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CREDIT RISK – RETAIL BANKING 
 
RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGES 
 
In the following chart, gross lending includes both new business and, shown separately, further advances and any flexible mortgage drawdown 
against available limits. The redemptions and paydowns refer to customer payments, over-payments, clearing mortgage balances or re-financing 
away from Santander UK.The data excludes accrued interest and is presented gross of impairment loss allowances. 

The following is a pictorial representation of the data in the table below. 
 

 
An analysis of mortgage asset movements during the first half of 2014 is presented below: 
 
 £m 
At 1 January 2014 148,079 
New business 12,246 
Further advances/flexi drawdowns 601 
Redemptions/paydowns (12,246) 

148,680 At 30June 2014 
 
In addition, during the first half of 2014 there were internal transfers of £8.0bn (six months ended 31 December 2013: £10.1bn; six months 
ended 30 June 2013: £8.3bn) where we were successful in the targeted retention of customers on new Santander UK mortgages. 

 

t



 

Detailed Business Review 

Risk Management Report continued 
 

44  Santander UK plc 2014 Half Yearly Financial Report  

BORROWER AND PRODUCT PROFILE 
 
In the following chart, the category ‘home movers’ includes both existing customers moving house and taking out a new mortgage with us, and 
customers who move their mortgage to us at the point they move home. The category ‘re-mortgagers’comprises external customers re-
mortgaging to Santander UK only. Internal re-mortgages, further advances and any flexible mortgages drawdowns are not included in the new 
business figures below. 

 

19% 22%

42%
45%

37% 29%

4%

Stock New Business

30 June 2014 (unreviewed)

First-time buyers Home movers Remortgagers Buy To Let

£54,279m

£63,045m

£28,845m

£3,573m

£5,557m

£2,671m

£148,680m £12,246m

£2,511m £445m
2%

 
 

19% 20%

43%
49%

37% 28%

3%

Stock New Business

31 December 2013 (unreviewed)

First-time buyers Home movers Remortgagers Buy To Let

£54,913m

£28,558m

£148,079 £17,235m

£62,407m £8,533m

£148,079 £17,235m

£4,861m

£17,235m

£2,201m

£3,409m

£432m
1%

 
 
 

 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
During the first half of 2014, the proportion of new business arising from first-time buyers increased from 20% to 22% driven by the Help to 
Buy scheme, under which Santander UK lent £450m in the period. The Help to Buy scheme supports borrowers who have smaller deposits by 
guaranteeing a proportion of their loan, enabling lenders taking part to offer home buyers more higher LTV mortgages (from 80% to 95% LTV) 
without increasing the credit risk profile of the lending.In addition,the proportion of remortgagers increased from 28% to29%, balanced by a 
corresponding decrease in the proportion ofhome movers.The remortgage trend seen in 2013 continued, as borrowers seek to move to incentive 
products ahead of anticipated increases in market interest rates. Buy-to-let new business increased from 3% to 4%, in line with the strategy to 
expand this line of business in a controlled manner. The average earnings multiple of new business (at inception) remained stable during the first 
half of 2014at3.07 (2013: 3.04). There were smaller movements in the mix of buyer type in the mortgage asset stock figures, which was also 
influenced by redemptions and repayments. Overall,the mix was relatively stable, with only a slight decrease in the remortgagers. 
 
Product and interest rate profile 
 

30 June 2014 31 December 2013 
 £m % £m % 
Term Product – Fixed Rate 63,232 42 56,672 39 
Term Product – Tracker 4,357 3 5,956 4 
Standard Variable Rate (‘SVR’) (1) 47,320 32 51,490 35 
Base Rate Linked 15,319 10 15,260 10 
Flexi(2) 15,706 11 16,245 11 
Buy-to-let 2,511 2 2,201 1 
Other 235 - 255 - 
Total 148,680 100 148,079 100 
(1) Excludes Buy-to-let on SVR of £807m (2013: £841m) included in the Buy-to-let line. 
(2) In addition, there were £6,804m(2013: £7,469m) of legacy Alliance & Leicester flexible loan products included in other categories as the product flexibility is more limited than the current 

Santander UK flexi loan product. 
 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
During the first half of 2014, the migration away from tracker mortgages to fixed rate products witnessed in 2013 continued. This 
reflectedpotential borrowers’ concerns over future interest rate movements, and the increased availability of competitively priced fixed rate 
products. This was also reflected in the proportion of existing customers paying the standard variable rate decreasing by 3percentage points to 
32%at30 June 2014 (2013: 35%). 

http://www.helptobuy.org.uk/mortgage-guarantee/is-your-lender-in-the-scheme
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GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION  
 
The new business data in the following tables corresponds to new business originated during each of the reported periods. For the first half of 
2014, the Council of Mortgage Lenders (‘CML’)new business data in the table below coversthe threemonths ended31 March2014, due to timing 
of data availability. For 2013, the CML new business data covers the twelve months ended 31 December 2013.The percentage shown is on a 
value weighted basis. 
 

30 June 2014 
Stock New business 

(unreviewed) 
CML new business  

UK Region % % % 
North East 3 3 3 
North West  8 7 7 
Yorkshire and the Humber 5 5 6 
East Midlands  4 4 6 
West Midlands  6 5 6 
East of England 4 4 3 
Greater London 27 31 23 
South East excluding Greater London 24 25 28 
South West 8 9 8 
Wales  3 2 3 
Scotland  5 4 6 
Northern Ireland  3 1 1 
 100 100 100 

 
31 December 2013 

Stock New business 
(unreviewed) 

CML new business  
UK Region % % % 
North East 3 2 3 
North West  8 7 7 
Yorkshire and the Humber 5 5 6 
East Midlands  4 4 6 
West Midlands  6 5 6 
East of England 4 4 3 
Greater London 27 32 23 
South East excluding Greater London 24 25 27 
South West 8 9 8 
Wales  3 2 3 
Scotland  5 4 7 
Northern Ireland  3 1 1 
 100 100 100 

 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
Geographically, whilst Santander UK has a diverse footprint across the UK, our mortgage exposure continues to reflect a concentration around 
the South East including Greater London, representing approximately half the value of the total portfolio. The concentration is a result of both 
the natural effect of a greater housing density and higher than average house prices in this area, coupled with a new business market share 
around 10% higher than the industry average as a whole.  

Duringthe first half of 2014, the mortgage asset stock distribution by region was broadly unchanged, whilst for new business there 
was a marginal decrease in the proportion of lending in Greater London. 
 
Exposures to larger loans 
 
Exposures to larger loans across the UK remain at a low level with the total mortgage asset stock of larger mortgage loansat 30 June 2014 and 
31 December 2013, as follows: 
 

Stock South East including Greater London UK 
 30 June 2014 31 December 2013 30 June 2014 31 December 2013 
Individual mortgage loan size £m £m £m £m 
£0.5m - £1m 4,530 3,809 5,449 4,683 
£1m - £2m 627 461 685 510 
> £2m 86 59 93 66 

 
Average loan size for new business 
 
The average loan size for new business during the six months ended 30 June 2014 and the year ended 31 December 2013 was as follows:  

 
New business Six months ended 

30 June 2014 
Year ended 

31 December 2013 
UK Region £’000 £’000 
South East including Greater London 226 205 
Rest of the UK 123 118 
UK as a whole 166 155 
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LOAN-TO-VALUE ANALYSIS 
 

The following table sets out the Loan-to-Value distribution for mortgage asset stock, non-performing stock and new business. The LTV 
calculation includes fees added to the loan, and, where the product is on flexible terms, only includes the drawn loan amount, not undrawn 
limits. The valuation is based on the results of an automated valuation modelling or HPI indexed values, as appropriate. This re-valuation of the 
book is undertaken on a quarterly basis. 

Of the loans in negative equity, the total which is effectively uncollateralised, before taking account of any loan loss allowances, was 
£640mat 30June 2014(2013: £838m). The collateral value shown excludes the impact of over-collateralisation i.e. where the collateral held is of 
a higher value than the loan balanceoutstanding. 

 
30 June 2014 Stock of which: 

 
 

% 
NPL Stock 

% 
New Business 

% 
<=50% 32 21 17 
>50 - 55% 7 5 5 
>55 - 60% 8 6 6 
>60 - 65% 9 7 7 
>65 - 70% 10 7 11 
>70 - 75% 9 8 13 
>75 - 80% 7 8 16 
>80 - 85% 6 8 10 
>85 - 90% 4 6 11 
>90 - 95% 3 6 4 
>95 - 100% 2 4 - 
> 100% i.e. negative equity 3 14 - 
 100 100 100 
Collateral value of residential properties(1) £148,040m £2,572m £12,246m 
    
 % % % 
Simple average(2)loan-to-value (indexed) 49 57 65 
Value weighted average(3)loan-to-value (indexed) 45 52 60 
 
31 December 2013 Stock of which: 

 
 

%  
NPL Stock 

% 
New Business 

% 
<=50% 29 18 19 
>50 - 55% 7 4 6 
>55 - 60% 7 5 6 
>60 - 65% 9 6 8 
>65 - 70% 10 6 12 
>70 - 75% 9 8 14 
>75 - 80% 8 8 13 
>80 - 85% 7 8 10 
>85 - 90% 5 8 12 
>90 - 95% 3 6 - 
>95 - 100% 2 6 - 
> 100% i.e. negative equity 4 17 - 
 100 100 100 
Collateral value of residential properties(1) £147,241m £2,678m £17,234m 
    
 % % % 
Simple average(2)loan-to-value (indexed) 51 61 62 
Value weighted average(3)loan-to-value (indexed) 47 57 58 
(1) Includescollateral against loans in negative equity of £4,190m at 30June 2014 (2013: £5,394m). 
(2) Unweighted average of loan-to-value of all accounts. 
(3) Sum of all loan values divided by sum of all valuations. 
 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
During the first half of 2014, the LTV profile of new business marginally shifted towards higher LTVsprimarily as a consequence of the positive 
market conditions and propositions such as the UK Government’s Help to Buy scheme. The Help to Buy scheme was a significant factor in the 
increase of 90% to 95% LTV new business from 0% to 4% in theperiod, in line with our plans. 

During the first half of 2014, the LTV profile of mortgage asset stock improved primarily as a result of house price increases, although 
there were regional variations, as well as the effect of regular capital repayments. House price increases positively impacted LTV by more than 
1% in the Midlands, East and South East of England, Northern Ireland and Greater London. 
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CREDIT PERFORMANCE 
 

30 June  
2014 

31 December 
2013 

 £m £m 
Mortgage loans and advances to customers 148,680 148,079 
Performing loans(1) 143,791 142,806 
Early arrears: (2) (4) 2,140 2,394 

- 31 to 60 days 1,282 1,424 
- 61 to 90 days 858 970 

Performing loans that are impaired(5) 386 354 
Loans in early arrears that are impaired excluding NPLs(5) 174 149 
  

2,657 
 

Non-performing loans: (3) (4) 2,788 
- By Arrears 2,346 2,558 
- By Bankruptcy 48 55 
- By Maturity default 201 146 
- By Forbearance 62 29 

Properties In Possession (‘PIP’)(5) 92 91 
(1) Includes £4,535mof mortgages (2013: £5,040m) where the counterparty failed to make a payment when contractually due for 30 days or less and excludes bankruptcy, maturity default and 

forbearance NPL. 
(2)Includes maturity default balances that are 1 or 2 months past the end of their term. Excludes bankruptcy, maturity default and forbearance NPL. 
(3) Mortgages are classified as non-performing when the counterparty fails to make a payment when contractually due for typically three months or longer, or where the account is in early 

arrears (31 – 90 days) and has a bankruptcy indicator, or if the account is a maturity default where the loan or part thereof contractually matured over three months ago and a balance 
remains, or if the accounthas been forborne whilst in a non-performing state but which has yet to make sufficient payments to merit exit from NPL, or certain multiple forbearance. 

(4) All mortgage balances are UK and continue accruing interest. The balances include interest charged to the customer’s account, but exclude interest accrued but not yet charged to the 
account. The interest accrued for accounts in early arrears (31 – 90 days) and non-performing loans are included in performing loans.  

(5) Retail loans are generally collectively assessed for impairment. Assets reported as impaired represent, for collective assessment, that portion of the loan portfolio where it is estimated that a 
loss has been incurred, plus those assets individually impaired (i.e. PIP). 

 
Non-performing loans and advances (1) (2) 
 
An analysis of mortgage NPLs is presented below. 
 

 

30 June  
2014 

£m 

31 December 
2013 

£m 
Mortgage loans and advances to customers of which:(2) 148,680 148,079 
Mortgage Arrears excluding NPLs(3) 2,140 2,394 
MortgageNPLs - impaired(3)(4) 640 468 
MortgageNPLs - not impaired(3) 2,017 2,320 
Mortgage NPLs 2,657 2,788 
Impairment loss allowances 586 593 
 % % 
Arrears ratio(5) 1.44 1.62 
NPL ratio(6) 1.79 1.88 
Coverage ratio(7) 22 21 
(1) Mortgages are classified as non-performing when the counterparty fails to make a payment when contractually due for typically three months or longer, or where the account is in early 

arrears (31 – 90 days) and has a bankruptcy indicator, or if the account is a maturity default where the loan or part thereof contractually matured over three months ago and a balance 
remains, or if the account has been forborne whilst in a non-performing state but which has yet to make sufficient payments to merit exit from NPL, or certain multiple forbearance. 

(2) Mortgage loans and advances to customers include Social Housing loans and finance leases.  
(3) All mortgage balances are UK and continue accruing interest. The balances include interest charged to the customer’s account, but exclude interest accrued but not yet charged to the 

account. The interest accrued for account in early arrears (31 – 90 days) and non-performing loans are included in performing loans.  
(4) NPLs against which an impairment loss allowance has been established. 
(5) Mortgage loans and advances to customers in arrears as a percentage of mortgage loans and advances to customers. 
(6) Mortgage NPLs as a percentage of mortgage loans and advances to customers. 
(7) Impairment loss allowances as a percentage of NPLs. 
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Movements in NPLs during the period are set out in the graph below.  
> ‘Transfers in’ represent loans which have become classified as NPLs during the year, comprising: 
 > Entries: cases where the arrears increased to 91 days or more past due, specific types of maturity default, bankruptcy or 

forbearance; and 
 > Policy entries: cases that entered the NPL classification due to a change in policy in the year. 

 
> ‘Transfers out’ represent loans which have left the NPL classification during the year, comprising: 
 > Exits: cases where the arrears reduced to less than 91 days past due, as well as loan repayments/redemptions; and 
 > PIP exits: cases that moved from non-performing and into possession, including any written-off portion. Write-offs represent the 

unrecovered element of a loan where recovery options, including realisation of any collateral, have been exhausted. 
 

Forbearance activity does not result in a change in the NPL status. 
 
The following is a pictorial representation of the data in the table below. 
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An analysis of the NPL movements during the first half of 2014 is presented below: 
 
 £m 
At 1 January 2014 2,788 
Transfers in to NPL:  
- Entries 772 
- Policy entries 24 
Transfers out of NPL:  
- PIP exits (100) 
- Exits (827) 
At 30 June 2014 2,657 
 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
During the first half of 2014, the mortgage asset NPL stock decreased to £2,657m(2013: £2,788m). This reduction resulted largely from 
improvements in the economic environment and prolonged low interest rates, coupled with improved collections efficiencies introduced both in 
2013 and the first half of 2014.The mortgage NPL ratio decreased to 1.79% at 30 June2014 (2013: 1.88%) reflecting a decrease in mortgage 
NPLs and increase in mortgage asset. The decrease in mortgage NPLs reflected the good credit quality of the portfolio, supported by the 
improving economic environment for UK households, with low interest rates, rising house prices and falling unemployment.We remain aware 
that these trends may not continue and we take account of this in setting our provisions. There was a small increase in mortgage NPLs on 
maturity defaults (i.e. interest-only mortgages that remain outstanding more than 90 days after contractual maturity), in line with our 
expectations. 

The improving economy also helped to contribute to a reduction in the level of early arrears (31-90 days), as well as in the proportion of 
impaired loans. However, the economic recovery remains at an early stage, and a conservative stance was therefore maintained in the 
provisioning policy. This included allowances made for losses which could stem from factors including regional variation in the risk profile, 
changes to regulation and contractual maturity defaults. 
 
In the first half of 2014, interest income recognised on impaired loans amounted to £42m (six months ended 30 June 2013: £43m). 
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FORBEARANCE 
 
Forbearance commenced during the period/year(1) (2) 
 
The balances that entered forbearance during the period ended 30June 2014 and year ended 31 December 2013analysed by type of forbearance 
applied, were: 
 
 30 June 2014 30 June 2014 31 December 2013 31 December 2013 
 £m % £m % 
Capitalisation 141 41 130 31 
Term extensions 137 40 168 39 
Interest-only 63 19 128 30 
 341 100 426 100 
(1) Mortgages are included within the period/year that they were forborne. 
(2) The figures by period/year reflect the amount of forbearance activity undertaken during the period/year irrespective of whether any forbearance activity has previously been undertaken on the 

forborne accounts. 

 
Forbearance cumulative position 
 
a) Performance status when entering forbearance 
The forborne balances at 30 June 2014and 31 December 2013when they originally entered forbearance, analysed by type of forbearance 
applied, were: 
 
30 June 2014(1) Capitalisation Term extension Interest-only Total 

 £m £m £m £m 
Forbearance of NPL 311 85 314 710 
Forbearance of Non-NPL 1,387 858 1,042 3,287 
Total 1,698 943 1,356 3,997 

 
31 December 2013(1) Capitalisation Term extension Interest-only Total 

 £m £m £m £m 
Forbearance of NPL 290 77 324 691 
Forbearance of Non-NPL 1,426 892 1,078 3,396 
Total 1,716 969 1,402 4,087 
(1) Forbearance type categorisation is based on the first forbearance activity undertaken on the accounts. Tables contain only open accounts at the end of the period/year. 

 
b) Performancestatus at the period/year-end 
The forborne balancesanalysed by type of forbearance applied at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013 were: 
 
30 June 2014(1) 

Capitalisation Term extension Interest-only Total 
Impairment 

allowance 
 £m £m £m £m £m 

In arrears (including NPLs) 453 162 445 1,060 71 
Performing (2) 1,245 781 911 2,937 42 
Total 1,698 943 1,356 3,997 113 
Proportion of portfolio 1.1% 0.6% 0.9% 2.7% - 
 
31 December 2013(1) 

Capitalisation Term extension Interest-only Total 
Impairment 

allowance 
 £m £m £m £m £m 

In arrears(including NPLs) 499 181 495 1,175 68 
Performing (2) 1,217 788 907 2,912 62 
Total 1,716 969 1,402 4,087 130 
Proportion of portfolio 1.2% 0.7% 0.9% 2.8% - 

(1) Forbearance type categorisation is based on the first forbearance activity undertaken on the accounts. Tables contain only open accounts at the end of the period/year. 
(2) Where a loan has been classed as performing it will be continue to be classed as forborne for the duration of the life of the account. 
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30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
The average monthly level of forbearance commenced in the first half of 2014 increased due to a higher level of capitalisations. The level of 
capitalisations increased due to improvements in the efficiency of the capitalisation process, enabling decisions on capitalisation to be made more 
rapidly, but the levels of inflows were still significantly below that observed prior to 2013.  

At 30 June 2014, the stock of mortgage accounts that had their term extended or converted to interest-only was relatively 
stable,amounting to 1.5% of all mortgage accounts by value (2013: 1.6%). 

Levels of adherence to revised payment terms agreed under Santander UK’s forbearance arrangementsimproved during the first half of 
2014 to approximately 78% by value (2013: 75%) and 79% by volume (2013: 77%) of the accounts in forbearance. The high percentage of 
these accounts performing supports Santander UK’s view that its forbearance arrangements provide an important tool to improve the prospects 
of recovery of amounts owed. In addition, it is likely that some of the accounts which were in early arrears at the time of the initial forbearance 
would have otherwise deteriorated into a non-performing state.  

At 30 June 2014, the proportion of accounts that had been in forbearance for more than six months that had made their last six 
months’ contractual payments increased slightly to83% (2013: 82%). Furthermore, the accounts in forbearance classified as performing 
remained stable at just over £2.9bn or 73.5% by value (2013: £2.9bn or 71% by value). The weighted average LTV of all accounts in 
forbearance was 39.8% (2013: 42.0%) compared to the weighted average portfolio LTV of 43.6% (2013: 46.7%). Those accounts that reach 
the end of the concessionary forbearance period continue to show a good propensity to return to full repayments in accordance with the original 
contractual terms after the period of financial difficulty has passed. 

At 30June 2014, impairment loss allowances as a percentage of the balance of accounts for the overall mortgage portfolio was 0.39% 
(2013: 0.40%). The equivalent ratio for accounts in forbearance which were performing was 1.42% (2013: 2.13%), and for accounts in 
forbearance which were in arrears was 6.68% (2013: 5.79%). The higher ratios for accounts in forbearance reflected the higher levels of 
impairment loss allowances held, as a result of the higher risk characteristics inherent in such accounts. 

Multiple forbearance is intended to recognise when an agreed plan to mitigate the customer’s financial difficulty has failed and an 
alternative plan is required. Customers that have more than one forbearance event in a given year or more than three events in any rolling five 
year period are classified as multiple forbearance. At 30 June 2014, the carrying value of mortgage loans classified as multiple forbearance 
increased to £78m (2013: £67m) mainly due to increased capitalisation activities and on-going activities on interest-only accounts that have 
reached maturity with a balance still remaining. 
 
Other changes in contractual terms 
 
In addition, £6.8bn(2013: £7.3bn)of loans have been modified since January 2008. On these accounts, the modifications are not considered to 
have been forbearance as the borrowers were not exhibiting signs of being in financial difficulty. These modifications were entered into in order 
to retain the customer relationship. The performance and profile of the additional modifications is kept under review. At 30June 2014: 
 
> The average LTV was 46% (2013: 49%) and 96% (2013: 93%) of accounts had paid their contractual monthly payment during the 

previous six months. 
 

> The proportion of accounts three or more monthly payments in arrears was 1.65% (2013: 1.68%), which continued to beconsistent 
with the rest of the portfolio. 

 
Financial assets that would otherwise be past due or impaired 
At 30 June 2014, the carrying amount of financial assets that would otherwise be past due or impaired whose terms have been forborne was 
£2,952m(2013: £2,930m). 
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HIGHER RISK LOANS AND OTHER SEGMENTS OF PARTICULAR INTEREST 

 
There are some mortgage types of particular interest or which present higher risks than others. These mortgages consist of: 
 
> Interest-only loans; 
> Flexible loans; 
> Loans with loan-to-value >100%; and 
> Buy-to-let loans. 
 
The arrears performance of these mortgages has continued to be relatively stable during the first half of 2014 with arrears and loss rates 
remaining low. 
 
Borrower profile(1) 
 

Stock New Business 30 June 2014 
£m 

47,446 
£m 

Full interest-only loans 1,459 
Part interest-only, part repayment loans(2) 15,442 1,370 
Flexi loans   15,706 416 
Other flexible loans(3) 6,804 - 
Loans with current LTV > 100% 4,830 - 
Buy-to-let 2,511 445 
Interest-only and >100% current LTV 3,457 - 
 

Stock New Business 31 December 2013 
£m £m 

Full interest-only loans 49,318 2,151 
Part interest-only, part repayment loans(2) 15,534 

16,245 
1,693 
1,172 Flexi loans   

Other flexible loans(3) 7,469 - 
Loans with current LTV > 100% 6,202 1 
Buy-to-let 2,201 432 
Interest-only and >100% current LTV 4,336 - 
(1) Where a loan exhibits more than one of the criteria, it is included in all the applicable categories.  
(2) Mortgage balance includes both the interest-only element of £10,686m(2013: £9,564m) and the non-interest only element of the loan. 
(3) Legacy Alliance & Leicester flexible loan products with more limited flexibility than the current Santander UK flexi loan product. 
 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
The proportion of new business in the first half of 2014 that was pure interest-only remained stable at 12% (2013: 12%).Lending with a mixture 
of interest-only and capital and interest repayment increased from 10% to 11%, continuing the trend from 2013 as the maximum allowable LTV 
for this type of lending was increased to 75% towards the end of 2012whilst maintaining the maximum allowable LTV for the interest-only 
element of the mortgage at 50%. 

The proportion of flexible loans new business decreased to 3% (2013: 7%), whilst Buy-to-let lending in the first half of 2014 increased 
slightly to 3.6% (2013: 2.5%) in line with the strategy to expand this line of business in a controlled manner. 

From a mortgage asset stock perspective, loans with a current LTV greater than 100% decreased to 3% (2013: 4%) driven by 
improving house prices. 
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Credit performance 
 
30 June 2014  Segment of particular interest(1)  

  Total 
Interest  
-only(2) 

Flexible 
Loans(3) 

Loan to Value 
> 100% Buy-to-let 

Other 
 Portfolio(4) 

 £m £m £m £m £m £m 
Mortgage portfolio 148,680 62,888 22,510 4,830 2,511 75,093 
Performing 143,791 59,922 22,070 4,234 2,474 73,521 
Early arrears:       

- 31 to 60 days 1,282 761 90 105 10 491 
- 61 to 90 days 858 516 65 82 6 321 

Non-performing loans  2,657 1,629 280 367 20 742 
NPL ratio 1.79% 2.59% 1.24% 7.60% 0.80% 0.99% 
Properties in possession 92 60 5 42 1 18 
 
31 December 2013  Segment of particular interest(1)  

  Total 
Interest  
-only(2) 

Flexible 
Loans (3) 

Loan to Value  
> 100% Buy-to-let 

Other 
 Portfolio (4) 

 £m £m £m £m £m £m 
Mortgage portfolio 148,079 64,852 23,714 6,202 2,201 71,554 
Performing  142,806 61,644 23,260 5,442 2,161 69,872 
Early arrears:       

- 31 to 60 days  1,424 837 111 140 11 538 
- 61 to 90 days  970 585 69 107 7 355 

Non-performing loans  2,788 1,723 269 471 21 773 
NPL ratio 1.88% 2.66% 1.13% 7.59% 0.95% 1.08% 
Properties in possession 91 63 5 42 1 16 
(1)  Where a loan exhibits more than one segment of particular interest, it is included in all applicable categories. As a result, the sum of the mortgage arrears in the segments of particular 

interest will not agree to the total mortgage arrears.  
(2) Interest-only loan segment contains both full interest-only and part-interest-only loans. 
(3)  Includes legacy Alliance & Leicester flexible loan products with more limited flexibility than the current Santander UK flexi loan product. 
(4)  Includes other loans that are not in any segment of particular interest. 

 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
At 30 June 2014, the NPL ratio decreased from 1.88% to 1.79% due to a reduction in NPL stock. Interest-only and loans with acurrent LTV over 
100% have a higher than average NPL ratio. The decrease in the NPLratio for interest-only loans in the first half of 2014 was in line with the 
overall reduction in NPL stock. The NPL ratio for loans with an LTV > 100% increased slightly in the first half of 2014 due to a reduction in stock 
in this segment driven by the house prices increases. The buy-to-let portfolio remained better than average quality, as did the flexible loans 
portfolio. 

A flexible mortgage loan permits customers to “drawdown” additional funds at any time up to a predefined credit limit. By utilising 
the drawdown on their available funds customers are able to vary their monthly payments, or take payment holidays. A customer’s ability to 
drawdown is subject to certain predetermined conditions, as described on page 80 of the 2013 Annual Report. Customer limits are actively 
managed where information collected suggests the predefined limit requires adjustment. 

During the first half of 2014, the stock of properties in possession increased slightly, although the underlying trend of possession stock 
is improving due to favourable market conditions. 
 
Forbearance (1) (2) (3)(4) 

 
The incidence of the main types of higher risk loans forbearance arrangements which commenced during the six months ended 30 June 2014 
and year ended 31 December 2013 was: 
 
30 June 2014 Interest-only(4) Flexible loans Loan to Value >100% Buy-to-let 
Total value £206m £36m - £2m 
Proportion of portfolio(5) 60% 10% - 1% 
 
31 December 2013 Interest-only(4) Flexible loans Loan to Value >100% Buy-to-let 
Total value £242m £61m - £3m 
Proportion of portfolio(5) 57% 14% - 1% 
(1) Mortgages are included within the period/year that they were forborne. 
(2) The figures by year period/reflect the amount of forbearance activity undertaken during the period/year irrespective of whether any forbearance activity has previously been undertaken on 

the forborne accounts. 
(3) Where a loan exhibits more than one of the higher risk criteria, it is included in all the applicable categories.  
(4) Loans which are either full interest only or partial interest only are included.  
(5) Portfolio of total forbearance arrangements which commenced during the period/year.  

 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
The values of higher risk loan entering forbearance arrangements in the first half of 2014 compared to 2013 decreased in line with overall 
reductions seen in flows into forbearance during the period. 

During the first half of 2014, the proportion of loans entering forbearance arrangements defined as higher riskfrom interest-only loans 
increased, and from flexible loans decreased. The mix of forbearance arrangements shifted slightly due to factors such as the increased level of 
capitalisations described on page 50. This led to a slightly higher proportion of forbearance arrangements being granted to interest-only loans in 
the first half of 2014 compared to 2013. 
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BANKING AND CONSUMER CREDIT  
 
Santander UK may also provide borrowing facilities by way of overdraft as part of bank accounts, together with unsecured personal loans, credit 
cards, consumer finance, including finance leases and other forms of consumer finance, and business banking lending. 
 
LENDING 
 
An analysis of movements in banking and consumer credit loans and advances is presented below. 
 

30 June 2014 Bank  
Accounts 

£m 

Unsecured 
Personal Loans 

£m 

Credit 
Cards 

£m 

Consumer 
Finance 

£m 

Business  
Banking 

£m 
Total 

£m 
At 1 January 543 2,016 1,679 3,145 151 7,534 
Net lending in the period/year (39) 163 226 70 5 425 
At 30 June 504 2,179 1,905 3,215 156 7,959 

 
31 December 2013 Bank  

Accounts  
£m  

Unsecured 
Personal Loans 

£m 

Credit 
Cards 

£m 

Consumer 
Finance 

£m 

Business  
Banking 

£m  
Total 

£m 
At 1 January 536 2,344. 1,420 3,109 133 7,542. 
Net lending in the year 7 (328) 259 36 18 (8) 
At 31 December 543 2,016. 1,679 3,145 151 7,534. 

 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
Total net lending increased by £425m (5.6%) in the first half of 2014, largely in line with our loyalty strategy, due to increases in unsecured 
personal loans and credit cards, driven by competitively priced products in unsecured personal loans and strong balance transfer and purchase 
promotion products in credit cards. 
 
CREDIT PERFORMANCE 
 
30 June 2014 Bank  

Accounts  
Unsecured 

Personal Loans 
Credit 
Cards 

Consumer 
Finance 

Business  
Banking Total 

 £m £m £m £m £m £m 
Loans and Advances 504 2,179 1,905 3,215 156 7,959 
Performing 448 2,113 1,838 3,193 143 7,735 
In arrears  24 40 27 6 4 101 
Non-performing loans:(1) (2)  32 26 40 16 9 123 
- NPLs that are impaired 17 23 35 12 5 92 
- NPLs that are not impaired 15 3 5 4 4 31 
Impairment loss allowance 47 84 79 87 18 315 
       
NPL ratio(2)       1.55% 
Coverage ratio(3)       256% 
 
31 December 2013 Bank  

Accounts  
Unsecured 

Personal Loans 
Credit 
Cards 

Consumer 
Finance 

Business  
Banking Total 

 £m £m £m £m £m £m 
Loans and Advances 543 2,016 1,679 3,145 151 7,534 
Performing 471 1,936 1,609 3,121 131 7,268 
In arrears 28 47 29 9 5 118 
Non-performing loans:(1) (2)  44 33 41 15 15 148 
- NPLs that are impaired 26 29 38 11 8 112 
- NPLs that are not impaired 18 4 3 4 7 36 
Impairment loss allowance 51 90 86 85 16 328 
       
NPL ratio(2)       1.96% 
Coverage ratio(3)       222% 
(1) Banking and consumer credit lending is classified as non-performing when the customer fails to make a payment when contractually due for three months or longer, or where it is deemed 

probable that this will occur in the near future or for accounts where fees and interest have been suspended. 
(2) NPL ratio is the NPL stock as a % of total loans and advances. 
(3) The coverage ratio is the total impairment loss allowances, as a % of NPL stock. Total loan loss allowances relate to early arrears and performing assets as well as accounts classified as 

NPLand hence the ratio exceeds 100%. 

 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
During the first half of 2014, the value of NPLsdecreased by17%to £123m (2013: £148m) and the NPL ratio decreased by 41 basis points to 
1.55% (2013: 1.96%). The main drivers of these improvements were bank accounts, reflecting the higher credit quality of 1|2|3 Current Account 
customers and unsecured personal loans that continued to benefitfrom the sustained improvement in the credit quality of new business. This was 
driven by the competitive pricing in unsecured personal loans and strong balance transfer and purchase promotion products in credit cards being 
attractive to customers of high credit worthiness. 
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CREDIT RISK – COMMERCIAL BANKING 
 
In Commercial Banking, credit risk arises on asset balances and on committed off-balance sheet transactions such as credit facilities or guarantees. 
Consequently, committed exposures are typically higher than asset balances. However, in the following committed exposures tables, Sovereigns 
are presented net of short positions and include Sovereign exposures established for liquidity management purposes managed by Short Term 
Markets on behalf of Corporate Centre. Large Corporate reverse repos are presented net of repo liabilities and include OTC derivatives. As a result, 
the committed exposures are smaller than the asset balances recognised on the balance sheet.  

 
COMMERCIAL BANKING - COMMITTED EXPOSURES 
 
Rating distribution 
 
The rating distribution tables show the credit risk exposure by Santander UK’s internal rating scale (see ‘Credit Quality’ on page 39) for each 
portfolio within Commercial Banking. Within this scale, the higher the rating, the better the quality of the counterparty. 
 
30 June 2014 
 

Sovereign and 
Supranational(2) 

£m 

Large  
Corporate 

£m 

Structured 
Finance 

£m 
- 

Mid Corporate  
and SME 

£m 

Commercial  
Real Estate 

£m 
 1 

Social Housing 
£m 

 339 
Total 

£m 
 1,921 9 1,483 3  95 

8 3,723 2,009 -  642  299  385  7,058 
7 680 4,108 29  2,356  793  219  8,185 
6 - 5,297 5  5,736  5,045  90  16,173 
5 - 1,657 15  3,620  3,199  -  8,491 
4 - 117 78  2,470  696  -  3,361 
1 to 3 - 98 109  430  275  -  912 
Other(1) - - -  422  116  -  538 
Total 5,886 13,289 236  15,771  10,424  1,033  46,639 
 
31 December 2013 
 

Sovereign and 
Supranational(2) 

£m 

Large  
Corporate 

£m 

Structured  
Finance 

£m 

Mid Corporate  
and SME 

£m 

Commercial  
Real Estate 

£m 
Social Housing 

£m 
Total 

£m 
9 1,296 24 - 200 127 263 1,910  
8 3,893 1,450 - 531 320 359 6,553  
7 860 4,083 30 2,248 1,447 231 8,899  
6 - 4,382 6 5,292 4,263 115 14,058  
5 - 1,722 40 2,633 2,737 - 7,132  
4 - 22 72 2,410 683 - 3,187  
1 to 3 - 1 136 247 324 - 708  
Other(1) - - 24 518 144 - 686  
Total 6,049 11,684 308 14,079 10,045 968 43,133  
(1) Represents smaller exposures predominantly within the commercial mortgages portfolio which are subject to scorecards rather than a rating model. 
(2) An international organisation, whereby member states transcend national boundaries or interests to share in the decision-making and vote on issues pertaining to the geographical focus of the 

organisation. 

 
Geographical distribution 
 
The geographic location is classified by country of risk, being the country where each counterparty’s main business activity or assets are located. 
For clients whose operations are more geographically dispersed, the country of incorporation is applied. 
 
30 June 2014 Sovereign and 

Supranational(1) 
£m 

Large  
Corporate 

£m 

Structured 
Finance 

£m 

Mid Corporate 
and SME 

£m 
 15,488 

Commercial 
Real Estate 

£m 
 10,424 

Social Housing 
£m 

Total 
£m 

 36,464 UK - 9,435 84  1,033 
Peripheral eurozone 680 693 19  8  -  -  1,400 
Rest of Europe 1,191 2,238 71  237  -  -  3,737 
US - 364 62  4  -  -  430 
Rest of world 4,015 559 -  34  -  -  4,608 
Total 5,886 13,289 236  15,771  10,424  1,033  46,639 
 
31 December 2013 Sovereign and 

Supranational(1) 
£m 

Large  
Corporate 

£m 

Structured  
Finance 

£m 

Mid Corporate 
and SME 

£m 

 Commercial 
Real Estate 

£m 
Social Housing 

£m 
Total 

£m 
UK - 8,685 108 13,836 10,045 968 33,642  
Peripheral eurozone 860 411 20 18 - - 1,309  
Rest of Europe 1,029 1,736 75 87 - - 2,927  
US - 320 105 - - - 425  
Rest of world 4,160 532 - 138 - - 4,830  
Total 6,049 11,684 308 14,079 10,045 968 43,133 
(1) An international organisation, whereby member states transcend national boundaries or interests to share in the decision-making and vote on issues pertaining to the geographical focus of the 

organisation. 
 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed)  
During the first half of 2014, total committed exposures increased by £3.5bnor 8% to £46.6bn principally within the Large Corporate, and Mid 
Corporate and SME portfolios. 

Large Corporate exposures increased by 14% as a result of the development of the franchise focused in high-rated multinational 
companies. Growth was focused on the UK and other European countries with counterparties with good credit quality and primarily reflects the 
provision of financial products to support the working capital and liquidity needs of our clients.  

The Mid Corporate and SME portfolio grew by 12%, reflecting the continued development of the franchise especially in the SME 
segment. This was reflected in the rise in the mid-range rating bands as this is where counterparties in this segment typically rate. 
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COMMERCIAL BANKING - CREDIT RISK MITIGATION 
 
At 30 June 2014, collateral held against impaired loans amounted to 39% (2013: 47%) of the carrying amount of impaired loan balances. 

 
COMMERCIAL BANKING–CREDIT PERFORMANCE 

 
Exposures exhibiting potentially higher risk characteristics are subject to risk monitoring under the Watchlist process (described in “The Credit 
Cycle” section under “Risk monitoring” on page 76 of the 2013 Annual Report). The table below sets out the portfolio showing exposures subject 
to risk monitoring under the Watchlist process and those classified as non-performing by portfolio at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013: 
 
30 June 2014 Sovereign and 

Supranational(7) 
£m 

Large 
Corporate 

£m 

Structured 
Finance 

£m 

Mid Corporate 
and SME 

£m 

Commercial 
Real Estate 

£m 

Social 
Housing 

£m 
Total 

£m 
Total Committed Exposureof which:(1) 5,886 13,289 236  15,771  10,424  1,033  46,639 

-Watchlist: Enhanced Monitoring - 448 77  854  381  30  1,790 
-Watchlist: Proactive Management - - 70  486  193  -  749 
-Remaining Performing Exposure 5,886 12,841 73  14,033  9,510  1,003  43,346 

Subtotal Performing Exposure  5,886 13,289  220  15,373  10,084  1,033  45,885 
Non-Performing Exposure(2) - -  16  398  340  -  754 
Total Impaired Exposure of which:(3) - -  140  1,738  914  30  2,822 

-Performing – Watchlist - -  124  1,340  574  30 2,068 
-Non-Performing Exposure(2) - -  16  398  340  -  754 

Total Observed impairment loss allowances 
of which:(4) 

- -  52  161  120  - 333 
-Performing – Watchlist - -  45 21 20   - 86 
-Non-Performing Exposure(2) - -  7  140  100  -  247 

IBNO(5)(6)        24 
Total Impairment loss allowance        357 
 
31 December 2013 Sovereign and 

Supranational(7) 
£m 

Large 
Corporate 

£m 

Structured 
Finance 

£m 

Mid Corporate 
and SME 

£m 

Commercial 
Real Estate 

£m 

Social  
Housing 

£m 
Total 

£m 
Total Committed Exposureof which:(1) 6,049 11,684 308 14,079 10,045 968 43,133 

-Watchlist: Enhanced Monitoring - 231 52 629 295 35 1,242 
-Watchlist: Proactive Management - - 132 288 357 - 777 
-Remaining Performing Exposure 6,049 11,453 105 12,821 9,074 933 40,435 

Subtotal Performing Exposure 6,049 11,684 289 13,738 9,726 968 42,454 
Non-Performing Exposure(2) - - 19 341 319 - 679 
Total Impaired Exposure of which:(3) - - 203 1,259 970 35 2,467 

-Performing – Watchlist - - 184 918 651 35 1,788 
-Non-Performing Exposure(2) - - 19 341 319 - 679 

Total Observed impairment loss allowances 
of which:(4) 

- - 72 136 131 - 339 

-Performing – Watchlist - - 64 12 24 - 100 
-Non-Performing Exposure(2) - - 8 124 107 - 239 

IBNO(5)(6)       17 
Total Impairment loss allowance       356 
(1) Includes committed facilities and derivatives. The terms ‘Enhanced Monitoring’ and ‘Proactive Management’ are defined on page 76 of the 2013 Annual Report. 
(2) Non-Performing Exposure in the table above include committed facilities and derivative exposures and therefore are larger than the NPLs in the table below which only include drawn balances. 

All the Non-Performing Exposures are impaired for purposes of provisioning. 
(3) Corporate loans are assessed individually or collectively assessed for impairment. Assets reported as impaired represent, for collective assessment, that portion of the loan portfolio where it is 

estimated that a loss has been incurred, plus those assets individually impaired. 
(4) Excludes IBNO provision. 
(5) Allowance for incurred inherent losses (i.e. incurred but not observed (‘IBNO’)) as described in Note 1to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the 2013 Annual Report.  
(6) There is no impairment allowance attributable to Sovereign and Supranational, and to Large Corporate. 
(7) An international organisation, whereby member states transcend national boundaries or interests to share in the decision-making and vote on issues pertaining to the geographical focus of the 

organisation. 
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Non-performing loans and advances (1) (2) 
 
An analysis of CommercialBanking NPLs is presented below. 
 

30 June 2014 31 December 2013 
 £m £m 
Loans and advances to customers of which:(2) 23,128 22,075 

733 680 
666 

Commercial Banking ArrearsincludingNPLs(3) 
728 Commercial Banking NPLs - impaired(3)(4)(5) 

- - Commercial Banking NPLs - not impaired(3)(4) 
728 666 Commercial Banking NPLs 
357 356 Impairment loss allowances 

% %  
3.17 3.08 Arrears ratio(6) 
3.15 3.02 NPL ratio(7) 

49 53 Coverage ratio(8) 
(1) Loans and advances are classified as non-performing typically when the counterparty fails to make payments when contractually due for three months or where it is deemed probable that this 

will occur in the near future. 
(2) Commercial Banking loans and advances to customers include finance leases.  
(3) All Commercial Bankingbalances are UK and continue accruing interest. For the data presented, the balances include interest charged to the customer’s account, but exclude interest accrued 

but not yet charged to the account. 
(4) All the Non-Performing Loans are impaired for purposes of provisioning. 
(5) NPLs against which an impairment loss allowance has been established. 
(6) Commercial Banking loans and advances to customers in arrears as a percentage of Commercial Banking loans and advances to customers. 
(7) CommercialBanking NPLs as a percentage of Commercial Banking loans and advances to customers. 
(8) Impairment loss allowances as a percentage of NPLs. 
 
Movements in NPLs during the first six months are set out in the graph below. ‘Entries’ represent loans which have become classified as 
NPLsduring the period.‘Exits (including repayments)’represent that element of loans to customers that have been repaid (in full or in part) plus 
those returned to performing status.‘Write-offs’ represent the unrecovered element of a loan where recovery options, including realisation of any 
collateral, have been exhausted.Forbearance activity does not result in a change in the NPL status. 

The following is a pictorial representation of the reviewed data in the table below. 
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An analysis of the NPL movements during the first half of 2014 is presented below. 
 

 £m 
At 1 January 2014 666 
Transfers in to NPL:  
- Entries 296 
Transfers out ofNPL:  
- Exits (181) 
- Write Offs (53) 

728 At 30June 2014 
 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
During the first six months of 2014, Watchlistexposures subject to proactive management reduced overall to £749m (2013: £777m), largely driven 
by a reduction in Commercial Real Estate which more than compensated for the increase in the Mid Corporate and SME portfolio. Watchlist 
exposures subject to enhanced monitoring increased in almost all portfolios, predominantly due to a tightening of policy whereby any customer 
with a Care Quality Commission flag is automatically added to the Watchlist; and due to the prudent policy requirement to add Commercial Real 
Estate transactions that have six months to maturity and no definitive exit or refinance plan in place, irrespective of their loan-to-value ratio. In the 
Sovereign and Supranational, Large Corporate and Social Housing portfolios, there were no exposures subject to proactive management with only 
2.4% (2013: 1.4%) of these portfolio exposures subject to enhanced monitoring.  

Loans and advances to customers in arrears increased to £733m (2013: £680m) largely due to a single long-standing loan of £89m 
which moved to non-performance. A successful restructure of this loan is still anticipated and a conservative provision is held against it. 
Consequently, loans and advances to customers in arrears as a percentage of loans and advances to customers increased to 3.17% (2013: 
3.08%). 

During the first six months of 2014, the NPL ratio also increased slightly to 3.15% (2013: 3.02%) due to the same single long-standing 
loan noted above. The underlying NPL ratio excluding this case reduced to 2.76%. 
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In the first half of 2014, interest income recognised on impaired loans amounted to £9m (six months ended 30 June 2013: £7m). 
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COMMERCIAL BANKINGLOANS - FORBEARANCE 
 
Forbearance commenced during the period/year(1) 
 
No arrangements have been entered into with respect to Sovereign and Supranational, Large Corporate, Structured Finance or Social Housing 
counterparties. The exposures that entered forbearanceduring the six months period ended 30 June 2014 and the year ended 31 December 2013 
were: 
 

30 June 2014 Mid Corporate and SME Commercial Real Estate Total 
 £m 

27 
£m 

1 
£m 
28 Forbearanceof NPL 

Forbearance of Non-NPL 18 67 85 
 45 68 113 

 
31 December 2013 Mid Corporate and SME  Commercial Real Estate Total 
 £m £m £m 
Forbearance of NPL 30 33 63 
Forbearance of Non-NPL 60 105 165 
 90 138 228 

(1) The figures by period/year reflect the amount of forbearance activity undertaken during the period/year irrespective of whether any forbearance activity has previously been undertaken on the 
forborne accounts. 

 
Forbearance cumulative position 
 
a) Performance status when entering forbearance 
The status of forborne exposures at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013 when they originally entered forbearance, analysed by their payment 
status, was: 
 
30 June 2014 Forbearance of NPL Forbearance of Non-NPL Total Impairment allowance 
 £m £m £m £m 
Performing  - 666 666 91 
In arrears (inc.NPLs) 161 - 161 41 
Total 161 666 827 132 
 
31 December 2013 Forbearance of NPL Forbearance of Non-NPL Total Impairment allowance 
 £m £m £m £m 
Performing  - 728 728 84 
In arrears(inc.NPLs) 196 - 196 50 
Total 196 728 924 134 

 
b) Performance status at the period/year-end 
The current status of forborne exposuresanalysed by their payment status at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013 was: 
 
30 June 2014 Forbearance of NPL Forbearance of Non-NPL Total Impairment allowance 
 £m £m £m £m 
Performing  55 390 445 11 
In arrears (inc.NPLs) 106 276 382 121 
Total 161 666 827 132 
 
31 December 2013 Forbearance of NPL Forbearance of Non-NPL Total Impairment allowance 
 £m £m £m £m 
Performing  70 516 586 21 
In arrears(inc.NPLs) 126 212 338 113 
Total 196 728 924 134 
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This data may be further analysed by portfolio, as follows: 
 
Mid Corporate and SMEs 
 
30 June 2014 Forbearance of NPL Forbearance of Non-NPL Total Impairment allowance 
 £m £m £m £m 
Performing  31 127 158 3 
In arrears(inc.NPLs) 70 75 145 60 
Total 101 202 303 63 
 
31 December 2013 Forbearance of NPL Forbearance of Non-NPL Total Impairment allowance 
 £m £m £m £m 
Performing  45 150 195 6 
In arrears(inc.NPLs) 61 82 143 55 
Total 106 232 338 61 

 
Commercial Real Estate 
 
30 June 2014 Forbearance of NPL Forbearance of Non-NPL Total Impairment allowance 
 £m 

24 
£m 

263 
£m 

287 
£m 

8 Performing  
In arrears(inc.NPLs) 36 201 237 61 
Total 60 464 524 69 
 
31 December 2013 Forbearance of NPL Forbearance of Non-NPL Total Impairment allowance 
 £m £m £m £m 
Performing  25 366 391 15 
In arrears(inc.NPLs) 65 130 195 58 
Total 90 496 586 73 

 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
The incidence of forbearance that commenced in the period remained stable compared to 2013. Existing cases continue to work their way 
through the process. Overall, the cumulative forbearance position decreased both in the Commercial Real Estate and Mid Corporate and SME 
portfolios.  

Accounts that are in forbearance continue to be closely monitored, to ensure that the forbearance arrangements are sustainable. Not all 
forbearance will prove effective, and in certain circumstances, market conditions may lead either to a case remaining in NPL even post-forbearance 
or to the need for a second forbearance action. At 30 June 2014, 34% (2013: 36%) of forborne exposures that were in NPL at the time of 
forbearance were performing in accordance with the revised terms agreed under the forbearance arrangements. At 30 June 2014, 54% (2013: 
63%) of total forborne exposure was performing in accordance with the revised terms agreed under the forbearance arrangements.This decrease 
is largely due to the aforementioned single long-standing loan which moved to non-performance. A successful restructure of this loan is still 
anticipated. 

The level of compliance with revised terms agreed under forbearance arrangements is influenced by market conditions and, as a 
consequence of the economic conditions, it is taking longer for cases to return to performing status after forbearance. Those cases where 
forbearance occurs prior to default, which at 30 June 2014 represented 81% (2013: 79%) of exposure, are generally more effective as highlighted 
in the tables above. Forborne exposures are assessed for observed impairment loss allowances. The greater probability of a loss when compared to 
the performing book is reflected in the calculation of impairment loss allowances. A customer’s ability to adhere to any revised terms agreed is an 
indicator of the sustainability of Santander UK’s forbearance arrangements, although the forbearance is unlikely to be successful in all cases. 
 
Debt-for-equity swaps(unreviewed) 
Debt-for-equity swaps amounted to £28mat 30 June 2014 (2013: £46m) and in view of their small size are not included in these analyses. 
 
Financial assets that would otherwise be past due or impaired 
At 30 June 2014, the carrying amount of financial assets that would otherwise be past due or impaired whose terms have been forborne was 
£55m (2013: £70m). 
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HIGHER RISK LOANS AND OTHER SEGMENTS OF PARTICULAR INTEREST 
 
The Commercial Real Estate market has experienced a particularly challenging environment over recent years following the financial crisis. Within 
this sector, Commercial Real Estate loans originated prior to 2009 represent a segment of relatively higher risk. 
 
Credit performance 
 
Commercial Real Estate non-performing exposures and weighted average LTVs at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013 may be further analysed 
between loans originated pre-2009 and thereafter as follows: 
 
30 June 2014 Original vintage  
 Pre-2009 2009 onwards Total 
Total committed exposure  £1,328m  £9,096m  £10,424m 
Non-performing exposure ratio  22.6%  0.4%  3.3% 
Weighted average LTV  73%  54%  56% 
 
31 December 2013 Original vintage  
 Pre-2009 2009 onwards Total 
Total committed exposure £1,569m £8,476m £10,045m 
Non-performing exposureratio 18.8% 0.3% 3.2% 
Weighted average LTV 74% 53% 56% 
 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
At 30 June 2014, 88% (2013: 92%) of the non-performing exposures related to deals originated pre-2009. The pre-2009 vintage loans were 
written on terms prevailing in the market at that time which, compared to more recent times, included higher original LTVs, lower interest 
coverage and exposure to development or letting risk. Following the significant downturn in the commercial real estate market in 2008 and 2009, 
some of these customers suffered financial stresses resulting in their inability to meet the contractual payment terms, comply with covenants, or 
achieve refinancing/repayment at maturity. As a result, the pre-2009 sub-portfolio has experienced higher NPL rates in recent years. At 30 June 
2014, the NPL ratio of the pre-2009 sub-portfolio was 22.6% which increased from 31 December 2013 due to the reduction in the size of the 
portfolio. 

In light of the market deterioration, Santander UK’s lending criteria were significantly tightened from 2009 onwards, with lower LTVs 
and the avoidance of transactions with material letting or development risks (at 30June 2014, this element of the portfolio represented only 2% 
(2013: 4%) of the total Commercial Real Estate portfolio). As a result, the sub-portfolio representing loans originating from 2009 onwards 
continues to perform significantly better than the pre-2009 sub-portfolio which continues to decline both in absolute terms and as a proportion of 
the total Commercial Real Estate portfolio. At 30 June 2014, the pre-2009 sub-portfolio represented less than 13% (2013: 16%) of the total 
Commercial Real Estate portfolio. 
 
Further detail on the entire Commercial Real Estate portfolio is contained in the following section. 
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Commercial Real Estate loans  
 
The Commercial Real Estate portfolio remained well diversified by sector at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013, as set out below. 
 

Sector 
30 June 2014 

% 
 26 

31 December 2013 
% 

Office 26 
Retail  23 23 
Industrial  15 13 
Residential  11 10 
Mixed Use  10 9 
Student Accommodation  5 6 
Hotels & Leisure  5 6 
Other  5 7 
 100 100 
 
Loan-to-value analysis 
In Commercial Real Estate lending, the main form of credit mitigation is collateral. The table below analyses the loan to value ratios of loans within 
the Commercial Real Estate portfolio at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013. The LTV distribution is presented for the Non-Standardised 
portfolio, which at £8.7bn(2013: £8.4bn) represented 84% (2013: 84%) of the total Commercial Real Estate portfolio at 30 June 2014. The 
residual element of the portfolio consists of smaller value transactions largely in the form of commercial mortgages for which valuations are only 
available at the point of origination. These loans have therefore been excluded from the analysis below. 
 
30 June 2014 Stock 

% 
New Business 

% 
Up to 50%  33  26 
50% to 60%  36  42 
60% to 70%  21  32 
70% to 80%  5  - 
80% to 90%  1  - 
90% to 100%  2  - 
> 100% i.e. negative equity  2  - 
Total 100 100 
 
31 December 2013 Stock 

%  
New Business 

% 
Up to 50% 33 26 
50% to 60% 36 47 
60% to 70% 18 22 
70% to 80% 6 5 
80% to 90% 3 - 
90% to 100% - - 
> 100% i.e. negative equity 4 - 
Total 100 100 
 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
At 30 June 2014, the profile of the portfolio remained conservative in terms of LTV with 69% (2013: 69%) of the portfolio at or below 60% LTV. 
This reflected the more recent vintage of the portfolio with 87% (2013: 84%) originated in 2009 or subsequent years. The majority of higher LTV 
deals represent older deals which remain in the portfolio. 

New business is rarely written above 65% LTV. During the first half of 2014, all new business was originated at 65% LTV or lower. The 
majority of the cases with negative equity form part of the forborne element of the portfolio and are managed by the Restructuring & Recoveries 
team. 

At 30 June 2014 the average LTV, weighted by exposure, remained stable at56% (2013: 56%). The weighted average LTV of new deals 
written in the first half of 2014 was 54% (2013: 54%). 

 
Refinancing risk 
As part of the annual review process, for commercial real estate loans that are approaching maturity, consideration is given to the prospects of 
refinancing the loan at prevailing market terms and applicable credit policy. The review will consider this and other aspects (e.g. covenant 
compliance) which could result in the case being placed on the Watchlist. Additionally, where an acceptable refinancing proposal has not been 
received within six months prior to maturity, the case will be placed on the Watchlist. 

At 30 June 2014, there was £1,535m (2013: £852m)of commercial real estate loans due to mature within 12 months. Of 
these,£257mi.e. 17% (2013: £320m i.e. 27%)have an LTV ratio above that which would be considered acceptable under current credit policy, of 
which £252m (2013: £313m)has been placed on the Watchlistor recorded as NPL and has an impairment loss allowance of £58m (2013: 
£62m)associated with it. 
 



 

Detailed Business Review 

Risk Management Report continued 
 

62  4 Half Yearly Financial Report  Santander UK plc201

CREDIT RISK – MARKETS  
 
Derivative risk exposures in the tables below are lower than the balance sheet position because the overall risk exposure is monitored and 
therefore consideration is taken of margin posted, Credit Support Annexes within ISDA Master Agreements, and master netting agreements and 
other financial instruments which reduce the Santander UK group’s exposures. Derivative asset balances recognised on the balance sheet reflect 
only the more restrictive netting permitted by IAS 32. 

 
MARKETS – COMMITTED EXPOSURES 
 
Rating and geographical distribution 
 
The tables below reflect the total credit risk exposures of Markets by internal ratingscale(see ‘Credit Quality’ on page 39) and by geographical 
areas. The exposures include committed facilities as well as the uncommitted drawn facilities. The geographic location is defined as the 
counterparty’s country of domicile except where a full risk transfer guarantee is in place, in which case the country of domicile of the guarantor is 
used. 
 
30 June 2014 UK 

£m 
Peripheral eurozone 

£m 
Rest of Europe 

£m 
US 
£m 

Rest of world 
£m 

Total 
£m 

9 295                -   19 128 9 451 
8 2,109 28 678 530 105 3,450 
7 597 650 103 640 - 1,990 
6 97 1 1 4 - 103 
5 1 4 11 - - 16 
4 58 - - - - 58 
1 to 3 - - - - - - 
Total 3,157 683 812 1,302 114 6,068 
 
31 December 2013 UK 

£m 
Peripheraleurozone 

£m 
Rest of Europe 

£m 
US 
£m 

Rest of world 
£m 

Total 
£m 

9 - - 2 - 56 58 
8 1,410 10 897 746 87 3,150 
7 1,064 582 169 227 - 2,042 
6 76 3 - 23 - 102 
5 1 5 11 - 1 18 
4 - - - - - - 
1 to 3 28 - - - - 28 
Total 2,579 600 1,079 996 144 5,398 

 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
As a continued effort to mitigate counterparty credit risk in derivative transactions, Santander UK increased the use of Central Counterparties 
(‘CCPs’) during the first half of 2014. This was reflected by the increased exposure in rating categories 8and 9 in the UK resulting in an overall 
improved credit rating profile. 

 
MARKETS - CREDIT RISK MITIGATION 
 
Markets focuses on derivative products and mitigates its credit risk to counterparties through netting arrangements, collateralisation and the use 
of CCPs. For details of the approach to credit risk mitigation, see“Credit Risk Management – Markets” on page 85 of the 2013 Annual Report. 

The top 20 clients with which Santander UK had the biggest derivative exposures were Banks and CCPs. These top 20 clients’ derivative 
exposure accounted for 78% of the total derivative exposure in Markets at 30 June 2014 (2013: 90%). Cash collateral related to the Top 20 at 30 
June 2014 was £1.7bn (2013: £2.3bn) and the risk exposure weighted average credit rating was 7.4 (2013: 7.6). 

The total notional amount of Santander UK’s OTC derivatives at 30 June 2014was £934.2bn (2013: £909.4bn) and46% (2013: 34%) 
was cleared through CCPs. By mark-to-market terms (i.e. the credit risk exposure including mark-to-market value plus a volatility add-on that 
reflects the future volatility of the derivatives), CCPs were used in connection with 26% (2013: 18%) of Santander UK’s OTC derivatives. CCP 
transaction values as a percentage of the total portfolio are higher in notional amount than in mark-to-market terms due to their higher 
collateralisation and lower volatility.  

 
MARKETS -CREDIT PERFORMANCE 
 
At 30 June 2014, there were no impaired or non-performing loans or exposures (2013: none) and the assets in the Watchlistproactive 
management category amounted to only £69m (2013: £36m). 

 
MARKETS - FORBEARANCE  
 
At 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013, there was no forbearance activity in Markets. 
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CREDIT RISK - CORPORATE CENTRE 
 
Credit risk arises on assets in the balance sheet and in off-balance sheet transactions. Consequently, the committed exposure (which takes into 
account credit mitigation procedures) is shown in the tables below. It excludes Sovereign and Supranational exposures managed by Short Term 
Markets within Commercial Banking. 

 
CORPORATE CENTRE –COMMITTED EXPOSURES 
 
Rating distribution 
 
The rating distribution tables below show the credit risk exposure by Santander UK’s internal rating scale (see ‘Credit Quality’ on page 39) for each 
portfolio. Within this scale the higher the rating the better the quality of the counterparty. 
 
30 June 2014 Sovereign and 

Supranational(2) 
£m 

Structured 
Products 

£m 
Derivatives 

£m 

Legacy Portfolios  
in run-off 

£m 

Social 
Housing 

£m 
Total 

£m 
9 31,782 942                -    -  2,622  35,346 
8 - 1,172 436  2  4,354  5,964 
7 - 1,361 382  603  1,753  4,099 
6 - 2 -  328  223  553 
5 - 4 -  140  -  144 
4 - 14 -  225  -  239 
1 to 3 - 152 -  121  -  273 
Other(1) - - -  877  -  877 
Total 31,782 3,647 818  2,296  8,952  47,495 
 
31 December 2013 Sovereign and 

Supranational(2) 
£m 

Structured 
Products 

£m 
Derivatives 

£m 

Legacy Portfolios  
in run-off 

£m 

Social 
Housing 

£m 
Total 

£m 
9 29,688 694 - 2 2,654 33,038 
8 - 707 1,061 2 4,382 6,152 
7 - 1,091 453 790 1,713 4,047 
6 - 54 - 464 238 756 
5 - 90 - 170 - 260 
4 - 72 - 291 - 363 
1 to 3 - 131 - 137 - 268 
Other(1) - 27 - 1,007 - 1,034 
Total 29,688 2,866 1,514 2,863 8,987 45,918 
(1) Represents smaller exposure predominantly within the commercial mortgages portfolio which are subject to scorecards rather than a rating model. 
(2) An international organisation whereby member states transcend national boundaries or interests to share in the decision-making and vote on issues pertaining tothe geographical focus of the 

organisation. 

 
Geographical distribution 
 
The geographic location is classified by country of risk being the country where each counterparty’s main business activity or assets are located. 
For clients whose operations are more geographically dispersed the country of incorporation is applied. 
 
30 June 2014 Sovereign and 

Supranational(1) 
£m 

Structured 
Products 

£m 
Derivatives 

£m 

Legacy Portfolios 
 in run-off 

£m 

Social 
Housing 

£m 
Total 

£m 
UK 22,973 1,069 92  1,894  8,952  34,980 
Peripheral eurozone - 252 -  8  - 260 

2,232 Rest of Europe 367 1,533 276  56  - 
US 7,498 305 450  73  - 8,326 
Rest of world 944 488 -  265  - 1,697 
Total 31,782 3,647 818  2,296  8,952  47,495 
 
31 December 2013 

Sovereign and 
Supranational(1)£m 

Structured 
Products 

£m 
Derivatives 

£m 

Legacy Portfolios 
 in run-off 

£m 

Social 
Housing 

£m 
Total 

£m 
UK 24,036 880 453 2,241 8,987 36,597 
Peripheral eurozone - 329 - 59 - 388 
Rest of Europe 53 1,207 600 63 - 1,923 
US 5,230 422 461 80 - 6,193 
Rest of world 369 28 - 420 - 817 
Total 29,688 2,866 1,514 2,863 8,987 45,918 
(1) An international organisation whereby member states transcend national boundaries or interests to share in the decision-making and vote on issues pertaining tothe geographical focus of the 

organisation. 
 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed)  
During the first half of 2014, total committed exposures increased by £1.6bnor 3% to £47.5bn principally within the Sovereign and Supranational, 
and Structured Products portfolios, partially offset by decreases in the Derivatives and Legacy Portfolios in run-off portfolios.Committed exposures 
to Sovereign and Supranationals principally reflect cash at central banks and holdings of highly rated liquid assets as part of normal liquid asset 
portfolio management, and remained concentrated in the UK and US.Exposures to Structured Products reflect holdings of highly rated covered 
bonds, floating rate notes and residential mortgage-backed securities as part of normal liquid asset portfolio management. The increased 
exposures reflect the purchase of covered bonds and floating rate notesto optimise the liquid asset portfolio composition. Derivative 
exposuresdecreased due to a managed reduction of the portfolio.Legacy Portfolios in run-off decreased as we continued to successfully implement 
our on-going exit strategy. 
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CORPORATE CENTRE - CREDIT RISK MITIGATION 
 
At 30 June 2014, collateral held against impaired loans amounted to 74% (2013: 65%) of the carrying amount of impaired loan balances. 
Structured Products are unsecured but benefit from senior positions in the creditor cascade. Credit risk in derivatives is mitigated by netting 
agreements, collateralisation and the use of CCPs. For details of the approach to credit risk mitigation, see “Credit Risk Management – Markets” 
on page 85 of the 2013 Annual Report. 

 
CORPORATE CENTRE - CREDIT PERFORMANCE 
 
Exposures exhibiting potentially higher risk characteristics are subject to risk monitoring under the Watchlist process (described in “The Credit 
Cycle” section under “Risk monitoring” on page 76 of the 2013 Annual Report). The table below sets out the portfolio showing exposures subject 
to risk monitoring under the Watchlist process and those classified as non-performing by portfolio at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013: 
 
30 June 2014 Sovereign and 

Supranational(7) 
£m 

Structured 
Products 

£m 
Derivatives 

£m 

Legacy Portfolios  
in run-off 

£m 
 2,296 

Social  
Housing 

£m 
 8,952 

Total 
£m 

 47,495 Total Committed Exposureof which:(1) 31,782 3,647 818 
-Watchlist: Enhanced Monitoring - - -  51  35  86 
- Watchlist: Proactive Management - - -  59 -  59 
-Remaining Performing Exposure 31,782 3,647 818  1,991  8,917  47,155 

Subtotal Performing Exposure 31,782 3,647 818  2,101  8,952  47,300 
Non-Performing Exposure(2) - - -  195  -  195 
Total Impaired Exposure of which:(3) - - - 450  35 485 

-Performing – Watchlist - - -  255  35  290 
-Non-Performing Exposure(2) - - -  195  -  195 

Total Observed impairment loss allowances of which:(4) - - -  114  - 114 
- Performing – Watchlist - - - 35  - 35 
- Non-Performing Exposure(2) - - - 79  - 79 

IBNO(5)(6)       127 
Total Impairment loss allowance       241 
 
31 December 2013 Sovereign and 

Supranational(7) 
£m 

Structured 
Products 

£m 
Derivatives 

£m 

Legacy Portfolios  
in run-off 

£m 

Social  
Housing 

£m 
Total 

£m 
Total Committed Exposureof which:(1) 29,688 2,866 1,514 2,863 8,987 45,918 

-Watchlist: Enhanced Monitoring - 37 - 173 118 328 
-Watchlist: Proactive Management - - - 72 - 72 
-Remaining Performing Exposure 29,688 2,829 1,514 2,389 8,869 45,289 

Subtotal Performing Exposure 29,688 2,866 1,514 2,634 8,987 45,689 
Non-Performing Exposure(2) - - - 229 - 229 
Total Impaired Exposure of which:(3) - - - 485 118 603 

-Performing – Watchlist - - - 256 118 374 
-Non-Performing Exposure(2) - - - 229 - 229 

Total Observed impairment loss allowances of which:(4) - - - 162 - 162 
-Performing – Watchlist - - - 55 - 55 
-Non-Performing Exposure(2) - - - 107 - 107 

IBNO(5)(6)      114 
Total Impairment loss allowance      277 
(1) Includes committed facilities and derivatives.The terms ‘Enhanced Monitoring’ and ‘Proactive Management’ are defined on page 76 of the 2013 Annual Report. 
(2) Non-Performing Exposure in the table above include committed facilities and derivative exposures and therefore are larger than the NPLs in the tables on page 64 which only include drawn 

balances. All the Non-Performing Exposures are impaired for purposes of provisioning. 
(3) Corporate loans are assessed individually or collectively assessed for impairment. Assets reported as impaired represent, for collective assessment, that portion of the loan portfolio where it is 

estimated that a loss has been incurred, plus those assets individually impaired. 
(4) Excludes IBNO provision. 
(5) Allowance for incurred inherent losses (i.e. incurred but not observed (‘IBNO’)) as described in Note 1to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the 2013 Annual Report. 
(6) There is no impairment allowance attributable to Sovereign and Supranational or Structured Products. 
(7) An international organisation, whereby member states transcend national boundaries or interests to share in the decision-making and vote on issues pertaining to the geographical focus of the 

organisation. 

 
Non-core customer assets at 30 June 2014 comprised Social Housing of £7.0bn (2013: £7.1bn), Commercial Mortgages of £1.0bn (2013: £1.2bn), 
Aviation of £0.2bn (2013: £0.4bn),Shipping of £0.3bn (2013: £0.4bn),and Others of £0.2bn (2013: £0.3bn). 
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Non-performing loans and advances (1) (2) 
 
An analysis of CorporateCentreNPLs is presented below. 
 

30 June 2014 31 December 2013 
 £m £m 
Loans and advances to customers of which:(2) 8,703 9,360 

198 239 
221 

Corporate Centre Arrears including NPLs(3) 
183 Corporate CentreNPLs - impaired(3)(4)(5) 

- - CorporateCentreNPLs - not impaired(3)(4) 
183 221 Corporate Centre NPLs 
241 277 Impairment loss allowances 

% %  
2.27 2.55 Arrears ratio(6) 
2.10 2.36 

125 
NPL ratio(7) 

132 Coverage ratio(8) 
(1) Loans and advances are classified as non-performing typically when the counterparty fails to make payments when contractually due for three months or where it is deemed probable that this 

will occur in the near future. 
(2) Corporate Centre loans and advances to customers include Social Housing loans and finance leases.  
(3) All Corporate Centrebalances are UK and continue accruing interest. For the data presented, the balances include interest charged to the customer’s account, but exclude interest accrued but 

not yet charged to the account. 
(4) All the Non-Performing Loans are impaired for purposes of provisioning. 
(5) NPLs against which an impairment loss allowance has been established. 
(6) Corporate Centre loans and advances to customers in arrears as a percentage of Corporate Centre loans and advances to customers. 
(7) Corporate Centre NPLs as a percentage of Corporate Centre loans and advances to customers. 
(8) Impairment loss allowances as a percentage of NPLs. 
 
Movements in NPLs during the first six months are set out in the graph below. ‘Entries’ represent loans which have become classified as 
NPLsduring the first six months. ‘Exits (including repayments)’represent that element of loans that have been repaid (in full or in part) plus those 
returned to performing status.‘Write-offs’ represent the unrecovered element of a loan where recovery options, including realisation of any 
collateral, have been exhausted. Forbearance activity does not result in a change in the NPL status. 
 
The following is a pictorial representation of the reviewed data in the table below. 
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An analysis of the NPL movements during the first half of 2014 is presented below. 
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£m 
At 1 January 2014 221 
Transfers in to NPL  
- Entries 72 
Transfers out ofNPL  
- Exits (64) 
- Write Offs (46) 
At 30June 2014 183 

 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
During the first half of 2014, the value of exposures in the Legacy Portfolios in run-off subject to Watchlist and NPLsdecreased as a consequence 
of the strategy to exit these exposures. Similarly, the level of provision decreased during the period reflecting disposal of assets. Social Housing 
exposure subject to enhanced monitoring decreased as a result of a number of cases returning to performing status following resolution of 
governance issues as anticipated. There was no Watchlistexposure subject to enhanced monitoring in Sovereign and Supranational, Structured 
Products and Derivatives. 

In the first six months of 2014, loans and advances to customers in arrears decreased to £198m (2013: £239m) as Santander UK 
continued to execute the strategy of exiting problem exposures through sale of the debt or through the realisation of the collateral. Loans and 
advances to customers in arrears as a percentage of loans and advances to customers decreased to 2.27% (2013: 2.55%) as a result of the 
decrease in arrears described above which was achieved at a slightly faster rate than the run-off of the loans and advances. 

At 30 June 2014, the NPL ratio decreased slightly to 2.10% (2013: 2.36%). This decrease reflected the continuing strategy to exit 
exposures where possible for this portfolio. In the first half of 2014, coverage increased to 132% (2013: 125%) reflecting the successful disposal 
programme without incurring significant further losses. 
 
In the first six months of 2014, interest income recognised on impaired loans amounted to £4m(six months ended 30 June 2013: £7m). 
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CORPORATE CENTRE - FORBEARANCE 
 
Forbearance arrangements have only been entered into with respect to the Legacy portfolios in run-off. No forbearance arrangements have been 
entered into with respect to Sovereign and Supranational, Structured Products, Derivatives or Social Housing counterparties.  

 
Forbearance commenced during the period 
 
The forborne exposuresthat entered forbearance during the six months ended 30 June 2014 and the year ended 31 December 2013 were: 
 

 30 June 2014 31 December 2013 
 £m £m 
Forbearance of NPL 9 23 
Forbearance of Non-NPL 6 26 
 15 49 

 
Forbearance cumulative position 
 
a) Performance status when entering forbearance 
The status of the forborne exposures at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013 when they originally enteredforbearance, analysed by their payment 
status, was: 
 

30 June 2014 Forbearance of NPL Forbearance of Non-NPL Total Impairment allowance 
 £m 

- 
£m 

312 
£m 

312 
£m 
31 Performing  

In arrears(inc.NPLs) 51 - 51 16 
Total 51 312 363 47 

 
31 December 2013 Forbearance of NPL Forbearance of Non-NPL Total Impairment allowance 
 £m £m £m £m 
Performing  - 322 322 32 
In arrears(inc.NPLs) 58 - 58 18 
Total 58 322 380 50 

 
b) Performance status at the period/year-end 
The current status of forborne exposures analysed by their payment status at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013 was: 
 
30 June 2014 Forbearance of NPL Forbearance of Non-NPL Total Impairment allowance 
 £m £m £m £m 
Performing  37 270 307 14 
In arrears(inc.NPLs) 14 42 56 33 
Total 51 312 363 47 
 
31 December 2013 Forbearance of NPL Forbearance of Non-NPL Total Impairment allowance 
 £m £m £m £m 
Performing  32 274 306 13 
In arrears(inc.NPLs) 26 48 74 37 
Total 58 322 380 50 
 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
In the first six months of 2014, the level of new forbearance undertaken during the first half of the year reduced as actions taken to exit potential 
problem exposures continued to be successfully executed, consistent with the non-core nature of the Legacy Portfolios in run-off. The balance of 
forborne exposure also reduced during the period as the strategy to exit these exposures continued to be executed where the opportunity arose. 
An element of the residual forborne exposure is expected to take longer to exit given their profile and the more limited market appetite for the 
purchase or refinancing of certain assets. 

Accounts that are in forbearance continue to be closely monitored, to ensure that the forbearance arrangements are sustainable. At 30 
June 2014, 85% (2013: 80%) of forborne exposures were performing in accordance with the revised terms agreed under Santander UK’s 
forbearance arrangements. A customer’s ability to adhere to any revised terms agreed is an indicator of the sustainability of Santander UK’s 
forbearance arrangements. 

 
Financial assets that would otherwise be past due or impaired 
At 30 June 2014, the carrying amount of financial assets that would otherwise be past due or impaired whose terms have been forborne was 
£37m (2013: £32m). 
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MARKET RISK 
 
Balance sheet allocation by market risk classification 
 
Santander UK’s assets and liabilities that are subject to market risk may be analysed between Traded and Banking Market risk classification as 
follows: 
 
   30 June 2014  31 December 2013  
  Market risk (measure)  Market risk (measure)  
 Balance  

sheet 
£m 

Traded 
risk 
£m 

Banking 
risk 
£m 

Balance  
sheet 

£m 

Traded 
risk 
£m 

Banking 
risk 
£m Key Risk Factors (1) 

Assets subject to market risk        
Cash and balances at central banks 25,648 - 25,648 25,160 - 25,160 Interest rate 
Trading assets 18,701 18,701 - 22,294 22,294 - Equity, foreign exchange, interest rate 
Derivative financial instruments 19,159 16,774 2,385 20,049 17,433 2,616 Equity, foreign exchange, interest rate 
Financial assets designated at fair value 2,754 52 2,702 2,747 51 2,696 Interest rate, credit spread 
Loans and advances to banks 2,325 - 2,325 2,347 - 2,347 Foreign exchange, interest rate 
Loans and advances to customers 186,094 - 186,094 184,587 - 184,587 Interest rate 
Loans and receivables securities 869 - 869 1,101 - 1,101 Foreign exchange, interest rate, credit 

spread 
Available-for-sale securities 7,755 - 7,755 5,005 - 5,005 Foreign exchange, interest rate, 

inflation, credit spread 
Macro hedge of interest rate risk 727 - 727 769 - 769 Interest rate 
Retirement benefit assets 235 - 235 118 - 118 Equity, foreign exchange, interest rate, 

inflation, credit spread 
 264,267 35,527 228,740 264,177 39,778 224,399  
Liabilities subject to market risk        
Deposits by banks 8,234 - 8,234 8,696 - 8,696 Foreign exchange, interest rate 
Deposits by customers 150,734 - 150,734 147,167 - 147,167 Interest rate 
Trading liabilities  17,848 17,848 - 21,278 21,278 - Equity, foreign exchange, interest rate 
Derivative financial instruments 19,030 17,237 

- 
1,793 
3,252 

18,863 17,297 1,566 Equity, foreign exchange, interest rate 
Financial liabilities designated at fair value 3,252 3,407 - 3,407 Interest rate, credit spread 
Debt securities in issue 50,258 - 50,258 50,870 - 50,870 Foreign exchange, interest rate 
Subordinated liabilities 4,272 - 4,272 4,306 - 4,306 Foreign exchange, interest rate 
Retirement benefit obligations 408 - 408 672 - 672 Interest rate, inflation, longevity, credit 

spread 
 254,036 35,085 218,951 255,259 38,575 216,684  
(1) Primary metrics for controlling and measuring key risk factors for Banking Market risk are NIM and EVE and for Traded Market risk is Value-at-Risk (‘VaR’), which is defined on page 123 of the 

2013 Annual Report. 

 
For each category of assets and liabilities that is shown, either wholly or partially, as traded risk in the table above, the basis forthat risk 
classification is as follows: 
 
Trading assets and liabilities 
Assets and liabilities are classified as held for trading if they have been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in 
the near term, or form part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent 
pattern of short-term profit-taking. These assets and liabilities are treated as traded risk for the purposes of market risk management. 
 
Financial assets designated at fair value 
Financial assets designated at fair value amounting to £52m (2013: £51m) representing a portfolio of roll-up mortgages, as described in Note 17 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the 2013 Annual Report, are treated as traded risk for the purposes of market risk management; the 
remainder are risk managed on a non-trading basis. 
 
Derivative financial instruments 
Derivatives are held for trading or for risk management purposes. Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless they are designated as being 
in a hedge relationship. The Santander UK group chooses to designate certain derivatives as in a hedging relationship if they meet specific criteria. 
Most of our derivative exposures arise from sales and trading activities and are treated as traded risk for market risk management purposes. 

Derivatives which are not risk managed on a trading intent basis are treated as non-traded risk for VaR measurement purposes. They 
include non-qualifying hedging derivatives and derivatives qualifying for fair value and cash flow hedge accounting. The use of non-qualifying 
hedges whose primary risks relate to interest rate and foreign exchange exposure is described on pages 240 and 241 of the 2013 Annual Report. 
Details of derivatives in fair value and cash flow hedge accounting relationships are given in Note 11 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim 
Financial Statements. 
 
 
 



 

Detailed Business Review 

Risk Management Report continued 
 

4 Half Yearly Financial Report  67 

TRADED MARKET RISK
 

 

 
 

TRADED MARKET RISK – COMMERCIAL BANKING 
 

 
The amounts below represent the potential change in market values of trading instruments. Since trading instruments are recorded at market 
value, these amounts also represent the potential effect on income. 
 
 Actual exposure at 

30 June  31 December  
2014 

£m Trading instruments  
2013 
£m 

Interest rate risks(1) 1.4 1.7 
0.5 0.5 Equity risks(2) 

- - Spread risks(3) 
(0.5) (0.5) Correlation offsets(4) 

1.4 1.7 Total correlated one-day VaR 

 
     Actual exposure for the period ended 
 Average exposure Highest exposure Lowest exposure 

Trading instruments 

30 June  
2014 

£m 

31 December 
2013 

£m 

30 June 
2014 

£m 

31 December 
2013 

£m 

30 June  
2014 

£m 

31 December 
2013 

£m 
Interest rate risks(1) 2.5 3.1 3.9 4.6 1.3 1.6 
Equity risks(2) 0.5 0.8 0.6 1.2 0.4 0.5 
Spread risks(3) - -  - 1.1 - - 
Correlation offsets(4) (0.4) (0.8) - - - - 
Total correlated one-day VaR 2.6 3.1 3.9 5.0 1.4 1.7 
(1) Interest rate risk measures the impact of interest rate and volatility changes on cash instruments, securities and derivatives. This includes swap spread risk (the difference between swap rates 

and the government bond rates), basis risk (changes in interest rate floating benchmark levels) and inflation risk (changes in inflation rates). 
(2) Equity risk measures the impact on equity stocks and derivatives from changes in equity prices, volatilities and dividends. 
(3) Spread risk measures the impact of changes in the credit spread of corporate bonds or credit derivatives. 
(4) The highest and lowest exposure figures reported for each risk type did not necessarily occur on the same day as the highest and lowest total correlated one-day VaR. A corresponding 

correlation offset effect cannot be calculated and is therefore omitted from the above table. 

 
Commercial Banking daily total correlated one day VaR2014 (short-term markets business)(unreviewed) 
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The principal component of VaR in Commercial Banking is interest rate risk. The increase in risk seen in the first quarter of 2014 was due to 
changes in interest rate positioning which also accounted for the decrease in the second quarter. 
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TRADED MARKET RISK – MARKETS 
 
The amounts below represent the potential change in market values of trading instruments. Since trading instruments are recorded at market 
value, these amounts also represent the potential effect on income. 
 

 Actual exposure at 
30 June 2014 

£m 
31 December 2013 

Trading instruments  £m 
Interest rate risks(1) 2.0 2.3 

0.9 1.4 Equity risks(2) 
0.1 0.1 Property risks(3) 
0.3 0.3 Spread risks(4) 

- - Other risks(5) 
(1.1) (1.6) Correlation offsets 

2.2 2.5 Total correlated one-day VaR 

 
     Actual exposure for the period ended 
 Average exposure Highest exposure Lowest exposure 

Trading instruments 

30 June  
2014 

£m 

31 December 
2013 

£m 

30 June  
2014 

£m 

31 December 
2013 

£m 

30 June  
2014 

£m 

31 December  
2013 

£m 
Interest rate risks(1) 3.3 2.6 6.1 4.4 1.8 1.7 
Equity risks(2) 1.2 1.9 1.9 4.6 0.7 0.7 
Property risks(3) 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1 - 
Spread risks(4) 0.4 0.4 0.6 1.0 0.2 0.2 
Other risks(5) - 0.1 0.1 0.5 - - 
Correlation offsets(6) (1.6) (1.9) - - - - 
Total correlated one-day VaR 3.4 3.2 5.9 6.5 1.7 1.9 

(1) Interest rate risk measures the impact of interest rate and volatility changes on cash instruments, securities and derivatives. This includes swap spread risk (the difference between swap rates 
and the government bond rates), basis risk (changes in interest rate floating benchmark levels) and inflation risk (changes in inflation rates). 

(2) Equity risk measures the impact on equity stocks and derivatives from changes in equity prices, volatilities and dividends. 
(3) Property risk measures the impact of changes in the property indices. 
(4) Spread risk measures the impact of changes in the credit spread of corporate bonds or credit derivatives.  
(5) Other risks include foreign exchange risk. Foreign exchange risk measures the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates and volatilities. 
(6) The highest and lowest exposure figures reported for each risk type did not necessarily occur on the same day as the highest and lowest total correlated one-day VaR. A corresponding 

correlation offset effect cannot be calculated and is therefore omitted from the above table. 
 
Markets daily total correlated one day VaR2014 (unreviewed) 
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The principal component of VaR in Markets is interest rate risk.The VaR volatility in the first half of 2014 was predominately due to short-term 
changes in interest rate positioning during the period. 
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BALANCE SHEET MANAGEMENT RISK 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 

Balance sheet management risk includes exposures arising as a result of the structure of portfolios of assets and liabilities, or where the liquidity of 
the market is such that the exposure could not be closed out over a short-time horizon. The risk exposure is generated by features inherent in 
either a product or portfolio and normally presented over the life of the product or portfolio. Such exposures are a result of the decision to 
undertake specific business activities, can take a number of different forms, and are generally managed over a longer-time horizon.Through the 
internal transfer pricing mechanism, material balance sheet management risks arising from divisions are transferred from the originating business 
to FMIR in Corporate Centre where they are monitored, controlled and managed holistically in conjunction with exposures arising from the 
funding, liquidity or capital management activities of FMIR. 

There are four key areas of balance sheet management risk within Santander UK, which are discussed in the sections that follow. These 
are: 
 

> Banking Market risk; 
 

> Pensions risk; 
 

> Liquidity and funding risk; and 
 

> Capital risk. 

 
BANKING MARKET RISK 
 
Types of Banking Market risk 
 
Yield Curve Risk 
 
The table below reflects how base case income and valuation across the Santander UK group would be affected by a 100 basis point parallel shift 
(both upwards and downwards) applied instantaneously to the yield curve. Sensitivity to parallel shifts represents the quantum of risk in a manner 
that is considered to be both simple and scaleable. 100 basis points is the stress which is typically focussed on for Banking Market risk controls 
across the Santander UK group (although sensitivities to other parallel shifts are also regularly monitored). For comparison purposes these 
measures are shown at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013: 

 

 30 June 2014 31 December 2013 
+100bps 

£m 
-100bps 

 £m 
+100bps 

£m 
-100bps 

£m 

NIM sensitivity  236 (20) 181 87 

 
The change in the sensitivities between 31 December 2013 and 30 June 2014 was largely attributable to changes in product mix, the forecast 
timing of Base Rate movements and their impact on customer rates.   
 
Basis Risk  

EVE sensitivity  176 (231) 49 (16) 

 
The Santander UK Basis Risk VaR (99% confidence level, 1 day) at 30 June 2014 was £6m (2013: £8m) and was broadly unchanged from the year-
end position. 
 
Inflation and Spread Risks 
 
The available-for-sale volatility from the Santander UK ALCO Portfolio and Liquid Asset Portfolio positions VaR (95% confidence level, 1 day) at 30 
June 2014 was £4.9m (2013: £4.7m) and was broadly unchanged from the year-end position. This included the inflation and spread risk 
exposures of these positions. VaR for the individual risk types is not reported separately.  

As in previous periods, the portfolio of securities held for liquidity and investment purposes is regularly stress tested against a variety of 
historical and hypothetical scenarios. There are limits established against the potential losses estimated by the stress tests that complement the 
VaR-based limits discussed above.At 30 June 2014, the worst 3 month stressed loss for the Santander UK available-for-sale accounted portfolios 
was estimated to be £190m using historic deterministic stress tests (2013: £139m).The increase in VaR over the period was due to changes in the 
composition of the bond portfolio as part of normal liquidity management activities. 
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LIQUIDITY AND FUNDING RISK 
 
Liquidity and funding risk is managed on a Santander UK group basis. In addition, under the PRA’s regulatory liquidity regime, Santander UK and 
its subsidiaries Abbey National Treasury Services plcand Cater Allen Limited form the Santander UK Defined Liquidity Group (‘DLG’). Under these 
arrangements, each member of the DLG is liable to support each other in terms of transferring or receiving surplus liquidity in times of stress.  

 
LIQUIDITY RISK 
 
Santander UK’s key ongoing liquidity risks, Liquidity Risk Appetite (‘LRA’) and approach to Liquidity risk management are described on pages 133 
to 135 of the 2013 Annual Report.In addition to the Liquidity Risk Appetite, Santander UK also complies with regulatory requirements set by the 
PRA, other regulatory bodies and Banco Santander group standards. New requirements such as Liquidity Coverage Ratio (‘LCR’) and Net Stable 
Funding Ratio (‘NSFR’) which will be introduced under the Basel III regime are being actively monitored at a Santander UK group level. Reporting 
processes are being developed to ensure compliance with these ratios. At 30June 2014, the LCRwas in excess of 100%, and in excess of minimum 
regulatory requirements. The LCR is tracked at key governance committees including ALCO; the NSFR is still under development and is not 
disclosed at this time. 

The table below shows the basis of liquidity ratios that are tracked and also the current level of LCR and LRA. Santander UK reviewed 
and revised its Liquidity Risk Appetite in 2013 and it was updated to represent the coverage of the current most plausible stress by qualifying liquid 
resources. 
 
Compliance with internal and regulatory stress tests 
 

 30 June 2014 30 June 2014 31 December 2013 31 December 2013

 

Santander UK LRA 
(two month  

Santander UK specific 
requirement) 

Estimated Basel 
IIILCR 

 (revised text  
January 2013) (1) 

Santander UK LRA 
(two month  

Santander UK specific 
requirement) 

Estimated Basel III 
LCR 

(revised text  
January 2013) 

 £bn £bn £bn £bn 
Eligible liquidity pool 30.4 36.0 27.2 31.8
     
Asset inflows 0.6 1.0 0.6 0.9 
     
Stress outflows:     
Retail and commercial deposit outflows  (5.5) (6.7) (4.7) (6.2) 
Wholesale funding and derivatives (6.8) (19.2) (2.1) (13.8) 
Contractual credit rating downgrade exposure (5.6) (6.0) (6.6) (9.2) 
Drawdowns of loan commitments  (2.6) (2.6) (2.2) (2.6) 
Other (1.6) - (1.6) - 
Total stress net cash outflows  (21.5) (33.5) (16.6) (30.9) 
Surplus 8.9 2.5 10.6 0.9 
Liquidity pool as a percentage of anticipated net cash flows 141% 107% 164% 103% 

(1) Takes into account the ‘Instructions for Basel III monitoring’ and ‘Frequently asked questions on Basel III monitoring’ as revised by the Basel Committee in March and May 2014, respectively. 

 
LIQUID ASSETS 

 
Santander UK holds, at all times, a portfolio of unencumbered liquid assets to mitigate liquidity risk. The size and composition of this portfolio is 
determined by Santander UK’s Liquidity Risk Appetite and regulatory requirements. 

The table below shows the carrying value and liquidity value of liquid assets held by Santander UK at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 
2013 and the weighted average carrying value during the relevant period:  
 

 Carrying value Liquidity value Weighted average carrying  
value during the period/year 

 30 June 2014 31 December 2013 30 June 2014 31 December 2013 30 June 2014 31 December 2013 
 £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn 
Cash at central banks(4) 25 25 25 25 28 29 
Government bonds 7 4 7 4 4 4 
Eligible liquid assets(1) 32 29 32 29 32 33 
High quality liquid assets  4 3 3 2 4 3 
Other liquid assets:       
- Whole loans and own debt securities(2)(3) 34 39 22 25 36 38 
- Other securities 2 2 1 1 2 2 
Total liquid assets(4) 72 73 58 57 74 76 
(1) Eligible liquid assets consist of those assets which meet the PRA requirements for a liquid asset portfolio. 
(2) Whole loans are loans acceptable on an unsecuritised basis to the Bank of England as collateral for its various funding arrangements. 
(3) Includes own debt securities (i.e. retained issuances) held by Santander UK of £1bn at 30 June 2014 (2013: £1bn). 
(4) Excludes cash in hand. 
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The classification of the assets in the liquid asset portfolio in the Consolidated Balance Sheet, or their treatment as off-balance sheet at 30 June 
2014and 31 December 2013was as follows: 
 
30 June 2014  On balance sheet  Off balance sheet 
 Total 

liquid 
assets  

Cash Financial assets 
designated at 

fair value 

Loans and 
advances to 

customers 

Trading 
Assets 

Available- 
for-sale  

securities 

Loans and 
receivables 

securities 

 Collateral 
received/ 
(pledged) 

Retained issuances 
of own debt 

securities 
 £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn  £bn £bn 
Cash at central banks(1) 25 25 - - - - -  - - 
Government bonds 7 - - - 4 4 -  (1) - 
Eligible liquid assets 32 25 - - 4 4 -  (1) - 
High quality bonds 4 - - - 1 4 -  (1) - 
Other liquid assets: 
- Whole loans and own debt securities 34 - 2 31 - - -  - 1 
- Other securities 2 - - - 2 - 1  (1) - 
Total liquid assets(1) 72 25 2 31 7 8 1  (3) 1 
 
31 December 2013  On balance sheet  Off balance sheet 
 Total 

liquid 
assets  

Cash Financial assets 
designated at 

fair value 

Loans and 
advances to 

customers 

Trading 
Assets 

Available- 
for-sale  

securities 

Loans and 
receivables 

securities 

 Collateral 
received/ 
(pledged) 

Retained issuances 
of own debt 

securities 
 £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn  £bn £bn 
Cash at central banks(1) 25 25 - - - - -  - - 
Government bonds 4 - - - 3 3 -  (2) - 
Eligible liquid assets 29 25 - - 3 3 -  (2) - 
High quality bonds 3 - - - 1 2 -  - - 
Other liquid assets:           
- Whole loans and own debt securities 39 - 1 37 - - -  - 1 
- Other securities 2 - - - 1 - 1  - - 
Total liquid assets(1) 73 25 1 37 5 5 1  (2) 1 

(1) Excludes cash in hand. 
 

The following tables set out liquid assets by the geographic location of the issuer or counterparty at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013: 
 
 30 June 

2014 
£bn 

31 December 
2013 
£bn 

Eligible liquid assets: 
Cash at central banks: 

  

- UK 18 20 
- US 7 5 
 25 25 
Government bonds:   
- UK 3 2 
- US 3 2 
- Supranational 1 - 
 7 4 
Total eligible liquid assets 32 29 
High quality(1) corporate bonds and asset-backed securities:   
- UK 1 1 
- US - 1 
- Other countries, each less than £1bn(2) 3 1 
 4 3 
Other liquid assets:   
- UK – Whole loans and own debt securities 34 39 
- UK – Other debt securities, bonds, and equities included in major indices  1 1 
- Other countries, each less than £1bn(3) 1 1 
 36 41 
Total liquid assets 72 73 

(1) A- rated or above.  
(2) Consists ofAustria, Belgium, Canada, Switzerland, Germany, France, Norway, Sweden, Ireland, Luxembourg, Denmark and Netherlands. 
(3) Consists of Canada, Spain, Italy, France, Denmark, Portugal and Australia. 
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Composition of the liquidity pool 
 
The liquidity pool consists of total liquid assets and cash in hand. 
 
30 June 2014   Liquidity pool of which 
 Liquidity pool PRA eligible Basel III Liquidity Coverage Ratio-eligible 
 Total  Level 1 Level 2A Level 2B 
 £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn 
Cash in hand and cash with central banks 26 25 26 - - 
Government bonds:    
AAA rated 7 7 7 - - 
Total Government bonds 7 7 7 - - 
Other:      
Covered bonds (rated AA- and above) 2 - - 2 - 
  Equities 1 - - - 1 
Other 37 - - - 1 
Total Other 40 - - 2 2 
Total at 30 June 2014 73 32 33 2 2 

 
31 December 2013   Liquidity pool of which 
 Liquidity pool PRA eligible Basel III Liquidity Coverage Ratio-eligible 
 Total  Level 1 Level 2A Level 2B 
 £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn 
Cash in hand and cash with central banks 26 25 26 - - 
Government bonds:    
AAA rated 2 2 2 - - 
AA+ to AA- rated 2 2 2 - - 
Total Government bonds 4 4 4 - - 
Other:      
Covered bonds (rated AA- and above) 1 - - 1 - 
  Corporate bonds (rated A- and above) 1 - - - 1 
  Equities 1 - - - - 
Other 41 - - - - 
Total Other 44 - - 1 1 
Total at 31 December 2013 74 29 30 1 1 

 

Liquidity pool by currency  
USDollar 

£bn 
Euro 

£bn 
Sterling 

£bn 
Other  

£bn 
Total  

£bn 
At 30 June 2014 13 2 58 - 73
At 31 December 2013 8 2 63 1 74

 
Liquidity developments in the first half of 2014(unreviewed) 
 
The first half of 2014 was characterised by steadily improving sentiment regarding the UK, US and, to a lesser extent, eurozone economies. In 
addition, overall investor sentiment continued to strengthen. A developing trend towards the search for enhanced yield and increased risk appetite 
was observed. 

During the first half of 2014, Santander UK benefited from low wholesale, unsecured medium-term and secured medium-term funding 
rates and increased confidence both in the UK banking sector and wider economic environment. Throughout the first half of 2014, Santander UK 
continued to maintain a strong liquidity position and a conservative balance sheet structure (i.e. maintaining high levels of high quality liquid 
assets) as well as robust risk management controls to monitor and manage the levels of the liquid asset portfolio and encumbrance. Eligible liquid 
assets continued to significantly exceed wholesale funding of less than one year, with a coverage ratio of 127% at 30 June 2014 (2013: 139%). 
The change in the ratio, which is expected to be volatile due to the management of normal short term business commitments, was driven by an 
increase in eligible liquid assets by £2.7bn to £32.2bnat 30 June 2014 (2013: £29.5bn) offset by an increase in wholesale funding with a residual 
maturity of less than one year of £4.1bn to £25.3bnat 30 June 2014 (2013: £21.2bn), due to the phasing of secured funding maturities. 

In addition, Santander UK’sLCR improved to 107% at 30 June 2014 (2013: 103%). The rules relating to the LCR, which is expected to 
be effective from the start of 2015, remain to be finalised. We continue to monitor the ratio based on our interpretation of the rules but it will be 
subject to revision as the regulatory process develops further. The ratio will also not necessarily be comparable with those of our peers.   
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FUNDING RISK  
 
Santander UK’s primary sources of funding, approach to funding risk management and funding strategy and structure are described on pages 139 
to 141 of the 2013 Annual Report. 

 
DEPOSIT FUNDING 
 
The table below shows customer loans, customer deposits and the loan-to-deposit ratio for the Retail Banking, Commercial Banking and 
Corporate Centre business divisions at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013. Retail Banking and Commercial Banking activities are largely funded 
by customer deposits with the remaining funded with long-term debt and equity (including funding secured against customer loans and 
advances). The Markets business division has no customer loans or customer deposits.  

The data presented in the table below for the business divisions excludes accrued interest. The table also shows loans and advances to 
customers, customer deposits and the loan-to-deposit ratio for the Santander UK group at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013. The data 
presented for the Santander UK group includes accrued interest but excludes repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements, as 
described in “Key Performance Indicators” on page 6 of the 2013 Annual Report. 
 

30 June 2014 Customer loans Customer deposits Loan-to-Deposit ratio 
 £bn £bn % 
Retail Banking  156.6 126.9 123 
Commercial Banking 23.1 14.6 158 
Corporate Centre 8.7 9.2 95 
Total customer assets / deposits 188.4 150.7  
Adjust for: Fair value loans, loan loss reserves, accrued interest and other (2.3) -   
Statutory customer loans and advances / deposits 186.1 150.7  
Less: repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements -  (0.9)   
Total (1) 186.1 149.8 124 

 
31 December 2013 Customer loans Customer deposits Loan-to-Deposit ratio 
 £bn £bn 

123.2 
% 

126 Retail Banking  155.6 
Commercial Banking 22.1 12.6 175 
Corporate Centre 9.4 10.6 89 
Total customer assets / deposits 187.1 146.4  
Adjust for: Fair value loans, loan loss reserves, accrued interest and other (2.5) 0.8  
Statutory customer loans and advances / deposits 184.6 147.2  
Less: repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements - (0.9)  
Total (1) 184.6 146.3 126 

(1) Total Loan-to-Deposit ratio calculated as loans and advances to customers (excluding reverse repurchase agreements) divided by deposits by customers (excluding repurchase agreements). 

 
 
WHOLESALE FUNDING 
 
Maturity profile of wholesale funding 
 
The tables below show Santander UK’s primary wholesale funding sources, excluding short-term repurchase agreements. The tables are prepared 
taking into account scheduled repayments, and do not reflect the final contractual maturity of the funding. 
 
30 June 2014 Not  

more 
than 1 
month 

Over 1 but 
not more 

than 3 
months 

Over 3 but 
not more 

than 6 
months 

Over 6 but 
not more 

than 9 
months 

Over 9 but not
more than 12

months

Sub-total 
less  

than 1 year 

Over 1 but 
not more 

than 2 years 

Over 2 but 
not more 

than 5  years 
Over 5 

years Total 
 £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn 
Deposits by banks (non-customer deposits) 1.0 0.8 - 0.1 - 1.9 - - - 1.9
CDs and Commercial Paper 2.4 2.6 1.4 1.3 0.3 8.0 0.2 - - 8.2
Senior unsecured - public benchmark - - 0.9 - 0.2 1.1 1.5 3.6 1.2 7.4
- privately placed - - 0.3 0.1 0.2 0.6 1.0 1.0 0.8 3.4
Covered bonds - 0.2 - 0.8 2.0 3.0 - 6.7 6.8 16.5
Securitisation and Structured Issuance 2.9 0.8 1.4 2.5 3.0 10.6 5.4 8.2 0.9 25.1
Subordinated liabilities - - - 0.1 - 0.1 - 1.1 3.7 4.9
Total at 30 June 2014 6.3 4.4 4.0 4.9 5.7 25.3 8.1 20.6 13.4 67.4
Of which:           
- secured 2.9 1.0 1.4 3.3 5.0 13.6 5.4 14.9 7.7 41.6
- unsecured 3.4 3.4 2.6 1.6 0.7 11.7 2.7 5.7 5.7 25.8
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31 December  2013 Not  
more  

than 1 
month 

Over 1 but 
not more 

than 3 
months 

Over 3 but 
not more  

than 6 
months 

Over 6 but 
not more  

than 9 
months 

Over 9 but not
more than 12

months

Sub-total 
 less  

than 1 year 

Over 1 but 
not more  

than 2 years 

Over 2 but 
not more 

 than 5  years 
Over 5 

years Total 
 £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn 
Deposits by bank (non-customer deposits) 0.1 1.2 - - - 1.3 - - - 1.3
CDs and Commercial Paper 1.9 2.2 1.6 0.4 0.5 6.6 - - - 6.6
Senior unsecured - public benchmark - 0.8 1.5 - 1.0 3.3 1.1 2.4 0.7 7.5
                            - privately placed 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.3 0.9 0.6 0.7 0.7 2.9
Covered bonds - - 1.3 0.1 - 1.4 2.8 6.0 6.8 17.0
Securitisation and Structured Issuance 1.2 0.3 1.7 3.2 1.3 7.7 7.1 9.7 1.4 25.9
Subordinated liabilities - - - - - - - 0.1 4.4 4.5
Total at 31 December 2013 3.3 4.7 6.3 3.8 3.1 21.2 11.6 18.9 14.0 65.7
Of which:          
- secured 1.2 0.3 3.0 3.3 1.3 9.1 9.9 15.7 8.2 42.9
- unsecured 2.1 4.4 3.3 0.5 1.8 12.1 1.7 3.2 5.8 22.8

 
Currency composition of wholesale funds 
 
At 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013,the proportions of wholesale funding by major currencies were as follows: 
 
30 June 2014 Sterling USDollar Euro Other Currencies 
 % % % % 
Deposits by banks (non-customer deposits) 13 84 3 -
CDs and Commercial Paper 19 56 25 -
Senior unsecured - public benchmark 5 49 43 3

  - privately placed 31 17 46 6
Covered bonds 34 - 65 1
Securitisation and Structured Issuance 39 31 29 1
Subordinated liabilities 66 24 7 3
Total at 30 June 2014 33 28 37 2
 
31 December 2013 Sterling US Dollar Euro Other Currencies 
 % % % % 
Deposits by banks (non-customer deposits) 9 90 1 -
CDs and Commercial Paper 17 65 16 2
Senior unsecured - public benchmark 13 41 43 3 

  - privately placed 40 16 34 10 
Covered bonds 29 - 70 1
Securitisation and Structured Issuance 35 33 31 1
Subordinated liabilities 62 27 8 3
Total at 31 December 2013 31 28 39 2

 
Reconciliation of wholesale funding to the balance sheet  
 
The tables below present a reconciliation of wholesale funding to the balance sheet at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013. 
 
30 June 2014  Balance sheet line item 

 
Funding  
analysis 

Deposits by 
banks 

Deposits by 
customers(2) 

Debt securities 
 in issue 

Financial 
liabilities  

at fair value 
Trading  

liabilities 
Subordinated 

liabilities 

Share capital  
and other equity 

instruments(4) 
 £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn 
Deposits by banks (non-customer deposits) 1.9 - - - - 1.9 - -
CDs and Commercial Paper 8.2 - - 7.3 0.9 - - -
Senior unsecured - public benchmark 7.4 - - 7.4 - - - -
                            - privately placed 3.4 - - 1.0 2.4 - - -
Covered bonds 16.5 - - 16.5 - - - -
Securitisation and Structured Issuance 25.1 4.9 0.9 18.1 - 1.2 - -
Subordinated liabilities 4.9 - - - - - 3.8 1.1
Total wholesale funding 67.4 4.9 0.9 50.3 3.3 3.1 3.8 1.1
Repos 7.7 - - - - 7.7 - -
Foreign exchange and hedge accounting  - - - - - - - -
Other 10.9 3.3(1) - - - 7.1(3) 0.5 -
Balance sheet total  86.0 8.2 0.9 50.3 3.3 17.9 4.3 1.1
 
31 December 2013  Balance sheet line item 

 
Funding  
analysis 

Deposits by 
banks 

Deposits by 
customers(2) 

Debt securities 
 in issue 

Financial liabilities  
at fair value 

Trading  
liabilities 

Subordinated 
liabilities 

Share capital  
and other equity 

instruments(4) 
 £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn 
Deposits by banks (non-customer deposits) 1.3 - - - - 1.3 - -
CDs and Commercial Paper 6.6 - - 5.8 0.8 - - -
Senior unsecured - public benchmark 7.5 - - 7.5 - - - -
                            - privately placed 2.9 - - 0.3 2.6 - - -
Covered bonds 17.0 - - 17.0 - - - -
Securitisation and Structured Issuance 25.9 5.5 0.9 19.5 - - - - 
Subordinated liabilities 4.5 - - - - - 3.9 0.6 
Total wholesale funding 65.7 5.5 0.9 50.1 3.4 1.3 3.9 0.6
Repos 12.8 - - - - 12.8 - -
Foreign exchange and hedge accounting  0.9 - - 0.8 - - 0.1 - 
Other 10.7 3.2(1) - - - 7.2(3) 0.3 -
Balance sheet total  90.1 8.7 0.9 50.9 3.4 21.3 4.3 0.6
(1) Principally consists of items in the course of transmission and other deposits. See Note 21 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 
(2) Included in the balance sheet total of £150,734m (2013: £147,167m). 
(3) Consists of short positions in securities and unsettled trades, cash collateral and short-term deposits. See Note 22 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 
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(4) Principally consists of £300m (2013: £300m) fixed/floating rate non-cumulative callable preference shares, £300mstep-up callable perpetual reserve capital instruments and £500m perpetual 
capital securities. See Note 31 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements.
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Funding developments in the first half of 2014(unreviewed) 
 
Our overall funding strategy remains to develop and maintain a diversified funding base, which allows us access to a variety of funding sources. As 
part of this strategy, Santander UK raises funding in a number of currencies, including US dollars and euro, and converts these back into sterling to 
fund its commercial assets which are largely sterling denominated. 

In keeping with the pattern of new issuance in 2013, the focus of newissuance in the first half of 2014 was in the unsecured markets. In 
total, we issued three public USDollar unsecured securities and one public Euro unsecured security. In addition to the unsecured issuance, we 
issued residential mortgage-backed securities and a benchmark Sterling covered bond, two forms of financing that permit us to benefit from our 
prime UK mortgage assets. The improvement in market sentiment over the medium term continued in the first half of 2014. The wholesale 
funding markets that we operate in continued to be stable, offering us economically viable sources of funding. This stable market backdrop 
allowed us to continue to have a more balanced mix of wholesale unsecured and secured new issuance than in recent years. Overall, the cost of 
wholesale funding continued to fall due to the replacement of expensive medium-term funding maturitieswith lower cost new issuance in the now 
more stable capital markets environment. 

In the first half of 2014, our medium-term funding issuance was £6.7bn(2013: £6.6bn). This included £500m Perpetual Capital Securities 
issued to our immediate parent company in June 2014, which issued a similar security to Banco Santander, S.A.. During the first half of 2014, a 
further £500mof Treasury Bills were drawn under the Bank of England and HM TreasuryFunding for Lending Scheme.Maturities in the first half of 
2014 were approximately £7.6bn (2013: £16.3bn). At 30 June 2014, 62% (2013: 68%) of wholesale funding had a maturity of greater than one 
year, with an overall residual duration for wholesale funding of 1,046 days (2013: 1,090 days). 

During the first half of 2014, our continuing strategy of building closer customer relationships through the1|2|3 World retail offering 
created additional current account liabilitiesthat further strengthened this stable funding source. At the same time, the level of less stable retail 
and corporate instant access accounts reduced as a constituent of the funding mix. 
 
Term issuance 
In the first half of 2014, the majority of term issuance was in unsecured format, consistent with the issuance strategy in 2013. During the 
period,term issuance (sterling equivalent) comprised: 
 

 
Sterling US Dollar Euro 

Total 
30 June 2014 

Total 
31 December 2013 

 £bn £bn £bn £bn £bn 
Securitisations 0.8 1.0 - 1.8 1.7 
Covered bonds - privately placed - - - - 0.5 
                        - publicly placed 0.8 - - 0.8 0.8 
Structured notes 0.1 0.1 - 0.2 0.4 
Senior unsecured - privately placed - 0.1 1.0 1.1 0.2 
                           - public benchmark - 1.5 0.8 2.3 2.1 
Subordinated debt (including Perpetual Capital Securities) 0.5 - - 0.5 0.9 
Total gross issuances 2.2 2.7 1.8 6.7 6.6 
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CAPITAL RISK(unreviewed) 

 
Santander UK manages its capital based on an assessment of both regulatory requirements and the economic capital impacts of our businesses. 
The regulatory capital position at 30 June 2014 is based on the CRD IV rules, which implement Basel III in the EU and came into force on 1 January 
2014. Regulatory capital demand is quantified for credit, traded market, banking market, operational, pension obligation and securitisation risk in 
accordance with PRA requirements. Santander UK produces and shares with the PRA its Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process document, 
which informs the supervisory review and evaluation process by the PRA which can result in additional capital requirements.  

The Basel III and CRD IV rules include proposals for the use of a leverage ratio as a backstop measure to risk-based capital ratios. The 
methodology for calculation of the Leverage Ratio and the required minimum level for banks have not been finalised by the EU and are subject to 
further modification and calibration. A required minimum level significantly above the Basel III proposed level of 3% could require Santander UK to 
undertake leverage ratio-enhancing actions. Santander UK and other major UK banks and building societies are currently subjected to a PRA-
specified leverage ratio minimum level of 3%; however the FPC are consulting upon measures that could increase this minimum level significantly. 
During 2014, the Bank of England is conducting concurrent stress tests on major UK banks and building societies, in which Santander UK is 
participating. The results of this exercise could have a material impact upon minimum capital levels and are expected to be announced towards the 
end of 2014. 

A comparison of the Santander UK Consolidated Balance Sheet to the equivalent regulatory exposure is set out in the ‘Capital 
Management and Resources’ section in the Balance Sheet Review. 

 
 
PENSION RISK (unreviewed) 

 
During the first half of 2014, the risk profile of the Santander (UK) Group Pension Scheme,remained stable with the focus on positive performance 
of the assets relative to liabilities, whilst managing volatility through hedging a proportion of the liabilities with bond assets and derivatives. 
Santander UK seeks to manage the impact of the pension risk arising from market movements.Consistent with previous periods, the Scheme was 
managed within the risk triggers and limits. 

During the first half of 2014, the accounting deficit of the Scheme improved by £381m, partially driven by positive asset returns as well 
as a net gain of £218mthat arose from scheme changes that limit future defined benefit pension entitlements and provide for the longer term 
sustainability of our staff pension arrangements. 

In addition, the latest triennial Trustee funding valuation at 31 March 2013 was agreed. Following this, an updatedschedule of deficit 
funding contributions was agreed with the Scheme Trustee. The new funding valuation and contribution schedule did not have a significant 
impact on VaR and stress loss metrics. 

Further information on Santander UK’s pension obligations, including the current asset allocation and sensitivity to key risk factors can 
be found in Note 26 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 

 
 
OPERATIONAL RISK(unreviewed) 

 
A revised Operational Risk Framework was approved at the start of 2014. A comprehensive supporting programme has been developed to ensure 
that Santander UK manages its operational risk in line with best practice. This programme has enhanced the key toolset elements of Risk Control 
Self Assessments, Scenario Analysis and Incident & Loss Management. The programme is being rolled out and will also ensure all the associated 
initiatives are embedded to a Basel II Advanced Measurement Approach equivalent standard by the end of 2016.  
 
Operational Risk loss profile 
 
The following table sets out Santander UK’s operational risk loss profile for the first six months of 2014. The operational loss categories in the 
chart replicate the Basel II loss event type classification, although within the Santander UK Risk Framework the responsibility for management of 
some of these risks may fall within other risk types (for example, Conduct, Regulatory and Legal Risk). The figures and volumes quoted reflect the 
loss data collection and categorisation policies in place within Santander UK at 30 June 2014. These policies are being updated with the aim of 
enhancing the degree of comparability with the range of different categorisations employed across the financial services industry. 

During the first six months of 2014, the majority of Santander UK’s £83m (year ended 31 December 2013: £221m) of Operational Risk 
losses arose within the clients, products and business practices category. These principally represented redress payouts (excluding related costs) on 
the sales of PPI products. See Note 25 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements for more information on PPI. 

The key operational risks facing Santander UK include change management, supplier management, conduct, IT and cyber attacks. 
Industry-wide concerns about external cyber crime remain high. On-going monitoring and oversight continued to be strengthened. 
 

  
Six months ended 

30 June 2014  
Year ended 

31 December 2013 
 £m Volume £m Volume 
Internal Fraud - 234 3 1,318 
External Fraud 10 68,198 24 163,272 
Employment Practices and Workplace Safety  - 71 1 183 
Clients, Products, and Business Practices 63 46,084 170 121,363 
Damage to Physical Assets - 5 1 66 
Business Disruption and Systems Failures  - 133 - 1,892 
Execution, Delivery, and Process Management 10 274,823 22 614,610 
Total 83 389,548 221 902,704 
 

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Bribery
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CONDUCT RISK (unreviewed) 

 
Conduct risk is the risk that Santander UK’s decisions and behaviours lead to a detriment or poor outcome for our customers. Santander UK 
considers conduct risk to be a primary risk type and takes a forward-looking approach to managing the risk inalignment with the Conduct Risk 
Framework. This framework has been developed through Santander UK’s overall Risk Framework and Operational Risk Framework, which include 
the core principles of risk management and control activities.  

The Conduct Risk Framework defines the overriding principles and responsibilities for the identification, management, reporting and 
oversight of conduct risk. It is the operation of, and outputs from, these risk management activities that enables Santander UK to manage conduct 
risk exposures. All business units are required to manage their activities in accordance with the principles and guidelines set out in the Conduct 
Risk Framework, together with those detailed in the Santander UK Risk and Operational Risk Frameworks. 

Key business decisions, including product approval, business strategy developments and conduct related remediation programmes are 
monitored and reported through formal governance committees.A programme of workis planned to continue throughout 2014 to further embed 
the effective management of conduct risk throughout the business, including a comprehensive cultural change project. 

Details of Santander UK’s provision for conduct remediation are set out in Note 25to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial 
Statements. Further information on conduct remediation provision sensitivities is set out in “Critical accounting policies and Areas of Significant 
Management Judgement” on page 229 of the 2013 Annual Report. 

 
 
REGULATORY RISK (unreviewed) 

 
Regulatory risk is the risk of reductions in earnings and/or value, through financial or reputational loss, from failing to comply with applicable 
codes and regulatory rules. The risk was broadly unchanged from the year-end position; however there have been a number of regulatory 
developments during the first half of 2014. This includes the implementation of the Mortgage Market Review, which came into force on 26 April 
2014. In addition, the first half of 2014 saw the transfer of consumer credit regulation from the OFT to the FCA, which was effective on 1 April 
2014. Santander UK has managed these changes across the business and has in a place a robust approach to identifying, assessing, managing and 
reporting any additional risks emerging from the new requirements. Following FCA thematic reviews in 2012, Santander UK was fined £12m by 
the FCA in March 2014 in relation to historic investment advice failings. The fine was covered by an existing provision. Whilst no material levels of 
mis-selling were identified, Santander UK has agreed to undertake a customer contact exercise to relevant customers. 

 
 
LEGAL RISK (unreviewed) 

 
Santander UK considers legal risk to be a key risk type and manages it in full alignment with the Legal Risk Framework.This Framework has been 
developed under the Santander UK Risk Framework and explains how Santander UK manages and controls legal risk.  

Effective management of legal risk continued and was expanded throughout the first half of 2014. There was a reduction from 2013 in 
the level of legal risk, expressed through the key risk indicator of aggregated value at risk of all “managed legal claims”. 

. 
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AREAS OF FOCUS AND OTHER ITEMS 
 
1. COUNTRY RISK EXPOSURE 
 
SantanderUK manages its country risk exposure under its global limits framework. Within this framework, Santander UK sets its individual risk 
appetite for each country, taking into account any factors that may influence the risk profile of each country, including political events, the macro-
economic situation and the nature of the risk incurred. Exposures are actively managed if it is considered appropriate. Accordingly, and over recent 
years, SantanderUK has intensified its monitoring of exposures to sovereigns and counterparties in eurozone countries, and has proceeded to 
selectively divest assets directly or indirectly affected by events in those countries. Banco Santander group-related risk is considered 
separately. 

The country risk tables below show Santander UK’s exposures to central and local governments, government guaranteed 
counterparties, banks, other financial institutions, retail customers and corporate customers at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013. Total 
exposures consist of the total of balance sheet values and off-balance sheet values. Balance sheet values are calculated in accordance with IFRS 
(i.e. after the effect of netting agreements recognised in accordance with the requirements of IFRS) except for credit provisions which have been 
added back. Off balance sheet values consist of undrawn facilities and letters of credit. 

The country of exposure has been assigned based on the counterparty’s country of incorporation except where SantanderUK is aware 
that a guarantee is in place, in which case the country of incorporation of the guarantor has been used. The exposures are presented by type of 
counterparty other than where the specific exposures have been guaranteed by a sovereign counterparty in which case they are presented within 
the ‘Government guaranteed’ category. 

Given the ongoing interest in eurozone economies, disclosures relating to those economies are presented first and highlighted 
separately.  

The tables exclude credit risk exposures to other Banco Santander group companies, which are presented separately on 
pages 81 to 82. 
 
 

30 June 2014 Central and local 
governments 

£bn 

Government 
guaranteed 

£bn 
Banks (2) 

£bn 

 Other financial 
institutions 

£bn 

 
Retail 

£bn 

 
Corporate 

£bn 

 
Total(1) 

£bn 
Eurozone:        
Peripheral eurozone countries:        
Ireland - - - 0.1 - 0.4 0.5
Spain (excluding Banco Santander) - - 0.2 - - 0.2 0.4
Italy 0.7 - 0.1 0.1 - 0.1 1.0
Portugal - - - - - - -
Other eurozone countries:        
Germany - - 1.7 - - 0.4 2.1
France - 0.5 1.6 0.1 - 0.1 2.3
All other eurozone(3) - 0.3 0.7 - 0.1 2.0 3.1
 0.7 0.8 4.3 0.3 0.1 3.2 9.4
All other countries:        
UK 21.8 0.4 11.9 3.8 173.6 45.8 257.3
US 7.6 - 7.9 0.3 - 0.4 16.2
Switzerland 0.7 - 0.4 0.1 - 0.4 1.6
Denmark - - 0.1 - - 0.2 0.3
Japan 3.5 - 0.1 0.1 - - 3.7
Russia - - - - - 0.2 0.2
All others(4) - - 2.0 0.5 - 3.2 5.7
 33.6 0.4 22.4 4.8 173.6 50.2 285.0
Total 34.3 1.2 26.7 5.1 173.7 53.4 294.4
(1) Credit exposures exclude cash at hand, the macro hedge of interest rate risk, intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, current and deferred tax assets, retirement benefit assets and 

other assets. Loans and advances to customers are included gross of loan loss allowances. 
(2) Excludes balances with central banks. 
(3)Includes Luxembourg, Netherlands, Belgium and Finland, as well as Greece of £6m andCyprus of £28m. 
(4) Includes Ukraine of £nil. 
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31 December 2013 Central and local 

governments 
£bn 

Government 
guaranteed 

£bn 
Banks (2) 

£bn 

 Other financial 
institutions 

£bn 

 
Retail 

£bn 

 
Corporate 

£bn 

 
Total(1) 

£bn 
Eurozone:        
Peripheral eurozone countries:        
Ireland - - - - - 0.1 0.1 
Spain (excluding Banco Santander) - - 0.2 - - 0.1 0.3 
Italy 0.8 - 0.1 - - 0.1 1.0 
Portugal - - - - - 0.1 0.1 
Other eurozone countries:        
Germany - - 1.6 - - 0.2 1.8 
France - 0.4 1.9 - - 0.1 2.4 
All other eurozone(3) - 0.2 1.4 - - 1.3 2.9 
 0.8 0.6 5.2 - - 2.0 8.6 
All other countries:        
UK 24.2 0.4 12.4 5.1 172.7 41.6 256.4 
US 5.3 - 8.2 0.1 0.1 0.5 14.2 
Switzerland 0.5 - 1.3 - - 0.5 2.3 
Denmark - - 1.4 - - 0.1 1.5 
Japan 3.8 - 0.1 - - 0.1 4.0 
Russia - - - - - 0.2 0.2
All others(4) - - 0.8 0.1 0.5 2.8 4.2 
 33.8 0.4 24.2 5.3 173.3 45.8 282.8 
Total 34.6 1.0 29.4 5.3 173.3 47.8 291.4 
(1) Credit exposures exclude cash at hand, the macro hedge of interest rate risk, intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, current and deferred tax assets, retirement benefit assets and 

other assets. Loans and advances to customers are included gross of loan loss allowances. 

(2) Excludes balances with central banks. 
(3) Includes Luxembourg, The Netherlands, Belgium and Finland, as well as Greece of £3m and Cyprus of £nil. 
(4) Includes Ukraine of £nil. 
 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
Key changes in sovereign and other country risk exposures during the six months ended 30 June2014 were as follows: 
 
> Anincrease of £0.9bn in exposure to the UK to £257.3bn (2013: £256.4bn). This was primarily due to increased commitments and 

undrawn facilities in UK Corporate and Other Financial Institutions and retail mortgage lending, partially offset by a decrease in cash 
held with the Bank of England as part of normal liquid asset portfolio management activity. 
 

> Anincrease of £2.0bn in exposure to the US to £16.2bn (2013: £14.2bn). This was primarily due to additional securities purchased 
under resale activity and an increase in deposits at the US Federal Reserve as part of normal liquid asset portfolio management activity. 
 

> A decrease of £0.7bn in exposure to Switzerland to £1.6bn (2013: £2.3bn). This was due toreduced securities purchased under resale 
activity and lower gross derivative exposures. 
 

> Anincrease of £0.3bn in exposures to Germany to £2.1bn (2013: £1.8bn). This was primarily due to increased securities purchased 
under resale activity, partially offset by lower gross derivative exposures. 
 

> Adecrease of £0.3bn in exposures to Japan to £3.7bn (2013: £4.0bn). This was primarily due to disposals of government securities as 
part of normal liquid asset portfolio management activity. 
 

> An increase of £0.4bn in exposures to Ireland to £0.5bn (2013: £0.1bn). This was due to increased corporate lending, additional 
securities purchased under resale activity and new corporate facilities provided. 
 

> An increase of £0.1bn in exposures to Spain to £0.4bn (2013: £0.3bn). This was due to new corporate facilities provided. 
 

> A decrease of £1.2bn in exposures to Denmark to £0.3bn (2013: £1.5bn). This was principally due to the disposal of securities 
purchased under resale activity. 
 

> Movements in the remaining country risk exposures were minimal and exposures to these countries remained at low levels. 
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Peripheral eurozone countries  
 
This section discussesSantanderUK's direct exposure to peripheral eurozone countries at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013 by type of financial 
instrument. It excludes balances with other Banco Santander group companies which are presented separately on pages 81 to 82. This 
section also discusses our indirect exposures to peripheral eurozone countries 

Direct and indirect risk exposures to peripheral eurozone countries arise primarily in the large corporate element of the portfolio via 
large multinational companies and financial institutions, which are monitored on a regular basis by the Wholesale Credit Risk Department as part 
of the overall risk management process. The corporate portfolio is mainly comprised of multinational UK companies which are considered to be 
geographically well diversified in terms of their assets, operations and profits. The remainder of the Commercial Banking portfolio is predominately 
UK based with no material peripheral eurozone exposure.In addition, the risk is further mitigated by the fact that credit agreements are 
underpinned by both financial and non-financial covenants. 

The risk arising from indirect exposures from our transactions with financial institutions is mitigated by the short-term tenor of the 
transactions, and by the fact that many such transactions contain margin calls and/or collateral requirements, and are subject to standard ISDA 
Master Agreements permitting offsetting.  

The risk arising from indirect exposures from our transactions with other corporates is mitigated by standard financial and non-financial 
guarantees and the fact that the companies are geographically well diversified in terms of their assets, operations and profits.  
 
Direct exposures to peripheral eurozone countries  
Balances with respect to Italy at 30 June 2014 comprised trading assets issued by central and local governments of £0.7bn (2013: £0.8bn), loans 
and receivables securities issued by banks of £nil (2013: £0.1bn), commitments and undrawn facilities with corporate customers and other 
financial institutions of £0.2bn (2013: £0.1bn) and derivative assets issued by banks of £0.1bn (2013: £0.1bn) net of derivative liabilities held by 
banks of £nil (2013: £0.1bn).   

Balances with respect to Spain at 30 June 2014 comprised loans and receivables securities issued by banks of £0.1bn (2013: £0.1bn), 
derivative assets issued by banks of £0.1bn (2013: £0.1bn), and commitments and undrawn facilities with corporate customers of £0.2bn (2013: 
£0.1bn). 

Balances with respect to Ireland at 30 June 2014 comprised trading assets with corporate customers of £0.2bn (2013: £nil), loans and 
advances to corporate customers of £nil (2013: £0.1bn), loans and receivables securities issued by other financial institutions of £0.1bn (2013: 
£nil)and commitments and undrawn facilities with corporate customers of £0.2bn (2013: £nil).  

Balances with respect to Portugal at 30 June 2014 were £nil (2013: £0.1bn). 
 
Indirect exposures to peripheral eurozone countries  
Indirect exposures to peripheral eurozone countries are considered to exist where our direct counterparties outside the peripheral eurozone 
countries themselves have a direct exposure to one or more peripheral eurozone countries. Indirect exposures are identified as part of our ongoing 
credit analysis and monitoring of our counterparty base by the review of available financial information to determine the countries where the 
material parts of a counterparty’s assets, operations or profits arise.  

Our indirect exposures to peripheral eurozone countries consist ofa small number of corporate loans to large multinational companies 
based in the UK that derive a proportion of their profits from one or more peripheral eurozone countries; trading transactions and hedging 
transactions with financial institutions based in the UK and Europe that derive a proportion of their profits from or have a proportion of their 
assets in one or more peripheral eurozone countries; and a small number of loans to other corporate entities which have either a proportion of 
their operations within, or profits from, one or more peripheral eurozone countries. We have no significant indirect exposure to peripheral 
eurozone countries in our retail business. 
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Balances with other Banco Santander group companies  
 
SantanderUK enters into transactions with other Banco Santander group companies in the ordinary course of business. Such transactions are 
undertaken in areas of business where Santander UK has a particular advantage or expertise and where other Banco Santander group companies 
can offer commercial opportunities, substantially on the same terms as for comparable transactions with third party counterparties. These 
transactions also arise in support of the activities of, or with, larger multinational corporate clients and financial institutions which may have 
relationships with a number of entities in the Banco Santander group. 

At 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013, SantanderUK had gross balances with other Banco Santander group companies as follows:  
 

30 June 2014 Banks  
£bn 

Other financial institutions  
£bn 

Corporate  
£bn 

Total 
£bn 

Assets:     
- Spain  2.2 - - 2.2
- UK - 0.6 0.2 0.8
- Chile 0.2 - - 0.2 
 2.4 0.6 0.2 3.2
Liabilities:     
- Spain (3.5) (0.6) - (4.1)
- UK - (1.8) (0.1) (1.9)
- Italy - (0.2) - (0.2)
- Chile (0.1) - - (0.1)
- Germany - (0.1) - (0.1)
- Other < £100m (0.1) (0.5) - (0.6)
 (3.7) (3.2) (0.1) (7.0)
 
31 December 2013 Banks  

£bn 
Other financial institutions  

£bn 
Corporate  

£bn 
Total 
£bn 

Assets:     
- Spain 2.2 0.1 - 2.3 
- UK - 0.7 0.2 0.9 
- Chile 0.1 - - 0.1 
- Other < £100m 0.1 - - 0.1 
 2.4 0.8 0.2 3.4 
Liabilities:     
- Spain (3.7) (0.8) - (4.5) 
- UK - (1.8) (0.1) (1.9) 
- Italy - (0.2) - (0.2) 
- Chile (0.1) - - (0.1) 
- Germany - (0.1) - (0.1) 
- Other < £100m (0.1) (0.5) (0.1) (0.7) 
 (3.9) (3.4) (0.2) (7.5) 
 
The above activities are conducted in a manner that appropriately manages the credit risk arising against such other Banco Santander group 
companies within limits acceptable to the PRA. 
 
30 June 2014 compared to 31 December 2013(unreviewed) 
The above balances with other Banco Santander group companies at 30 June 2014 principally consisted of: 
 
> Reverse repos of £nil (2013: £50m), in the prior period all of which were collateralised by OECD Government (but not peripheral 

eurozone) securities. The reverse repos were classified as “Loans and Advances to banks” in the balance sheetand were offset by repo 
liabilities of £nil (2013: £50m), classified as “Deposits by banks”. See Notes 13 and 21to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial 
Statements. 
 

> Derivative assets of £2,243m (2013: £2,224m) subject to International Swaps and Derivatives Association (‘ISDA’) Master Agreements 
including the Credit Support Annex. These balances were offset by derivative liabilities of £2,240m (2013: £2,141m) and cash collateral 
received, as described below, and are included in Note 11 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 
 

> Cash collateral of £103m (2013: £112m) given in relation to derivatives futures contracts. The cash collateral was classified as “Trading 
assets” in the balance sheet. This was more than offset by cash collateral received in relation to other derivatives of £723m (2013: 
£829m),classified as “Trading liabilities” and “Deposits by banks”. See Notes 10, 21 and 22 to theCondensed Consolidated Interim 
Financial Statements. 
 

> Asset-backed securities of £21m (2013: £23m), which were classified as“Loans and receivables securities” in the balance sheet.  
 

> Asset-backed securities of £57m (2013: £56m), which were classified as “Financial assets designated at fair value” in the balance sheet. 
See Note 12 to theCondensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 
 

> Deposits by customers of £1,130m (2013: £1,014m).  
 

> Debt securities in issue of £489m (2013: £654m). These balances represent holdings of debt securities by the wider Banco Santander 
group as a result of market purchases and for liability management purposes. The decrease in the period reflected contractual 
maturities.See Note 24 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 
 

> Other liabilities of £36m (2013: £247m). 
 

> Subordinated liabilities of £2,307m (2013: £2,229m)reflecting holdings of debt securities by the wider Banco Santander group as a result 
of market purchases and for liability management purposes. 
 

> Financial Liabilities designed at fair value of £271m (2013: £189m). See Note 23 to the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial 
Statements. 



 

Detailed Business Review 

Risk Management Report continued 
 

82 4 Half Yearly FinancialRepor Santander UK plc 201 t 

 

The next section further analyses the balances with other Banco Santander group companies at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013 by type of 
financial instrument and country of the counterparty. 
 

Spain 
 
30 June 2014 Banks  

£bn 
Other financial institutions  

£bn 
Corporate  

£bn 
Total 

£bn 
Derivatives:    

- Derivative assets 2.0 - - 2.0
- Derivative liabilities (2.0) - - (2.0)

      Cash collateral in relation to derivatives:- placed 0.1 - - 0.1
- held (0.7) - - (0.7)

Net derivatives position (0.6) - - (0.6)
Other assets 0.1 - - 0.1 
Total assets, after the impact of collateral (0.5) - - (0.5)
Deposits by customers - (0.6) - (0.6)
Debt securities in issue - (0.1) - (0.1)
Subordinated liabilities (0.7) - - (0.7)
Total liabilities (0.7) (0.7) - (1.4)
Net balance (1.2) (0.7) - (1.9)
 
31 December 2013 Banks  

£bn 
Other financial institutions  

£bn 
Corporate  

£bn 
Total 
£bn 

Repurchase agreements      
- Asset balance - reverse repo  0.1 - - 0.1 

Net repurchase agreement position 0.1 - - 0.1 
Derivatives:     

- Derivative assets 2.0 - - 2.0 
- Derivative liabilities (1.9) - - (1.9) 

      Cash collateral in relation to derivatives:- placed 0.1 - - 0.1 
- held (0.8) - - (0.8) 

Net derivatives position (0.6) - - (0.6) 
Asset-backed securities - 0.1 - 0.1 
Total assets, after the impact of collateral (0.5) 0.1 - (0.4) 
Deposits by customers - (0.6) - (0.6) 
Debt securities in issue (0.1) (0.1) - (0.2) 
Other liabilities (0.2) (0.1) - (0.3) 
Subordinated liabilities (0.7) - - (0.7) 
Total liabilities (1.0) (0.8) - (1.8) 
Net balance (1.5) (0.7) - (2.2) 
 
Other countries 
Balances with respect to Belgium at 30 June 2014 comprised debt securities in issue of £0.4bn (2013: £0.5bn). Balances with respect to the UK at 
30 June 2014 comprised other assets of £0.8bn (2013: £0.9bn), deposits by customers of £0.2bn (2013: £0.3bn) and subordinated liabilities of 
£1.6bn (2013: £1.6bn). Balances with respect to Italy at 30 June 2014 comprised debt securities in issue (purchased in the secondary market) of 
£0.2bn (2013: £0.2bn). Balances with respect to Germany at 30 June 2014 comprised deposits by customers of £0.1bn (2013: £0.1bn). Balances 
with respect to Chile at 30 June 2014 comprised derivative assets of £0.1bn (2013: £0.1bn) and derivative liabilities of £0.1bn (2013: £0.1bn). 
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Independent Review Report to Santander UK plc  
 
We have been engaged by Santander UK plc (the ‘Company’) to review the condensed set of financial statements in the half-
yearly financial report for the six months ended 30 June 2014 comprising the Condensed Consolidated Income Statement, the 
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Condensed 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the Condensed Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the related Notes 1 to 34, the 
information on pages 36 to 82 of the Risk Management Report in the Detailed Business Review except for those items marked as 
unreviewed, together the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. We have read the other information contained 
in the half-yearly financial report and considered whether it contains any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with 
the information in the condensed set of financial statements. 

This report is made solely to the Company in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements (UK and 
Ireland) 2410 "Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity" issued by the 
Auditing Practices Board. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company those matters we are required 
to state to it in an independent review report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept 
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company, for our review work, for this report, or for the conclusions we have 
formed. 
 
Directors' responsibilities 
 
The half-yearly financial report is the responsibility of, and has been approved by, the directors.  The directors are responsible for 
preparing the half-yearly financial report in accordance with the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the United Kingdom’s 
Financial Conduct Authority. 

As disclosed in Note 1, the annual financial statements of the Company are prepared in accordance with IFRSs as 
adopted by the European Union. The condensed set of financial statements included in this half-yearly financial report has been 
prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard 34, "Interim Financial Reporting," as adopted by the European 
Union. 
 
Our responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express to the Company a conclusion on the condensed set of financial statements in the half-yearly 
financial report based on our review. 
 
Scope of Review  
 
We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements (UK and Ireland) 2410 "Review of 
Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity" issued by the Auditing Practices Board for use 
in the United Kingdom. A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for 
financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope 
than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) and consequently does not 
enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. 
Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the condensed set of financial statements 
in the half-yearly financial report for the six months ended 30 June 2014 is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance 
with International Accounting Standard 34 as adopted by the European Union and the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the 
United Kingdom’s Financial Conduct Authority. 
 
 

 
 
Deloitte LLP 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor 
London, United Kingdom 
13 August 2014 
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Condensed Consolidated Income Statement (unaudited) 
 
For the six months ended 30 June 2014 and 2013  
 
  
   

Notes 

Six months ended  
30 June 2014 

£m 

 Six months ended  
30 June 2013(1) 

£m 
Interest and similar income  3,421 3,624
Interest expense and similar charges  (1,748) (2,233)
Net interest income  1,673 1,391
Fee and commission income  534 532
Fee and commission expense  (169) (143)
Net fee and commission income  365 389
Net trading and other income 3 154 181
Total operating income  2,192 1,961
Administration expenses 4 (876) (992)
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 5 (347) (121)
Total operating expenses excluding impairment losses, provisions and charges  (1,223) (1,113)
Impairment losses on loans and advances  6 (172) (235)
Provisions for other liabilities and charges 6 (252) (152)
Total operating impairment losses, provisions and charges  (424) (387)
Profit on continuing operations before tax  545 461
Tax on profit on continuing operations 7 (107) (90)
Profit on continuing operations after tax  438 371
Loss from discontinued operations after tax 8 - (12)
Profit after tax for the period  438 359
    
Attributable to:    
Equity holders of the parent  438 359 
(1) Adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as described in Note 1. 

 
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (unaudited) 
 
For the six months ended 30 June 2014 and 2013  
 
 
  

Note 

Six months ended  
30 June 2014 

£m  

Six months ended  
30 June 2013(1) 

£m 
Profit for the period  438 359 
Other comprehensive income/(expense):    
Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to profit or loss subsequently:    
Available-for-sale securities    

 - Gains on available-for-sale securities  38 28
 - Gains on available-for-sale securities transferred to profit or loss   - (53) 
 - Tax on above items     (8) 6 
  30 (19) 

Cash flow hedges:    
 - Losses on cash flow hedges  (329) (429) 
 - Losses on cash flow hedges transferred to profit or loss  601 370 

     - Tax on above items      (58) 14 
            214 (45) 

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations  1 (2) 
Net other comprehensive income/(expense) that may be reclassified to profit or loss 

subsequently   
245 (66)

Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss subsequently:    
  Remeasurement of defined benefit pension obligations 26 128 (233)
  Tax on above item  (26) 54
Net other comprehensive expense that will not be reclassified to profit or loss subsequently  102 (179)
Total other comprehensive expense for the period net of tax  347 (245)
Total comprehensive income for the period  785 114
Attributable to:    
Equity holders of the parent  785 114 
(1) Adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as described in Note 1. 

 
The accompanying Notes on pages 90 to 118 and the reviewed sections of the Risk Management Report on pages 36 to 82 form an integral part 
of these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 
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Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet (unaudited) 
 
At 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013  
 
  
  

 
Notes 

30 June 2014 
£m 

31 December 2013(1) 
£m 

Assets    
Cash and balances at central banks  26,568 26,374
Trading assets 10 18,701 22,294
Derivative financial instruments  11 19,159 20,049
Financial assets designated at fair value 12 2,754 2,747
Loans and advances to banks 13 2,325 2,347
Loans and advances to customers 14 186,094 184,587
Loans and receivables securities  869 1,101
Available-for-sale securities 16 7,755 5,005
Macro hedge of interest rate risk  727 769
Interests in other entities 17 36 27 
Intangible assets 18 2,105 2,335
Property, plant and equipment 19 1,530 1,521
Current tax assets  50 114
Deferred tax assets 20 - 16
Retirement benefit assets 26 235 118
Other assets  1,312 882
Total assets  270,220 270,286
Liabilities    
Deposits by banks 21 8,234 8,696
Deposits by customers  150,734 147,167
Trading liabilities 22 17,848 21,278
Derivative financial instruments  11  19,030 18,863
Financial liabilities designated at fair value 23 3,252 3,407
Debt securities in issue 24 50,258 50,870
Subordinated liabilities  4,272 4,306
Other liabilities  1,887 1,883
Provisions 25 610 550
Current tax liabilities  2 4
Deferred tax liabilities 20 87 - 
Retirement benefit obligations 26 408 672
Total liabilities  256,622 257,696
Equity    
Share capital and other equity instruments 31 4,209 3,709
Share premium   5,620 5,620
Retained earnings  3,640 3,377
Other reserves  129 (116)
Total shareholders’ equity  13,598 12,590
Total liabilities and equity  270,220 270,286
(1) Adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as described in Note 1. 
 
The accompanying Notes on pages 90 to 118 and the reviewed sections of the Risk Management Report on pages 36 to 82 form an integral part 
of these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 
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Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (unaudited) 
 
For the six months ended 30 June 2014 and 2013 

 
  Other reserves   

Share capital 
and other 

equity 
instruments 

£m 

Share 
premium 

£m 

Available 
for sale 
reserve 

£m 

Cash flow 
hedging 
reserve 

£m 

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve 

£m 

Retained 
earnings(1) 

£m 
Total 

£m 
1 January 2014 3,709 5,620 (23) (110) 17 3,377 12,590
Total comprehensive income/(expense):        
- Profit for the period - - - - - 438 438
- Other comprehensive income/(expense):        
  - Gains on available-for-sale securities - - 38 - - - 38
  - Losses on cash flow hedges - - - (329) - - (329)
  - Losses on cash flow hedges transferred to profit or loss - - - 601 - - 601
  - Remeasurement of defined benefit pension obligations - - - - - 128 128
  - Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - - - - 1 - 1
  - Tax on other comprehensive income/(expense) - - (8) (58) - (26) (92)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) net of tax - - 30 214 1 102 347
Issue of Perpetual Capital Securities 500 - - - - - 500
Dividends and other distributions - - - - - (277) (277)
30 June 2014 4,209 5,620 7 104 18 3,640 13,598
        
1 January 2013 3,999 5,620 1 - 17 3,406 13,043 
Total comprehensive income/(expense):        
- Profit for the period - - - - - 359 359 
Other comprehensive income/(expense):        

- Gains on available-for-sale securities - - 28 - - - 28 
- Gains on available-for-sale securities transferred to profit or 

loss 
- - (53) - - - (53) 

- Losses on cash flow hedges - - - (429) - - (429) 
- Losses on cash flow hedges transferred to profit or loss - - - 370 - - 370 
- Remeasurement of defined benefit pension obligations - - - - - (233) (233) 
- Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - - - - (2) - (2) 
- Tax on other comprehensive income/(expense) - - 6 14 - 54 74 

Other comprehensive income/(expense) net of tax - - (19) (45) (2) (179) (245) 
Dividends and other distributions - - - - - (272) (272) 
30 June 2013 3,999 5,620 (18) (45) 15 3,314 12,885 
(1) Adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as described in Note 1. 

 
The accompanying Notes on pages 90 to 118 and the reviewed sections of the Risk Management Report on pages 36 to 82 form an integral part 
of these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 
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Condensed Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (unaudited) 
 
For the six months ended 30 June 2014 and 2013 
 

  
  

 
Notes 

Six months ended  
30 June 2014 

£m  

Six months ended  
30 June 2013(1) 

£m 

Cash flows (used in)/from operating activities    
Profit for the period   438 371 
Adjustments for:    
Non cash items included in profit   (5) 767 
Change in operating assets   (1,824) (1,696) 
Change in operating liabilities   2,262 8,843 
Corporation taxes (paid)/received   (25) (31) 
Effects of exchange rate differences   (1,098) 2,021 
Net cash flow (used in)/from operating activities 28 (252) 10,275 
Cash flows (used in)/from investing activities     
Interests in other entities  - (3) 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 18,19 (147) (145) 
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  17 80 
Purchase of available-for-sale securities  (3,193) (2,415) 
Proceeds from sale and redemption of available-for-sale securities  418 2,765 
Net cash flow (used in)/from investing activities  (2,905) 282 
Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities     
Issue of debt securities  10,983 13,997 
Issue of Perpetual Capital Securities 31 500 - 
Repayment of debt securities  (12,046) (20,314) 
Dividends paid on ordinary shares 9 (210) (450) 
Dividends paid on preference shares classified in equity 9 (19) (19) 
Dividends paid on Reserve Capital Instruments  9 (21) (21) 
Dividends paid on Perpetual Preferred Securities 9 - (17) 
Net cash flow used in financing activities  (813) (6,824) 
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents  (3,970) 3,733 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period  37,179 41,305 
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  (579) 516 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 28 32,630 45,554 
(1) Adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as described in Note 1. 
 
The accompanying Notes on pages 90 to 118 and the reviewed sections of the Risk Management Report on pages 36 to 82 form an integral part 
of these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
These Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements are prepared for Santander UK plc (the ‘Company’) and the Santander UK plc group 
(the ‘Santander UK group’) under the Companies Act 2006. The principal activity of the Santander UK group is the provision of an extensive 
range of personal financial services, and a wide range of banking and financial services to business and public sector customers. 

Santander UK plc is a public limited company, incorporated in England and Wales having a registered office in England. It is an 
operating company undertaking banking and financial services transactions. 

 
BASIS OF PREPARATION 
 
The financial information in these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements does not constitute statutory accounts as defined in 
section 434 of the Companies Act 2006. Statutory accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013 have been delivered to the Registrar of 
Companies. The auditor’s report on those accounts was unqualified, did not draw attention to any matters by way of emphasis and did not 
contain a statement under section 498(2) or (3) of the Companies Act 2006. 

 
Compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards  
 
The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard (‘IAS’) 34 
‘Interim Financial Reporting’, as adopted by the European Union and the Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct 
Authority (‘FCA’). They do not include all the information and disclosures normally required for full annual financial statements and should be 
read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Santander UK plc group for the year ended 31 December 2013 which 
were prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’) as adopted by the European Union. Those Consolidated 
Financial Statements were also prepared in accordance with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB’). There were 
no applicable differences between the two frameworks for the periods presented. 

The same accounting policies, presentation and methods of computation are followed in these Condensed Consolidated Interim 
Financial Statements as were applied in the presentation of the Santander UK group’s 2013 Annual Report, except as otherwise described below. 
Copies of the Santander UK group’s 2013 Annual Report are available on the Santander UK group’s website or upon request from Investor 
Relations, Santander UK plc, 2 Triton Square, Regent’s Place, London NW1 3AN. 
 
The British Bankers’ Association Code for Financial Reporting Disclosure  
 
The British Bankers’ Association Code for Financial Reporting Disclosure (the ‘Disclosure Code’) sets out disclosure principles together with 
supporting guidance in respect of the financial statements of UK banks. The Santander UK group has adopted the Disclosure Code and these 
Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the Disclosure Code’s principles. 
 
Recent accounting developments 
In 2014, the Santander UK group adopted the following new accounting pronouncements and amendments to standards which became 
effective for financial years beginning on 1 January 2014. 
 
a) IAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation’ - In December 2011, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 32 entitled ‘Offsetting Financial 

Assets and Financial Liabilities’ which clarified the requirements for offsetting financial instruments and addressed inconsistencies in 
current practice when applying the offsetting criteria in IAS 32 ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation’. The amendments are effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 with early adoption permitted and are required to be applied retrospectively. The 
amendments did not have a material effect on the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 
 

b) IFRIC Interpretation 21 ‘Levies’ - In May 2013, IFRIC issued IFRIC 21 which provides guidance on accounting for the liability to pay a 
government imposed levy. IFRIC 21 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. This interpretation clarifies 
that the obligating event that gives rise to a liability to pay a government levy is the activity that triggers the payment of the levy as set 
out in the relevant legislation. An entity does not have a constructive obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered by operating in a 
future period. The adoption of IFRIC 21 changed the accounting for the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (‘FSCS’) but did not 
affect the accounting for any other government imposed levy paid by the Santander UK group. In accordance with IFRIC 21, which has 
been applied retrospectively, FSCS levies are not recognised earlier than the levy year commencing 1 April to which the levies relate. 

The impact of applying IFRIC 21 at 1 January 2014 was to increase retained earnings by £70m, increase deferred tax liabilities by 
£19m, and to reduce provisions by £89m. The impact of IFRIC 21 on the results for the six months ended 30 June 2013 was to 
increase provisions for other liabilities and charges by £88m and reduce profit on continuing items before tax by the same amount and 
increase tax on profit on continuing items by £19m. The impact of applying IFRIC 21 at 1 January 2013 was to increase retained 
earnings by £94m, increase deferred tax liabilities by £25m, and to reduce provisions by £119m. In accordance with IFRIC 21, FSCS 
levies of £100m have been recognised in provisions for other liabilities and charges for the six months ended 30 June 2014 (see Note 
25). 
 

c) There are a number of other changes to IFRS that were effective from 1 January 2014. Those changes did not have a significant impact 
on the Santander UK group’s Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 
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Future accounting developments 

The Santander UK group has not yet adopted the following significant new or revised standards and interpretations, and amendments thereto, 
which have been issued but which are not yet effective for the Santander UK group: 
 
a) IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ (‘IFRS 9’) – In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 which includes the completion of all 

phases of the project to replace IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ as discussed below. 
Phase 1: Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities. Financial assets are classified on the basis of 

the business model within which they are held and their contractual cash flow characteristics. The standard also introduces a ‘fair value 
through other comprehensive income’ measurement category for particular simple debt instruments. The requirements for the 
classification and measurement of financial liabilities were carried forward unchanged from IAS 39, however, the requirements relating 
to the fair value option for financial liabilities were changed to address own credit risk and, in particular, the presentation of gains and 
losses within other comprehensive income. 

Phase 2: Impairment methodology. IFRS 9 fundamentally changes the impairment requirements relating to the accounting for 
an entity’s expected credit losses on its financial assets and commitments to extend credit. It is no longer necessary for a credit event 
to have occurred before credit losses are recognised. Instead, an entity always accounts for expected credit losses, and changes in 
those expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk 
since initial recognition. 

Phase 3: Hedge accounting. These requirements align hedge accounting more closely with risk management and establish a 
more principle-based approach to hedge accounting. Dynamic hedging of open portfolios is being dealt with as a separate project and 
until such time as that project is complete, entities can choose between applying the hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 or to 
continue to apply the existing hedge accounting requirements in IAS 39. The revised hedge accounting requirements in IFRS 9 are 
applied prospectively. 

The effective date of IFRS 9 is 1 January 2018. For annual periods beginning before 1 January 2018, an entity may elect to 
early apply only the requirements for the presentation of gains and losses on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit 
or loss. At the date of publication of these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements the standard is awaiting EU 
endorsement and the impact of the standard is currently being assessed. It is not yet practicable to quantify the effect of IFRS 9 on 
these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 

 
b)  IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ (‘IFRS 15’) – In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15. The effective date of IFRS 15 is 1 

January 2017. The standard establishes the principles that shall be applied in connection with revenue from contracts with customers 
including the core principle that the recognition of revenue must depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an 
amount that reflects the entitlement to consideration in exchange for those good and services. IFRS 15 applies to all contracts with 
customers but does not apply to lease contracts, insurance contracts, financial instruments and certain non-monetary exchanges. At 
the date of publication of these Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements the standard is awaiting EU endorsement. 
Whilst it is expected that a significant proportion of the Santander UK group’s revenue will be outside the scope of IFRS 15, the impact 
of the standard is currently being assessed. It is not yet practicable to quantify the effect the effect of IFRS 15 on these Condensed 
Consolidated Interim Financial Statements. 
 

c) There are a number of other standards which have been issued or amended that are expected to be effective in future periods. 
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of their effects on the Santander UK group’s Condensed Consolidated 
Interim Financial Statements until a detailed review has been completed. 

 
The Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements reflect all adjustments that, in the opinion of management of the Santander UK 
group, are necessary for a fair presentation of the results of operations for the interim period. All such adjustments to the financial information 
are of a normal, recurring nature. Because the results from common banking activities are so closely related and responsive to changes in market 
conditions, the results for any interim period are not necessarily indicative of the results that can be expected for the year. 

 
GOING CONCERN 
 
The Directors have assessed the ability of the Santander UK group to continue as a going concern, in light of uncertain current and anticipated 
economic conditions, including analysing the financial resources available to it and stress testing performance forecasts through various 
scenarios. The Directors confirm they are satisfied that the Santander UK group has adequate resources to continue in business for the 
foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the ‘going concern’ basis of accounting for preparing financial statements.  

 
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND AREAS OF SIGNIFICANT MANAGEMENT 
JUDGEMENT 
 
The preparation of the Santander UK group’s Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements requires management to make estimates 
and judgements that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities at the date of the Condensed Consolidated Interim Financial Statements 
and the reported amount of income and expenses during the reporting period. Management evaluates its estimates and judgements on an 
ongoing basis. Management bases its estimates and judgements on historical experience and on various other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.  

There have been no significant changes in the basis upon which estimates have been determined, compared to that applied in the 
2013 Annual Report. 
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2. SEGMENTS  
 
The principal activity of the Santander UK group is financial services. The Santander UK group’s business is managed and reported on the basis of 
the following segments: 
 
> Retail Banking; 
> Commercial Banking; 
> Markets; and 
> Corporate Centre. 
 
The Santander UK group’s segments are strategic business units that offer different products and services. They are managed separately because 
each business requires different technology and marketing strategies. The Santander UK group has four segments: 

 
> Retail Banking offers a wide range of products and financial services to customers through a network of branches, agencies and 

ATMs, as well as through telephony, e-commerce and intermediary channels. It principally serves personal banking customers, but also 
services small businesses with an annual turnover of up to £250,000. Retail Banking products include residential mortgage loans, 
savings and current accounts, credit cards (excluding the co-brand credit cards business) and personal loans as well as a range of 
insurance products. 
 

> Commercial Banking offers a wide range of products and financial services to customers through a network of regional business 
centres and through telephony and e-commerce channels. Commercial Banking products and services include loans, bank accounts, 
deposits, treasury services, invoice discounting, cash transmission and asset finance. The management of our customers is organised 
according to the annual turnover of their business, enabling us to offer a differentiated service to small and medium enterprises 
(‘SMEs’), mid and large corporate customers. 

The SME and mid corporate business principally serves small and medium enterprises with an annual turnover of more than 
£250,000 up to £50m, and other corporate customers with an annual turnover of up to £500m. This also includes real estate lending. 

The Large Corporates business offers specialist treasury services in fixed income and foreign exchange, lending, transactional 
banking services, capital markets and money markets to large multinational corporate customers with an annual turnover of more than 
£500m. Lending includes syndicated loans and structured finance. Transactional banking includes trade finance and cash 
management. Money market activities include securities lending/borrowing and repos. 
 

> Markets offers risk management and other services to financial institutions, as well as to other Santander UK divisions. Its main 
business areas are fixed income and foreign exchange, equity, capital markets and institutional sales.  
 

> Corporate Centre includes Financial Management & Investor Relations (‘FMIR’) and the non-core corporate and legacy portfolios, as 
well as the co-brand credit cards business sold in 2013 which has been presented as discontinued operations. FMIR is responsible for 
managing capital and funding, balance sheet composition and structure, and strategic liquidity risk for the Santander UK group. The 
non-core corporate and legacy portfolios include aviation, shipping, infrastructure, commercial mortgages, Social Housing loans and 
structured credit assets, all of which are being run-down and/or managed for value. 

 
The Company’s board of directors (the ‘Board’) is the chief operating decision maker for the Santander UK group. The segment information 
below is presented on the basis used by the Board to evaluate performance and allocate resources. The Board reviews discrete financial 
information for each segment of the business, including measures of operating results, assets and liabilities. The segment information reviewed 
by the Board is prepared on a statutory basis of accounting. 

Transactions between the business segments are on normal commercial terms and conditions. The accounting policies of the segments 
are the same as those applied in the presentation of the Santander UK group’s 2013 Annual Report as described in Note 1. Internal charges and 
internal UK transfer pricing adjustments have been reflected in the performance of each segment. Revenue sharing agreements are used to 
allocate external customer revenues to a business segment on a reasonable basis. Funds are ordinarily reallocated between segments, resulting in 
funding cost transfers disclosed in operating income. Interest charged for these funds is based on the Santander UK group’s cost of wholesale 
funding. 

Interest income and interest expense have not been reported separately. The majority of the revenues from the segments presented 
below are interest income in nature and the Board relies primarily on net interest income to both assess the performance of the segment and to 
make decisions regarding allocation of segmental resources. 
  



 

Financial Statements 

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 
 

Santander UK plc 2014 Half Yearly Financial Report   93
  

30 June 2014 
 

Retail 
Banking 

£m 

Commercial 
Banking 

£m 
 Markets 

£m 

Corporate 
Centre 

£m 
Total 

£m 
Net interest income/(expense) 1,685 264 1 (277) 1,673 
Non-interest income 306 131 57 25 519 
Total operating income 1,991 395 58 (252) 2,192 
Administration expenses (719) (181) (56) 80 (876) 
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (112) (13) (1) (221) (347) 
Total operating expenses excluding impairment losses, provisions and 

charges 
(831) (194) (57) (141) (1,223) 

Impairment losses on loans and advances (107) (56) - (9) (172) 
Provisions for other liabilities and charges - - - (252) (252) 
Total operating impairment losses, provisions and charges (107) (56) - (261) (424) 
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations before tax 1,053 145 1 (654) 545 
Loss from discontinued operations after tax - - - - - 
      
Revenue from external customers 2,304 464 59 (635) 2,192 
Inter-segment revenue (313) (69) (1) 383 - 
Total operating income 1,991 395 58 (252) 2,192 
      
Customer assets 156,639 23,128 - 8,703 188,470 
Total assets(1)  161,837 28,649 17,333 62,401 270,220 
      
Customer deposits 126,862 14,575 - 9,259 150,696 
Total liabilities 130,281 23,229 14,419 88,693 256,622 
      
Average number of staff(2) 17,550 1,999 329 179 20,057 
(1) Includes customer assets, net of impairment loss allowances. 
(2) Full-time equivalents. 
 
30 June 2013 
 

Retail 
Banking 

£m 

Commercial 
Banking 

£m 
 Markets 

£m 

Corporate 
Centre(3) 

£m 
Total(3) 

£m 
Net interest income/(expense) 1,382 199 (1) (189) 1,391 
Non-interest income 328 137 40 65 570 
Total operating income 1,710 336 39 (124) 1,961 
Administration expenses (772) (147) (48) (25) (992) 
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment (95) (9) (1) (16) (121) 
Total operating expenses excluding impairment losses, provisions and 

charges 
(867) (156) (49) (41) (1,113) 

Impairment losses on loans and advances (184) (51) - - (235) 
Provisions for other liabilities and charges - - - (152) (152) 
Total operating impairment losses, provisions and charges (184) (51) - (152) (387) 
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations before tax 659 129 (10) (317) 461 
Loss from discontinued operations after tax - - - (12) (12) 
      
Revenue from external customers 2,243 377 41 (700) 1,961 
Inter-segment revenue (533) (41) (2) 576 - 
Total operating income 1,710 336 39 (124) 1,961 
      
31 December 2013      
Customer assets 155,613 22,075 - 9,360 187,048 
Total assets(1)  160,512 32,700 19,329 57,745 270,286 
      
Customer deposits 123,189 12,631 - 10,624 146,444 
Total liabilities 128,106 24,549 18,536 86,505 257,696 
      
Average number of staff(2) 17,764 1,781 359 160 20,064 
 

(1) Includes customer assets, net of impairment loss allowances. 
(2) Full-time equivalents. 
(3) Adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as described in Note 1. 
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3. NET TRADING AND OTHER INCOME 
 

  Six months ended  
30 June 2014 

£m 

Six months ended 
30 June 2013 

£m 

Net trading and funding of other items by the trading book 194 206 
Income from operating lease assets 21 21 
Gains/(losses) on assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 113 (181) 
Losses on liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss (82) (12) 
(Losses)/gains on derivatives managed with assets/liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss (71) 179 
Share of profit from associates and joint ventures 4 1 
Profit on sale of available-for-sale assets - 53 
Hedge ineffectiveness and other (25) (86) 
 154 181 

 
Net trading and funding of other items by the trading book includes fair value gains/(losses) of £(15)m (six months ended 30 June 2013: £137m) 
on embedded derivatives bifurcated from certain equity index-linked deposits. The embedded derivatives are economically hedged internally with 
the equity derivatives trading desk. These internal transactions are managed as part of the overall positions of the equity derivatives trading desk, 
the results of which are also included in this line item, and amounted to £16m (six months ended 30 June 2013: £136m). As a result, the net fair 
value movements recognised on the equity index-linked deposits and the related economic hedges were £1m (six months ended 30 June 2013: 
£1m).  

 
 
4. ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES  
 
  Six months ended 

30 June 2014 
£m 

Six months ended 
30 June 2013 

£m 

Staff costs:   
Wages and salaries 338 313 
Performance-related payments:  77 80 
Social security costs 44 41 
Pensions costs: - defined contribution plans 30 19 

 - defined benefit plans:   
- past service credit  (230) - 
- other 14 15 

Other share-based payments  - - 
Other personnel costs 35 26 
 308 494 
Property, plant and equipment expenses 97 92 
Information technology expenses 243 199 
Other administration expenses 228 207 
 876 992 
 

 
During the six months ended 30 June 2014, a net gain of £218m arose as a result of scheme changes that limit future defined benefit pension 
entitlements and provide for the longer term sustainability of our staff pension arrangement, as set out in Note 26. The net gain comprised a 
past service credit of £230m, partially offset by a one-off contribution to the defined contribution scheme for affected members of £10m, both 
classified in pensions costs, and implementation costs of £2m classified in other administration expenses.  

 
 
5. DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT  
 
  Six months ended   

30 June 2014 
£m 

Six months ended 
30 June 2013 

£m 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  110 99 
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 237 22 
 347 121 
 
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets for the six months ended 30 June 2014 included £206m in respect of the impairment of 
software, as set out in Note 18. There was no impairment in the six months ended 30 June 2013. 
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6. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND PROVISIONS 
 
  Six months ended   

30 June 2014 
£m 

Six months ended  
30 June 2013(1) 

£m 
Impairment losses on loans and advances:   
- loans and advances to customers (Note 14) 220 295 
- loans and advances to banks (Note 13) - - 
- loans and receivables securities  - - 
Recoveries of loans and advances (Note 14) (48) (60) 
 172 235 
Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets  - - 
Provisions for other liabilities and charges: (Note 25) 252 152 
Total impairment losses and provisions charged to the income statement 424 387 
(1) Adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as described in Note 1. 

 
 
7. TAXATION CHARGE 
 
 Six months ended 

30 June 2014 
£m 

Six months ended  
30 June 2013(1) 

£m 
Current tax:   
UK corporation tax on profit of the period 40 45 
Adjustments in respect of prior years (4) (13) 
Total current tax 36 32 
Deferred tax:   
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 79 60 
Change in rate of UK corporation tax (7) - 
Adjustments in respect of prior years (1) (2) 
Total deferred tax 71 58 
Tax on profit on continuing operations for the period 107 90 
(1) Adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as described in Note 1. 
 
Interim period corporation tax is accrued based on the estimated average annual effective corporation tax rate for the year of 21.2% (2013: 
23%). The standard rate of UK corporation tax was 21.5% (2013: 23.25%). The standard rate of UK corporation tax was reduced from 23% to 
21% with effect from 1 April 2014. Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.  

The Finance Act 2013, which provides for a reduction in the main rate of UK corporation tax to 21% effective from 1 April 2014 and 
20% effective from 1 April 2015, was enacted on 17 July 2013. As the changes in rates were substantively enacted prior to 30 June 2014, they 
have been reflected in the deferred tax balance at 30 June 2014.  

The tax expense differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the UK statutory rate of the Company as follows: 
 
  Six months ended 

30 June 2014 
£m 

Six months ended  
30 June 2013(1) 

£m 
Profit on continuing operations before tax 545 461 
Tax calculated at a tax rate of 21.5% (six months ended 2013: 23.25%) 118 107 
Non-deductible preference dividends paid 1 1 
Non-deductible UK Bank Levy 7 8 
Other non-equalised items (4) (8) 
Effect of non-UK profits and losses (1) (1) 
Utilisation of capital losses for which credit was not previously recognised  (2) (2) 
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred tax provision (7) - 
Adjustment to prior year provisions  (5) (15) 
Tax expense 107 90 
(1) Adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as described in Note 1. 
 
Further information about deferred tax is presented in Note 20. 
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8. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 
 
The Company sold its co-brand credit cards business in 2013. The results and loss on sale of the discontinued operations were as follows: 
 
  Six months ended  

30 June 2014 
£m 

Six months ended  
30 June 2013 

£m 
Total operating income  - 63 
Total operating expenses excluding impairment losses, provisions and charges - (30) 
Impairment losses on loans and advances - (12) 
Provisions for other liabilities and charges - (21) 
Profit of discontinued operations before tax - - 
Taxation charge on discontinued operations - - 
Loss  on sale of  discontinued operations  - (16) 
Taxation credit on loss on sale on discontinued operations - 4 
Loss from discontinued operations after tax - (12) 

 
 
9. DIVIDENDS 

 
Dividends of £210m (2013: £450m) were paid on Santander UK plc’s ordinary shares in issue during the period. An interim dividend of £237m 
was approved on 24 June 2014 on the Company’s ordinary shares in issue. 

The annual dividend of £21m (2013: £21m) on the Step-Up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments was paid on 14 February 
2014; the annual dividend of £0.4m (2013: £17m) on the £300m Step-up Callable Perpetual Preferred Securities, was paid on 22 March 2014; 
and the annual dividend of £19m (2013: £19m) on the £300m fixed/floating rate non-cumulative callable preference shares was paid on 24 May 
2014.  

 
 
10. TRADING ASSETS 
 
  
  

 30 June 2014 
£m 

31 December 2013 
£m 

Loans and advances to banks         - securities purchased under resale agreements 532 4,219 
                                                      - other(1) 5,668 5,107 
Loans and advances to customers   - securities purchased under resale agreements 1,187 4,210 

  - other(1) 580 194 
Debt securities  7,522 7,859 
Equity securities  3,212 705 
  18,701 22,294 
(1) Total “other” comprises short-term loans of £479m (2013: £195m) and cash collateral of £5,769m (2013: £5,106m). 

 
Included in the above balances are amounts owed to the Santander UK group by Banco Santander, S.A. and other subsidiaries of Banco 
Santander, S.A. outside the Santander UK group of £86m (2013: £80m) and £17m (2013: £32m) respectively. 
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11. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
Derivatives are financial instruments whose value is derived from the price of one or more underlying items such as equities, equity indices, 
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, property indices, commodities and credit spreads. Derivatives enable users to manage exposure to credit or 
market risks. The Santander UK group sells derivatives to its customers and uses derivatives to manage its own exposure to credit and market 
risks. Details of the Santander UK group’s use of derivatives are set out in Note 16 of the 2013 Annual Report. 
 
30 June 2014 
Derivatives held for trading 

Contract/notional amount 
£m 

Fair value assets 
£m 

Fair value liabilities 
£m 

Exchange rate contracts:    
- Cross-currency swaps 101,018 1,365 2,234 
- Foreign exchange swaps, options and forwards 40,176 538 261 
 141,194 1,903 2,495 
Interest rate contracts:    
- Interest rate swaps 556,156 10,712 10,084 
- Caps, floors and swaptions 54,037 1,502 1,498 
- Futures (exchange traded)  96,307 6 23 
- Forward rate agreements 29,945 3 3 
 736,445 12,223 11,608 
Equity and credit contracts:    
- Equity index swaps and similar products 35,955 2,255 3,126 
- Equity index options (exchange traded) 25,709 360 2 
- Credit default swaps and similar products 138 29 2 
 61,802 2,644 3,130 
Commodity contracts:    
- OTC swaps 37 4 4 
 37 4 4 
Total derivative assets and liabilities held for trading 939,478 16,774 17,237 

 
30 June 2014  
Derivatives held for hedging 

Contract/notional amount 
£m 

Fair value assets 
£m 

Fair value liabilities 
£m 

Derivatives designated as fair value hedges:    
Exchange rate contracts:    
- Cross-currency swaps 1,602 40 65 
Interest rate contracts:    
- Interest rate swaps 93,254 1,501 1,019 
 94,856 1,541 1,084 
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges:    
Exchange rate contracts:    
- Cross-currency swaps 16,478 774 668 
Interest rate contracts:    
- Interest rate swaps 5,406 70 41 
 21,884 844 709 
Total derivative assets and liabilities held for hedging 116,740 2,385 1,793 
Total recognised derivative assets and liabilities 1,056,218 19,159 19,030 
 
 
31 December 2013 
Derivatives held for trading 

 
Contract/notional amount 

£m 
Fair value assets 

£m 
Fair value liabilities 

£m 

Exchange rate contracts:    
- Cross-currency swaps 110,425 1,282 2,027 
- Foreign exchange swaps, options and forwards 41,849 1,133 417 
 152,274 2,415 2,444 
Interest rate contracts:    
- Interest rate swaps 512,101 10,739 9,972 
- Caps, floors and swaptions 56,230 1,912 1,891 
- Futures (exchange traded)  31,137 11 36 
- Forward rate agreements 29,379 1 1 
 628,847 12,663 11,900 
Equity and credit contracts:    
- Equity index swaps and similar products 32,196 2,009 2,947 
- Equity index options (exchange traded) 13,115 312 1 
- Credit default swaps and similar products 158 32 3 
 45,469 2,353 2,951 
Commodity contracts:    
- OTC swaps 54 2 2 
 54 2 2 
Total derivative assets and liabilities held for trading 826,644 17,433 17,297 
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31 December 2013 
Derivatives held for hedging 

 
Contract/notional amount 

£m 
Fair value assets 

£m 
Fair value liabilities 

£m 

Derivatives designated as fair value hedges:    
Exchange rate contracts:    
- Cross-currency swaps 2,524 46 47 
Interest rate contracts:    
- Interest rate swaps 105,138 1,578 1,066 
 107,662 1,624 1,113 
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges:    
Exchange rate contracts:    
- Cross-currency swaps 15,507 990 445 
Interest rate contracts:    
- Interest rate swaps 3,856 2 8 
 19,363 992 453 
Total derivative assets and liabilities held for hedging 127,025 2,616 1,566 
Total recognised derivative assets and liabilities 953,669 20,049 18,863 
 
Included in the above balances are amounts owed to the Santander UK group by Banco Santander, S.A. and other subsidiaries of Banco 
Santander, S.A. outside the Santander UK group of £2,042m (2013: £2,058m) and £201m (2013: £166m) respectively and amounts owed by 
the Santander UK group to Banco Santander, S.A. and other subsidiaries of Banco Santander, S.A. outside the Santander UK group of £2,049m 
(2013: £1,950m) and £191m (2013: £191m). The net exposures after collateral to the ultimate parent undertaking and fellow subsidiaries at 30 
June 2014 amounted to £nil (2013: £nil) and £nil (2013: £nil) respectively, with collateral held exceeding the net position.  
 
Net gains or losses arising from fair value and cash flow hedges included in net trading and other income 
 
  Six months ended  

30 June 2014 
£m 

Six months ended  
30 June 2013 

£m 

Fair value hedging:   
- Gains/(losses)  on hedging instruments 27 (199) 
- (Losses)/gains on hedged items attributable to hedged risks  (7) 216 
Fair value hedging ineffectiveness 20 17 
Cash flow hedging ineffectiveness (44) (98) 
 (24) (81) 
 
The Santander UK group hedges its exposures to various risks, including interest rate risk and foreign currency risk, in connection with certain 
mortgage assets, covered bond issuances, and subordinated and senior debt securities in issue. The gains or losses arising on these assets and 
liabilities are presented in the table above on a combined basis. 

 
 
12. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE 
 
  30 June 2014 

£m 
31 December 2013 

£m 

Loans and advances to customers 2,229 2,219 
Debt securities 525 528 
 2,754 2,747 
 
Included in the above balances are amounts owed to the Santander UK group by Banco Santander, S.A. and other subsidiaries of Banco 
Santander, S.A. outside the Santander UK group of £nil (2013: £nil) and £57m (2013: £56m) respectively. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk on loans and advances designated as held at fair value through profit or loss at the balance sheet 
date was mitigated by the Santander UK group having a charge over the residential properties in respect of lending to housing associations. See 
‘Maximum exposure and net exposure to credit risk’ in the ‘Credit Risk Review’ section of the Risk Management Report. 

The net gain during the period attributable to changes in credit risk for loans and advances designated at fair value was £10m (six 
months ended 30 June 2013: net gain of £7m). The cumulative net loss attributable to changes in credit risk for loans and advances designated 
at fair value at 30 June 2014 was £248m (31 December 2013: cumulative net loss of £258m). 

 
 
13. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO BANKS 
 
  

  
30 June 2014 

£m 
31 December 2013 

£m 

Placements with other banks   - securities purchased under resale agreements 273 273 
   - other 2,036 2,013 

Amounts due from Banco Santander    - securities purchased under resale agreements - 50 
                                                             - other 16 11 

 2,325 2,347 
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14. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 
 
  30 June  2014 

£m 
31 December 2013 

£m 
Loans and advances to customers 186,832 185,329 
Amounts due from fellow Banco Santander group subsidiaries and joint ventures 761 813 
Loans and advances to customers 187,593 186,142 
Less: impairment loss allowances (1,499) (1,555) 
Loans and advances to customers, net of impairment loss allowances 186,094 184,587 

 
Movement in impairment loss allowances:  
 
30 June 2014 Loans secured  

on residential 
property 

£m 

 
Corporate  

Loans 
£m 

 
Finance 

leases 
£m 

Other 
secured 

advances 
£m 

Other 
unsecured 
advances 

£m 

  
  

Total 
£m 

At 1 January 2014:       
- Observed:        
   - Individual  39 334 - 54 - 427
   - Collective 343 30 8 83 128 592
- Incurred but not yet observed 211 40 36 92 157 536
 593 404 44 229 285 1,555
Charge/(release) to the income statement:       
- Observed:       
   - Individual  1 16 - 1 - 18
   - Collective (23) 24 4 8 119 132
- Incurred but not yet observed 42 24 4 (4) 4 70
 20 64 8 5 123 220
Write offs and other items(1) (27) (60) (4) (45) (140) (276)
At 30 June 2014:       
- Observed:        
   - Individual  40 305 - 35 - 380
   - Collective 293 39 8 66 107 513
- Incurred but not yet observed 253 64 40 88 161 606
 586 408 48 189 268 1,499
 
31 December 2013 Loans secured  

on residential 
property 

£m 

 
Corporate  

Loans 
£m 

 
Finance 

leases 
£m 

Other 
secured 

advances 
£m 

Other 
unsecured 
advances 

£m 

  
  

Total 
£m 

At 1 January 2013:       
- Observed:        
   - Individual  58 544 - 80 11 693 
   - Collective 327 58 6 79 197 667 
- Incurred but not yet observed 167 125 34 10 106 442 
 552 727 40 169 314 1,802 
Charge/(release) to the income statement:       
- Observed:        
   - Individual  (19) 77 - 69 (11) 116 
   - Collective 105 (28) 12 4 313 406 
- Incurred but not yet observed 44 (85) 2 82 11 54 
 130 (36) 14 155 313 576 
Write offs and other items(1) (89) (287) (10) (95) (342) (823) 
At 31 December 2013:       
- Observed:        
   - Individual  39 334 - 54 - 427 
   - Collective 343 30 8 83 128 592 
- Incurred but not yet observed 211 40 36 92 157 536 
 593 404 44 229 285 1,555 

(1) Mortgage write-offs exclude the effect of the unwind over time of the discounting in estimating losses, as described in the accounting policies on page 222 of the 2013 Annual Report. 
Mortgage write-offs including this effect were £33m (six months ended 30 June 2013: £50m). 

 
Recoveries: 
 
 Loans secured 

on residential 
property 

£m 

 
Corporate  

Loans 
£m 

 
Finance 

leases 
£m 

Other 
secured 

advances 
£m 

Other 
unsecured 
advances 

£m 

  
  

Total 
£m 

30 June 2014 2 2 1 2 41 48 
30 June 2013 - 1 1 - 58 60 
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15. SECURITISATIONS AND COVERED BONDS 
 
a) Securitisations  
 
i) Master Trust Structures 
 
Holmes 
In the first half of 2014, there were no issuances from Holmes Master Issuer plc (2013: £1.1bn). Mortgage-backed notes totalling £1.8bn (2013: 
£1.7bn) equivalent were redeemed during the period.  
 
Fosse 
In the first half of 2014, there were issuances of £1.0bn from Fosse Master Issuer plc (2013: £nil). Mortgage-backed notes totalling £0.7bn 
(2013: £4.9bn) equivalent were redeemed during the period.  
 
ii) Other securitisation structures  
 
Motor 
In the first half of 2014, the Santander UK group issued £0.9bn notes (2013: £0.9bn) through pass-through stand-alone vehicles for the 
securitisation of receivables derived from credit agreements with retail customers for the purchases of financed vehicles. 
 
b) Covered Bonds 
 
At 30 June 2014, gross assets assigned amounted to £22,420m (2013: £21,215m) and notes in issue amounted to £17,318m (2013: 
£18,379m).  

 
 
16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES 
 
  
  

30 June 2014 
£m 

31 December 2013 
£m 

Debt securities 7,731 4,981
Equity securities 24 24
 7,755 5,005

 
 
17. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES 
 
Santander UK plc has interests in subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and unconsolidated structured entities, as set out in Note 24 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements in the 2013 Annual Report. The unconsolidated structured entities include Abbey National Capital Trust I and 
Abbey National Capital LP I, which are 100% owned finance subsidiaries (as defined in Regulation S-X under the US Securities Act 1933, as 
amended) of Santander UK plc. On 7 February 2000, Abbey National Capital Trust I issued US$1bn of 8.963% Non-cumulative Trust Preferred 
Securities, which have been registered under the US Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Abbey National Capital Trust I serves solely as a passive 
vehicle holding the partnership preferred securities issued by Abbey National Capital LP I and each has passed all the rights relating to such 
partnership preferred securities to the holders of trust preferred securities issued by Abbey National Capital Trust I. All of the trust preferred 
securities and the partnership preferred securities have been fully and unconditionally guaranteed on a subordinated basis by Santander UK plc. 
The terms of the securities do not include any significant restrictions on the ability of Santander UK plc to obtain funds, by dividend or loan, from 
any subsidiary. 

 
 
18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 
Other intangibles 
 
During the period, the Santander UK group spent £7m (six months ended 30 June 2013: £49m) on additions to its computer software. The 
Santander UK group disposed of £nil (six months ended 30 June 2013: £39m) of computer software and recognised an impairment charge of 
£206m (six months ended 30 June 2013: £nil) in respect of software write-offs. The write-offs were for the decommissioning of redundant 
systems following the implementation of our new digital platform and the completion of our product simplification programme.  
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19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  
 
During the period, the Santander UK group spent £23m (six months ended 30 June 2013: £34m) on the refurbishment of its branches and office 
premises, £83m (six months ended 30 June 2013: £9m) on additions to its office fixtures and equipment, £4m (six months ended 30 June 2013: 
£nil) on computer software and £30m (six months ended 30 June 2013: £53m) on the acquisition of operating lease assets. The Santander UK 
group disposed of £nil (six months ended 30 June 2013: £30m) of property, £8m (six months ended 30 June 2013: £14m) of office fixtures and 
equipment and £38m (six months ended 30 June 2013: £56m) of operating lease assets during the period. 

At 30 June 2014, capital expenditure contracted, but not provided for was £1m (31 December 2013: £14m) in respect of property, 
plant and equipment. Assets under construction with a total value of £129m (31 December 2013: £279m) are included in the total carrying value 
of property, plant and equipment at the balance sheet date. 

 
 
20. DEFERRED TAX 

 
Deferred taxes are calculated on temporary differences under the liability method using the tax rates expected to apply when the liability is 
settled or the asset is realised. The movement on the deferred tax account was as follows:  
 
  30 June 2014 

£m 
31 December 2013(1) 

£m 
At 1 January 16 35 
Income statement charge (71) (139) 
(Charged)/credited to other comprehensive income:   
- retirement benefit obligations (26) 113 
- cash flow hedges (16) 7 
 (42) 120 
Eliminated on disposal 10 - 
At 30 June/31 December (87) 16 
(1) Adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as described in Note 1. 

 
Deferred tax balances are presented in the balance sheet after offsetting assets and liabilities where the Santander UK group and Company has 
the legal right to offset and intends to settle on a net basis. The deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following items: 
 
  30 June 2014 

£m 
31 December 2013(1) 

£m 

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)   
Pensions and other post-retirement benefits 31 108 
Accelerated tax depreciation (8) (20) 
IFRS transitional adjustments 27 33 
Other temporary differences (137) (105) 
 (87) 16 
(1) Adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as described in Note 1. 

 
The deferred tax assets scheduled above have been recognised in the Santander UK group on the basis that sufficient future taxable profits are 
forecast within the foreseeable future, in excess of the profits arising from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, to allow for the 
utilisation of the assets as they reverse. Based on the conditions at the balance sheet date, management determined that a reasonably possible 
change in any of the key assumptions underlying the estimated future taxable profits in the Santander UK group’s five year plan would not cause 
a reduction in the deferred tax assets recognised. 

At 30 June 2014, the Santander UK group had UK capital losses carried forward of £10m (2013: £17m). These losses are available for 
offset against future UK chargeable gains and under current UK tax legislation do not time expire. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in 
respect of these capital losses on the basis that future capital gains required to utilise the losses are not considered probable. 
 
The deferred tax charge in respect of continuing and discontinued operations in the income statement comprises the following temporary 
differences:  

 
  
  

Six months ended  
30 June 2014 

£m 

Six months ended 
30 June 2013(1) 

£m 

Accelerated tax depreciation 2 (7) 
Pensions and other post-retirement benefits (51) 3 
IFRS transition adjustments (6) (8) 
Tax losses carried forward - (33) 
Other temporary differences (16) (13) 
 (71) (58) 
(1) Adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as described in Note 1. 
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21. DEPOSITS BY BANKS 
 
  30 June 2014 

£m 
31 December 2013 

£m 
Items in the course of transmission 308 614 
Deposits by banks - securities sold under agreements to repurchase  4,888 5,465 
Amounts due to Banco Santander   

- securities sold under repurchase agreements - 50 
- other  606 636 

Amounts due to fellow Banco Santander subsidiaries   - 1 
Deposits held as collateral 696 1,047 
Other deposits 1,736 883 
 8,234 8,696 

 
 
22. TRADING LIABILITIES 
 
  
  

30 June 2014 
£m 

31 December 2013 
£m 

Deposits by banks         - securities sold under repurchase agreements 6,076 7,795
- other(1) 2,447 3,496

Deposits by customers   - securities sold under repurchase agreements 2,810 6,329
- other(1)(2) 2,285 740

Short positions in securities and unsettled trades 4,230 2,918
 17,848 21,278
(1) Comprises cash collateral of £1,451m (2013: £1,841m) and short-term deposits of £3,281m (2013: £2,336m). 
(2) Comprises equity index-linked deposits of £nil (2013: £59m). The capital amount guaranteed/protected and the amount of return guaranteed in respect of the equity index-linked deposits 

were £nil for both commitments (2013: £127m and £17m, respectively).  

 
Included in the above balances are amounts owed by the Santander UK group to Banco Santander, S.A. of £76m (2013: £193m) and to fellow 
subsidiaries of Banco Santander, S.A. of £48m (2013: £13m). 

 
 
23. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE  
 
  
  

30 June 2014 
£m 

31 December 2013 
£m 

Debt securities in issue  - US$10bn Euro Commercial Paper Programme 940 865 
- US$20bn Euro Medium Term Note Programme 633 591 
- Euro 10bn Note Certificate and Warrant Programme 1,571 1,832 

Warrants 108 119 
 3,252 3,407 
 
Included in the above balances are amounts owed to Banco Santander, S.A. of £26m (2013: £17m) and to fellow subsidiaries of Banco 
Santander S.A. of £245m (2013: £172m). 

Gains and losses arising from changes in the credit spread of liabilities issued by the Santander UK group reverse over the contractual 
life of the debt, provided that the debt is not repaid at a premium or a discount. The net loss during the period attributable to changes in the 
Santander UK group’s own credit risk on the above debt securities in issue was £8m (six months ended 30 June 2013: net gain of £18m). The 
cumulative net loss attributable to changes in the Santander UK group’s own credit risk on the above debt securities in issue at 30 June 2014 
was £14m (31 December 2013: cumulative net loss of £6m).  

The amount that would be required to be contractually paid at maturity of the deposits by banks, deposits by customers, and debt 
securities in issue above at 30 June 2014 is £197m (2013: £216m) higher than the carrying value. 

 
 
24. DEBT SECURITIES IN ISSUE 
 
  
  

30 June 2014 
£m 

31 December 2013 
£m 

Bonds and medium term notes:   
- Euro 35bn Global Covered Bond Programme 17,318 18,379 
- US$20bn Euro Medium Term Note Programme (See Note 23) 8,111 7,690 
- US$40bn Euro Medium Term Note Programme  155 156 
- US$20bn Commercial Paper Programme 2,922 3,131 
- Euro 5bn Guaranteed French Certificates of Deposit Programme 1,318 890 
- Certificates of deposit in issue 2,988 1,756 
 32,812 32,002 
Securitisation programmes (See Note 15):   
- Holmes 7,244 9,139 
- Fosse 9,067 8,885 
- Motor 1,135 844 
 50,258 50,870 
   



 

Financial Statements 

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 

 

Santander UK plc 2014 Half Yearly Financial Report   103 

Included in the above balances are amounts owed by the Santander UK group to Banco Santander, S.A. and other subsidiaries of Banco 
Santander, S.A. outside the Santander UK group of £48m (2013: £37m) and £441m (2013: £617m) respectively. 

 
 
25. PROVISIONS 
 
 Conduct remediation   
  PPI 

£m 
 Other products 

£m 
Other provisions(1) 

£m 
Total 

£m 
At 1 January 2014 165 222 163 550 
Additional provisions 65 5 182 252
Used during the period (61) (77) (54) (192)
Provisions released and other - - - -
At 30 June 2014 169 150 291 610
 
To be settled:     
Within 12 months 134 131 139 404
In more than 12 months 35 19 152 206
 169 150 291 610
 
 Conduct remediation   

  PPI 
£m 

 Other products 
£m 

Other provisions(1)(2) 
£m 

Total 
£m 

At 1 January 2013 382 276 137 795 
Additional provisions - - 295 295 
Used during the year (217) (9) (269) (495) 
Provisions released and other - (45) - (45) 
At 31 December 2013 165 222 163 550 
 
To be settled:     
Within 12 months 153 222 76 451 
In more than 12 months 12 - 87 99 
 165 222 163 550 
(1) Includes regulatory-related provisions of £153m in respect of the FSCS and the UK Bank Levy at 30 June 2014 (2013: £80m). 
(2) Adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as described in Note 1. 

 
Conduct remediation 
 
The amounts in respect of conduct remediation comprise the estimated cost of making redress payments, including related costs, with respect to 
the past sales of products. In calculating the conduct remediation provision, management’s best estimate of the provision was calculated based 
on conclusions regarding the number of claims, of those, the number that will be upheld, and the estimated average settlement per case. 
Sensitivities relating to the provision for conduct remediation can be found in “Critical Accounting Policies and Areas of Significant Management 
Judgement” in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in the 2013 Annual Report. 
 
(i) Payment Protection Insurance (‘PPI’) 
 
The provision for conduct remediation in respect of PPI represents management’s best estimate of the anticipated costs of related customer 
contact and/or redress, including related costs. The provision is calculated based on a number of key assumptions which involve significant 
management judgement. These are as follows: 

 
> Claim volumes – the estimated number of customer complaints received; 
> Uphold rate – the estimated percentage of complaints that are, or will be, upheld in favour of the customer; and 
> Average cost of redress – the estimated payment to customers, including compensation for any direct loss plus interest. 

 
The assumptions have been based on the following: 
 

> Analysis completed of the causes of complaints, and uphold rates, and how these are likely to vary in the future; 
> Actual claims activity registered to date; 
> The level of redress paid to customers, together with a forecast of how this is likely to change over time; 
> The impact on complaints levels of proactive customer contact; and 
> The effect of media coverage on the issue. 

 
The assumptions are kept under review, and regularly reassessed and validated against actual customer data, e.g. claims received; uphold rates, 
the impact of any changes in approach to uphold rates, and any re-evaluation of the estimated population. The most critical factor in determining 
the level of provision is the volume of claims. The uphold rate is a reasonably consistent function of the sales process and the average cost of 
redress can be predicted reasonably accurately given that management is dealing with a high volume and reasonably homogeneous population. 
In setting the provision, management estimated the total claims that were likely to be received. Previous experience has indicated that claims 
could be received over a number of years, and influenced by press coverage and the activities of claims management companies (‘CMCs’). The 
CMCs facilitate customer claims in return for a share of the redress payment and advertise heavily thereby resulting in an increase in the volume 
of claims experienced. 
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The table below sets out the key drivers of the provision balance and forecast assumptions used in the calculating provision.  
 

  
Cumulative to  

30 June 2014 

Future  
Expected 

(unreviewed) 
Inbound complaints(1) (‘000) 742 166 
Outbound contact (‘000) 324 52 
Outbound contact completion 86% 14% 
Response rate to outbound contact 31% 48% 
Average uphold rate per claim(2) 80% 64% 
Average redress per claim £1,868 £1,780 

(1) Excludes invalid claims where the complainant has not held a PPI policy.  
(2) Claims include inbound and responses to outbound contact. 
 
Number of PPI claims outstanding 
Movements in the number of PPI claims outstanding in the six months ended 30 June 2014 and year ended 31 December 2013 were as follows: 
 
 30 June 2014 

‘000 
31 December 2013 

‘000 
Outstanding at 1 January 14  31  
Complaints received(1) 130 363 
Complaints rejected as invalid(2) (99) (298) 
Complaints closed - upheld (25) (82) 
Outstanding at 30 June/31 December 20 14 

(1) Includes complaints that were deemed invalid, as there is no record of a relevant PPI policy being held by the customer.  
(2) The customer has the right to appeal to the FOS if their claim is rejected. FOS may uphold or reject the appeal and if upheld Santander UK is required to provide redress to the customer. 

Claims upheld or rejected above reflect the results of any appeals. 

 
30 June 2014 compared with 31 December 2013 
During the six months ended 30 June 2014, the volume of PPI complaints decreased at a slower rate than in previous periods. The provision was 
reassessed in light of this. A review of recent claims activity indicated that claims are now expected to continue for longer than originally 
anticipated. As a result, the provision was increased by £65m. Monthly PPI redress costs, including related costs, decreased to an average of 
£10m per month in the six months ended 30 June 2014, compared to a monthly average of £18m in the year ended 31 December 2013. The 
high proportion of invalid complaints continued.  
 
(ii) Other products 
 
The provision for conduct remediation in respect of other products represents management’s best estimate of the anticipated costs of related 
customer contact and/or redress, including related costs. A number of uncertainties remain as to the eventual costs with respect to conduct 
remediation in respect of these products given the inherent difficulties in determining the number of customers involved and the amount of any 
redress to be provided to them. 
 
Interest rate hedging products 
In 2012, the FCA (formerly known as the FSA) identified material failings in the sale of interest rate derivatives to some small and medium sized 
businesses at the four largest UK banks. The FCA did not identify any mis-selling issues with Santander UK. However, in order to ensure that 
customers are treated consistently, the FCA requested seven other UK banks (including Santander UK) to undertake a review of the sales of 
interest rate hedging products to SMEs since 2001. 

A provision was initially recognised based on the pilot exercise completed in the second half of 2012 and subsequently revised 
following the customer contact exercise that commenced in the second quarter of 2013 and ongoing updated guidelines from the FCA. The level 
of provision is based on full redress i.e. unwinding of the trade (reversal of mark-to-market values) and refund of net interest payments made by 
customers. Response rates are monitored on a regular basis, and the provision updated accordingly. 
 
Card Protection Plan  
In August 2013, the FCA announced that Card Protection Plan Limited (“CPP”) and 13 banks and credit card issuers, including the Santander UK 
group, had agreed to a compensation scheme in relation to the sale of card and/or identity protection insurance to certain retail customers. CPP 
wrote to affected policyholders to confirm the details of the proposed scheme, which was approved by a policyholder vote and by the High 
Court of England and Wales. 

A provision was recognised based on the proposed compensation scheme for sales and renewals made from 2005 onwards and 
operational costs associated with the contact exercise that commenced in the first half of 2014 and customer complaint handling costs. The level 
of provision will be assessed as the main redress and review exercise progresses. 
 
Other retail products 
A provision has also been recognised in respect of other retail products, including related to the historic sale of certain investments products.  
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Other provisions 
 
Other provisions principally comprise amounts in respect of regulatory-related provisions (the FSCS and the UK Bank Levy), as well as litigation 
and related expenses, restructuring expenses and vacant property costs. 
 
(i) Financial Services Compensation Scheme (‘FSCS’)  
 
The FSCS is the UK's independent statutory compensation fund for customers of authorised financial services firms and pays compensation if a 
firm is unable to pay claims against it. The FSCS is funded by levies on the industry (and recoveries and borrowings where appropriate). The levies 
raised comprise both management expenses levies and, where necessary, compensation levies on authorised firms. The FSCS charge recognised 
in the six months ended 30 June 2014 was £100m (six months ended 30 June 2013: £88m). 

During the six months ended 30 June 2014, Santander UK adopted IFRIC 21 which provides guidance on accounting for the liability to 
pay a government imposed levy, as described in Note 1. The adoption of IFRIC 21 changed the accounting for the FSCS. IFRIC 21 has been 
applied retrospectively. The impact of applying IFRIC 21 at 1 January 2014 was to increase retained earnings by £70m, increase deferred tax 
liabilities by £19m, and to reduce provisions by £89m. 

 
(ii) UK Bank Levy  
 
The Finance Act 2011 introduced an annual bank levy in the UK. The UK Bank Levy is based on the total chargeable equity and liabilities as 
reported in the balance sheet at the end of a chargeable period. The current year impact of the UK bank levy has not been reflected in these 
results in accordance with IFRS. Under IFRS, these charges for the year may only be recognised on the last day of the year, not accrued over the 
period. The total cost of the UK Bank Levy to the Santander UK group for 2013 was £59m. The accounting for the UK Bank Levy was not 
affected by the adoption of IFRIC 21, described in Note 1. 

 
 
26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 
 
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet were as follows: 
 
  
  

30 June 2014 
£m 

31 December 2013 
£m 

Assets/(liabilities)   
Funded defined benefit pension scheme  235 118 
Funded defined benefit pension scheme  (368) (632) 
Unfunded defined benefit pension scheme (40) (40) 
Total net liabilities (173) (554) 
 
Remeasurement gains/(losses) recognised in other comprehensive income during the period were as follows: 
 
  
  

Six months ended  
30 June 2014 

£m 

Six months ended  
30 June 2013 

£m 

Remeasurement of defined benefit schemes  128 (233) 

 
a) Defined Contribution pension schemes 
An expense of £30m (six months ended 30 June 2013: £19m) was recognised for defined contribution plans in the period, and is included in 
staff costs classified within administration expenses in the Income Statement. None of this amount was recognised in respect of key management 
personnel for the six months ended 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013.  
 
b) Defined Benefit pension schemes 
The total amount (credited)/charged to the income statement, including any amounts classified as redundancy costs and in discontinued 
operations was as follows: 
 
  
  

Six months ended  
30 June 2014 

£m 

Six months ended  
30 June 2013 

£m 

Net interest expense 12 1 
Current service cost 19 20 
Past service credit (230) - 
Administration costs  3 3 
 (196) 24 
 
During the six months ended 30 June 2014, following a review of the Santander UK Group Pension Scheme, pension arrangements for 
colleagues in that scheme were amended through the introduction of a cap on pensionable pay increases of 1% per annum from 1 March 2015. 
The impact of this change was a reduction in the defined benefit obligation of £230m, partially offset by a one-off contribution to the defined 
contribution scheme for affected members of £10m, and implementation costs of £2m. Consequently, a net gain of £218m was recognised in 
the income statement for the six months ended 30 June 2014 as set out in Note 4.  
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The amounts recognised in other comprehensive income for the period were as follows: 
 
  
  

Six months ended  
30 June 2014 

£m 

Six months ended  
30 June 2013 

£m 
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) 219 19 
Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from experience adjustments 10 (2) 
Actuarial losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (101) (250) 
Remeasurement of defined benefit pension schemes  128 (233) 

 
The net liability recognised in the balance sheet was determined as follows: 
 
 30 June 2014 

£m 
31 December 2013 

£m 
Present value of defined benefit obligation (8,402) (8,432) 
Fair value of plan assets 8,229 7,878 
Net defined benefit obligation (173) (554) 
 

 
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations during the period were as follows: 
 
  
  

30 June 2014 
£m 

31 December 2013 
£m 

Balance at 1 January (8,432) (7,554) 
Current service cost (13) (27) 
Current service cost paid by subsidiaries (1) (2) 
Current service cost paid by fellow Banco Santander group subsidiaries (5) (9) 
Interest cost (187) (336) 
Employer salary sacrifice contributions (5) (5) 
Past service credit/(cost) 230 (1) 
Remeasurement gains/(losses):   
- Actuarial losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions - (21) 
- Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from experience adjustments 10 (22) 
- Actuarial losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (101) (656) 
Actual benefit payments 102 201 
Balance at 30 June/31 December (8,402) (8,432) 
 
Movements in the fair value of scheme assets during the period were as follows: 
 
  
  

30 June 2014 
£m 

31 December 2013 
£m 

Balance at 1 January 7,878 7,503 
Interest income 175 336 
Remeasurement gains:   
- Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) 219 136 
Company contributions paid  57 102 
Contributions paid by subsidiaries and fellow Banco Santander group subsidiaries 5 11 
Administration costs (3) (9) 
Actual benefit payments (102) (201) 
Balance at 30 June/31 December 8,229 7,878 
 
Actuarial assumption sensitivities 
 
For details of the principal assumptions used for the defined benefit schemes, see page 277 of the 2013 Annual Report. The sensitivity analyses 
below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, 
while holding all other assumptions constant. 
 
 Increase/(decrease) 
 
  

30 June 2014 
£m 

31 December 2013 
£m 

Discount rate Change in pension obligation at period end from a 25 bps increase (422) (442) 
 Change in pension cost for the period from a 25 bps increase - (1) 
   
General price inflation  Change in pension obligation at period end from a 25 bps increase 254 290 
 Change in pension cost for the period from a 25 bps increase 14 14 
    
General salary increase(1) Change in pension obligation at period end from a 25 bps increase - 33 
   
Mortality Change in pension obligation at period end from each additional year of longevity assumed 215 176 
(1) General salary increase assumption is 2.8% for 2015 and 1% per annum thereafter as a result of the amendment to pension arrangements described on the previous page. 
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27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 
 
 
  

30 June 2014 
£m 

31 December 2013 
£m 

Guarantees given to third parties 1,705 1,355 
Formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments with original term to maturity of:   
- One year or less 4,658 2,672 
- More than one year 26,413 26,008 
Other contingent liabilities - 8 
 32,776 30,043 
 
There have been no significant changes to the contingent liabilities as set out in Note 38 in the 2013 Annual Report. 

 
 
28. CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
 
a) Reconciliation of profit after tax to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities 
 
  
  

Six months ended 
30 June 2014 

£m 

Six months ended 
30 June 2013(1) 

£m 

Profit for the period 438 371 
Non-cash items included in net profit:   
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 347 121 
Change in prepayments and accrued income (40) (191) 
Change in accruals and deferred income (883) 219 
Amortisation of discounts on debt securities - (12) 
Provisions for liabilities and charges 252 43 
Impairment losses 220 382 
Corporation tax charge 107 90 
Other non-cash items 208 81 
Pension change for defined benefit pension schemes (216) 15 
 433 1,119 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:   
Net change in cash and balances held at central banks - (120) 
Net change in trading assets (1,202) (8,540) 
Net change in derivative assets 890 4,223 
Net change in financial assets designated at fair value (33) 988 
Net change in debt securities, treasury bills and other eligible bills - 12 
Net change in loans and advances to banks & customers (1,084) 1,362 
Net change in other assets (395) 379 
Net change in deposits by banks and customers 4,294 1,229 
Net change in derivative liabilities 167 (5,232) 
Net change in trading liabilities (3,434) 13,682 
Net change in financial liabilities designated at fair value 307 (153) 
Net change in debt securities in issue 1,130 (338) 
Net change in other liabilities (202) (326) 
Effects of exchange rate differences (1,098) 2,021 
Net cash flow (used in)/from operating activities before tax (227) 10,306 
Corporation tax paid (25) (31) 
Net cash flow (used in)/from operating activities (252) 10,275 
(1) Adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRIC 21, as described in Note 1. 

 
b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet 
 
 30 June 2014 

£m 
31 December 2013 

£m 
Cash and balances at central banks 26,568 26,374 
Less: regulatory minimum cash balances (315) (315) 
 26,253 26,059 
Net trading other cash equivalents 5,005 9,853 
Net non-trading other cash equivalents 1,372 1,267 
Cash and cash equivalents  32,630 37,179 

 
c) Discontinued operations 
 
The co-brand credit cards business which was sold for cash consideration of £660m in 2013 qualified as discontinued operations. The net assets 
disposed of consisted of loans to customers of £672m. The net cash flows attributable to the operating, investing and financing activities of 
discontinued operations in the first half of 2013 were £907m outflow, £nil, and £nil, respectively. 
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29. ASSETS CHARGED AS SECURITY FOR LIABILITIES AND COLLATERAL 
ACCEPTED AS SECURITY FOR ASSETS 

 
The following transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to collateralised transactions, including, where relevant, 
standard securities lending and repurchase agreements.  
 
a) Financial assets pledged to secure liabilities 
 
The financial assets below are analysed between those assets accounted for on balance sheet and off-balance sheet in accordance with IFRS. 
 
 30 June 2014 

£m 
31 December 2013 

£m 

On balance sheet:   
Treasury bills and other eligible securities 7,119 6,342 
Cash  5,912 5,236 
Loans and advances to customers - securitisations and covered bonds (See Note 15) 55,807 58,788 
Loans and advances to customers 1,651 172 
Debt securities 1,357 1,123 
Equity securities 1,219 608 
 73,065 72,269 
Off balance sheet:   
Treasury bills and other eligible securities 7,443 11,171 
Debt securities 527 4,802 
Equity securities 1,447 181 
 9,417 16,154 

 
The Santander UK group provides assets as collateral in the following areas of the business. 
 
Sale and repurchase agreements  
Subsidiaries of the Company enter into sale and repurchase agreements and similar transactions of equity and debt securities, which are 
accounted for as secured borrowings. Upon entering into such transactions, the subsidiaries provide collateral equal to 100%-131% of the 
borrowed amount. The carrying amount of assets that were so provided at 30 June 2014 was £15,431m (2013: £18,843m), of which £5,804m 
(2013: £5,469m) were classified within “loans and advances to customers – securitisations and covered bonds” in the table above.  
 
Securitisations and covered bonds 
The Company and certain of its subsidiaries enter into securitisation transactions whereby portfolios of residential mortgage loans and other 
loans are purchased by or assigned to structured securitisation companies, and have been funded through the issue of mortgage-backed 
securities and other asset-backed securities. Holders of the securities are only entitled to obtain payments of principal and interest to the extent 
that the resources of the securitisation companies are sufficient to support such payments and the holders of the securities have agreed in 
writing not to seek recourse in any other form. At 30 June 2014, £33,387m (2013: £37,573m) of loans were so assigned by the Santander UK 
group. 

A subsidiary of the Company also has an established covered bond programme, whereby securities are issued to investors and are 
guaranteed by a pool of ring-fenced residential mortgages. At 30 June 2014, the pool of ring-fenced residential mortgages for the covered bond 
programme was £22,420m (2013: £21,215m).  

At 30 June 2014, total notes issued externally from secured programmes (securitisations and covered bonds) increased to £34,585m 
(2013: £36,307m), reflecting gross issuance of £2.6bn (2013: £3.1bn) in 2014. At 30 June 2014, a total of £14,440m (2013: £14,599m) of 
notes issued under securitisation and covered bond programmes had also been retained internally, a proportion of which had been used as 
collateral for raising funds via third party bilateral secured funding transactions, which totalled £7.2bn at 30 June 2014 (2013: £7.6bn), or for 
creating collateral which could in the future be used for liquidity purposes. 
 
Stock borrowing and lending agreements 
Asset balances under stock borrowing and lending agreements represent stock lent by the Santander UK group. These balances amounted to 
£11,136m at 30 June 2014 (2013: £11,025m) and are offset by contractual commitments to return stock borrowed or cash received.  
 
Derivatives business 
In addition to the arrangements described above, collateral is also provided in the normal course of derivative business to counterparties. At 30 
June 2014, £5,912m (2013: £5,236m) of such collateral in the form of cash had been provided by the Santander UK group and is included in the 
table above. 
 
b) Collateral held as security for assets 
 
The collateral held as security for assets below are analysed between those liabilities accounted for on the balance sheet and off-balance sheet in 
accordance with IFRS. 
 
 30 June 2014 

£m 
31 December 2013 

£m 

On balance sheet:   
Trading liabilities  
Deposits by banks 

1,451 
1,296 

1,841 
1,671 

 2,747 3,512 
Off balance sheet:   
Trading liabilities 17,887 19,907 
Deposits by banks  80 49 
 17,967 19,956 
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Purchase and resale agreements  
Subsidiaries of the Company also enter into purchase and resale agreements and similar transactions of equity and debt securities, which are 
accounted for as collateralised loans. Upon entering into such transactions, the subsidiaries receive collateral equal to 100%-105% of the loan 
amount. The level of collateral held is monitored daily and if required, further calls are made to ensure the market values of collateral remains at 
least equal to the loan balance. The subsidiaries are permitted to sell or repledge the collateral held in the absence of default. At 30 June 2014, 
the fair value of such collateral received was £8,339m (2013: £10,080m). Of the collateral received, almost all was sold or repledged. The 
subsidiaries have an obligation to return collateral that they have sold or pledged. 
 
Stock borrowing and lending agreements  
Obligations under stock borrowing and lending agreements represent contractual commitments to return stock borrowed. These obligations 
totalled £9,628m at 30 June 2014 (2013: £9,876m) and are offset by a contractual right to receive stock lent by the Santander UK group. 
 
Derivatives business 
In addition to the arrangements described above, collateral is also received from counterparties in the normal course of derivative business. At 30 
June 2014, £2,747m (2013: £3,512m) of such collateral in the form of cash had been received by the Santander UK group and is included in the 
table above. 
 
Lending activities 
In addition to the above collateral held as security for assets, the Santander UK group may obtain a charge over a customer’s property in 
connection with its lending activities. Details of these arrangements are set out in the ‘Credit Risk’ section of the Risk Management Report. 

 
 
30. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 
 
a) Parent undertaking and controlling party 
 
On 10 January 2014, the ordinary shares of Santander UK plc were transferred to a new holding company, Santander UK Group Holdings 
Limited which is therefore now the Company’s immediate parent. The Company’s ultimate parent and controlling party is Banco Santander, S.A., 
a company incorporated in Spain. The smallest and largest group into which the Santander UK group’s results are included is the group accounts 
of Banco Santander, S.A., copies of which may be obtained from Santander Shareholder Relations, 2 Triton Square, Regent’s Place, London NW1 
3AN. 
 
b) Transactions with related parties 
 
The financial position and performance of the Santander UK group have not been materially affected in the first six months of the year by any 
related party transactions, or changes to related party transactions, except as disclosed in the other Notes to these Condensed Consolidated 
Interim Financial Statements or otherwise described below. 

On 24 June 2014, the Company issued £500m Perpetual Capital Securities to its immediate parent company, Santander UK Group 
Holdings Limited. Details of these securities can be found in Note 31. In turn, Santander UK Group Holdings Limited issued a similar security. The 
issuance was 100% subscribed by Banco Santander, S.A.. 

Information on balances due from/(to) other Banco Santander group companies is set out in ‘Balances with other Banco Santander 
group companies’ in the ‘Country Risk Exposure’ section of the Risk Management Report. In addition, transactions with pension schemes 
operated by the Santander UK group are described in Note 26. These transactions were made in the ordinary course of business and substantially 
on the same terms as for comparable transactions with third party counterparties and within limits acceptable to the PRA. Such transactions do 
not involve more than the normal risk of collectability or present any unfavourable features. 

 
 
31. SHARE CAPITAL AND OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS 
 

 
30 June 2014 

£m 
31 December 2013 

£m 
Ordinary share capital 3,105 3,105 
£300m fixed/floating rate non-cumulative callable preference shares 300 300 
£300m Step-up Callable Perpetual Reserve Capital Instruments 297 297 
£300m Step Up Callable Perpetual Preferred Securities 7 7 
£500m Perpetual Capital Securities 500 - 

 4,209 3,709 

 
£500m Perpetual Capital Securities 
On 24 June 2014, the Company issued £500m Perpetual Capital Securities to its immediate parent company, Santander UK Group Holdings 
Limited. The securities are perpetual and pay a coupon on 24 March, June, September and December, commencing from March 2015. At each 
payment date, the Company can decide whether to pay the coupon, which is non-cumulative, in whole or in part. The coupon is 6.625% per 
annum until 24 June 2019; thereafter, the coupon resets every five years to a rate 4.441% per annum above the then prevailing 5 year sterling 
mid swap rate. The Perpetual Capital Securities will be automatically written down and the investors will lose their entire investment in the 
securities should the Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio of the Santander UK group fall below 7%. The Perpetual Capital Securities are 
redeemable at the option of the Company on 24 June 2019 or on each coupon payment date thereafter. No such redemption may be made 
without the consent of the PRA. 

In turn, Santander UK Group Holdings Limited issued a similar security. The issuance was 100% subscribed by Banco Santander, S.A.. 



 

Financial Statements 

Notes to the Financial Statements continued 

 

110  Santander UK plc 2014 Half Yearly Financial Report  

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
a) Fair values of financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis 
 
The following tables summarise the fair values at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013 of the financial asset and liability classes accounted 
for at fair value, analysed by the valuation methodology used by the Santander UK group to determine their fair value. The tables also 
disclose the percentages that the recorded fair values of financial assets and liabilities represent of the total assets and liabilities, 
respectively, that are recorded at fair value in the balance sheet: 
 
30 June 2014  Internal models based on   

Balance sheet category 

 Quoted prices in 
active markets 

(Level 1) 

Market  
observable data 

(Level 2) 

Significant 
unobservable 

data  
(Level 3) 

 
Total 

Valuation 
technique 

  £m % £m % £m % £m %  

Assets           
Trading assets Loans and advances to banks - - 6,200 13 - - 6,200 13 A 
 Loans and advances to customers - - 1,767 4 - - 1,767 4 A 
 Debt securities 7,522 16 - - - - 7,522 16 - 
 Equity securities 3,212 7 - - - - 3,212 7 - 
           
Derivative assets Exchange rate contracts - - 2,706 6 11 - 2,717 6 A 
 Interest rate contracts 6 - 13,763 28 25 - 13,794 28 A & C 
 Equity and credit contracts 360 1 2,158 4 126 - 2,644 5 B & D 
 Commodity contracts - - 4 - - - 4 - A 
           
Financial assets at FVTPL Loans and advances to customers - - 2,177 5 52 - 2,229 5 A 
 Debt securities - - 314 - 211 - 525 - A & B 
           
AFS financial assets Equity securities 24 - - - - - 24 - - 

 Debt securities 7,731 16 - - - - 7,731 16 - 
Total assets at fair value  18,855 40 29,089 60 425 - 48,369 100  
           
Liabilities           
Trading liabilities Deposits by banks - - 8,523 21 - - 8,523 21 A 
 Deposits by customers - - 5,095 13 - - 5,095 13 A 
 Short positions 4,230 11 - - - - 4,230 11 - 
           
Derivative liabilities Exchange rate contracts - - 3,228 8 - - 3,228 8 A 
 Interest rate contracts 23 - 12,637 31 8 - 12,668 31 A & C 
 Equity and credit contracts 2 - 3,084 8 44 - 3,130 8 B & D 
 Commodity contracts - - 4 - - - 4 - A 
           
Financial liabilities at FVTPL Debt securities in issue - - 3,228 8 24 - 3,252 8 A 
Total liabilities at fair value  4,255 11 35,799 89 76 - 40,130 100  
 
31 December 2013  Internal models based on   

Balance sheet category 

 Quoted prices in active 
markets 
(Level 1) 

Market  
observable data 

(Level 2) 

Significant 
unobservable 

data  
(Level 3) 

 
Total 

Valuation 
technique 

  £m % £m % £m % £m %  

Assets           
Trading assets Loans and advances to banks - - 9,326 19 - - 9,326 19 A 
 Loans and advances to customers - - 4,404 9 - - 4,404 9 A 
 Debt securities 7,859 16 - - - - 7,859 16 - 
 Equity securities 705 1 - - - - 705 1 - 
           
Derivative assets Exchange rate contracts - - 3,437 7 14 - 3,451 7 A 
 Interest rate contracts 11 - 14,232 28 - - 14,243 28 A & C 
 Equity and credit contracts 311 1 1,911 4 131 - 2,353 5 B & D 
 Commodity contracts - - 2 - - - 2 - A 
           
Financial assets at FVTPL Loans and advances to customers - - 2,168 4 51 - 2,219 4 A 
 Debt securities - - 258 - 270 1 528 1 A & B 
           
AFS financial assets Equity securities 24 - - - - - 24 - - 

 Debt securities 4,981 10 - - - - 4,981 10 - 
Total assets at fair value  13,891 28 35,738 71 466 1 50,095 100  
           
Liabilities           
Trading liabilities Deposits by banks - - 11,291 26 - - 11,291 26 A 
 Deposits by customers - - 7,069 16 - - 7,069 16 A 
 Short positions 2,918 6 - - - - 2,918 6 - 
           
Derivative liabilities Exchange rate contracts - - 2,936 7 - - 2,936 7 A 
 Interest rate contracts 36 - 12,938 30 - - 12,974 30 A & C 
 Equity and credit contracts 771 2 2,132 5 48 - 2,951 7 B & D 
 Commodity contracts - - 2 - - - 2 - A 
           
Financial liabilities at FVTPL Debt securities in issue - - 3,370 8 37 - 3,407 8 A 
Total liabilities at fair value  3,725 8 39,738 92 85 - 43,548 100  
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Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy  
 
Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are reported at the beginning of the reporting period in which they occur. During the six 
months ended 30 June 2014, the following financial instruments were transferred between Level 2 and Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy: 
 
> Bermudan swaptions shown within derivative assets and derivative liabilities with fair values of £29m and £10m, respectively, were 

transferred from Level 2 to Level 3 principally due to a lack of market transactions in these instruments. The valuation techniques 
applied to estimate the fair value of these financial instruments are described in section e below as ‘instruments 2 and 9’.

> Certain asset-backed securities issued by Banco Santander group entities, with a fair value of £58m designated as fair value through 
profit and loss, were transferred from Level 3 to Level 2 principally due to improved transparency of market prices as a result of 
market transactions in these instruments. The valuation technique applied to estimate the fair value of these financial instruments is 
described in section e below as ‘instrument 8’. 

 
During the year ended 31 December 2013, there were no transfers of financial instruments between Levels 2 and 3. 

During the six months ended 30 June 2014, there were no transfers of financial instruments between Levels 1 and 2 (year ended 
31 December 2013: Nil).   
 
b) Fair values of financial instruments measured at amortised cost on a recurring basis 
 
The following tables analyse the fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value in the balance sheet: 
 
30 June 2014 Carrying value 

£m 
Fair value 

£m 
Surplus/(deficit) 

£m 
Assets    
Loans and advances to banks 2,325 2,288 (37)
Loans and advances to customers 186,094 187,006 912
Loans and receivables securities 869 873 4
Liabilities    
Deposits by banks 8,234 8,423 (189)
Deposits by customers 150,734 151,501 (767)
Debt securities in issue 50,258 52,158 (1,900)
Subordinated liabilities 4,272 4,169 103

 
31 December 2013 Carrying value 

£m 
Fair value 

£m 
Surplus/(deficit) 

£m 
Assets    
Loans and advances to banks 2,347 2,307 (40) 
Loans and advances to customers 184,587 186,075 1,488 
Loans and receivables securities 1,101 1,032 (69) 
Liabilities    
Deposits by banks 8,696 8,891 (195) 
Deposits by customers 147,167 147,963 (796) 
Debt securities in issue 50,870 52,489 (1,619) 
Subordinated liabilities 4,306 4,435 (129) 
 
The surplus/(deficit) in the table above represents the surplus/(deficit) of fair value compared to the carrying amount of those financial 
instruments for which fair values have been estimated. The carrying value above of any financial assets and liabilities that are designated as 
hedged items in a portfolio (or macro) fair value hedge relationship excludes gains and losses attributable to the hedged risk, as this is 
presented as a single separate line item on the balance sheet. 

The fair value exposures set out in the tables above are managed by using a combination of hedging derivatives and offsetting on 
balance sheet positions. The approach to specific categories of financial instruments is described on page 295 of the 2013 Annual Report. 
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c) Valuation techniques  
 
The main valuation techniques employed in the Santander UK group’s internal models to measure the fair value of the financial instruments 
disclosed above at 30 June 2014 and 31 December 2013 are set out below. In substantially all cases, the principal inputs into these models 
are derived from observable market data. The Santander UK group did not make any material changes to the valuation techniques and 
internal models it used during the six months ended 30 June 2014. 
 
A In the valuation of financial instruments requiring static hedging (for example interest rate, currency derivatives and commodity 

swaps) and in the valuation of loans and advances and deposits, the ‘present value’ method is used. Expected future cash flows 
are discounted using the interest rate curves of the applicable currencies or forward commodity prices as appropriate. The 
interest rate curves are generally observable market data and reference yield curves derived from quoted interest rates in 
appropriate time bandings, which match the timings of the cash flows and maturities of the instruments. The forward 
commodity prices are generally observable market data. 
 

B In the valuation of equity financial instruments requiring dynamic hedging (principally equity securities, options and other 
structured instruments), proprietary local volatility and stochastic volatility models are used. These types of models are widely 
accepted in the financial services industry. Observable market inputs used in these models include the bid-offer spread, foreign 
currency exchange rates, volatility and correlation between indices. In limited circumstances, other inputs may be used in these 
models that are based on data other than observable market data, such as the Halifax’s UK House Price Index (‘HPI’) volatility, 
HPI forward growth, HPI spot rate, mortality and mean reversion. 
 

C In the valuation of financial instruments exposed to interest rate risk that require either static or dynamic hedging (such as 
interest rate futures, caps and floors, and options), the present value method (futures), Black-Scholes model (caps/floors) and the 
Hull/White and Markov functional models (Bermudan options) are used. These types of models are widely accepted in the 
financial services industry. The significant inputs used in these models are observable market data, including appropriate interest 
rate curves, volatilities, correlations and exchange rates. In limited circumstances, other inputs may be used in these models that 
are based on data other than observable market data, such as HPI volatility, HPI forward growth, HPI spot rate and mortality. 
 

D In the valuation of linear instruments such as credit risk and fixed-income derivatives, credit risk is measured using dynamic 
models similar to those used in the measurement of interest rate risk. In the case of non-linear instruments, if the portfolio is 
exposed to credit risk such as credit derivatives, the probability of default is determined using the par spread level. The main 
inputs used to determine the underlying cost of credit of credit derivatives are quoted credit risk premiums and the correlation 
between the quoted credit derivatives of various issuers. 

 
The fair values of the financial instruments arising from the Santander UK group’s internal models take into account, among other things, 
contract terms and observable market data, which include such factors as bid-offer spread, interest rates, credit risk, exchange rates, the 
quoted market price of raw materials and equity securities, volatility and prepayments. In all cases, when it is not possible to derive a 
valuation for a particular feature of an instrument, management uses judgement to determine the fair value of the particular feature. In 
exercising this judgement, a variety of tools are used including proxy observable data, historical data and extrapolation techniques. 
Extrapolation techniques take into account behavioural characteristics of equity markets that have been observed over time, and for which 
there is a strong case to support an expectation of a continuing trend in the future. Estimates are calibrated to observable market prices 
when they become available. 

The estimates thus obtained could vary if other valuation methods or assumptions were used. The Santander UK group believes 
its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants. Nevertheless, the use of different valuation methods or 
assumptions, including imprecision in estimating unobservable market inputs, to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments 
could result in different estimates of fair value at the reporting date and the amount of gain or loss recorded for a particular instrument. 
Most of the valuation models are not significantly subjective, because they can be tested and, if necessary, recalibrated by the internal 
calculation of and subsequent comparison to market prices of actively traded securities, where available. 
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d) Fair value adjustments 
 
The internal models incorporate assumptions that the Santander UK group believes would be made by a market participant to establish fair 
value. Fair value adjustments are adopted when the Santander UK group considers that there are additional factors that would be 
considered by a market participant in the determination of fair value of the instrument that are not incorporated in the valuation model. 
The magnitude of fair value adjustments depends upon many entity-specific factors, including modelling sophistication, the nature of 
products traded, and the size and type of risk exposures. For this reason, fair value adjustments may not be comparable across the banking 
industry. 

The Santander UK group classifies fair value adjustments as either ‘risk-related’ or ‘model-related’. The fair value adjustments 
form part of the portfolio fair value and are included in the balance sheet values of the product types to which they have been applied. The 
majority of these adjustments relate to Markets. The magnitude and types of fair value adjustment adopted by Markets are listed in the 
following table: 
 
 30 June 2014 

£m 
31 December 2013 

£m 

Risk-related:   
- Bid-offer and trade specific adjustments 19 27 
- Uncertainty 17 18 
- Credit risk adjustment 41 45 
 77 90 
Model-related:   
- Model limitation 11 12 
   
Day One profits 1 - 
 89 102 

 
Risk-related adjustments 
‘Risk-related’ adjustments are driven, in part, by the magnitude of the Santander UK group’s market or credit risk exposure, and by external 
market factors, such as the size of market spreads. For further details, see the ‘Risk-related adjustments’ section on page 302 of the 2013 
Annual Report. 
 
e) Internal models based on information other than market data (Level 3) 
 
The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments valued using internal models based on information other than market data 
together with the subsequent valuation technique used for each type of instrument.  Each instrument is initially valued at transaction price: 
 
   Balance sheet 

value 
Amount recognised 
in income/(expense) 

   30 June 
2014 

31 December 
2013 

H1 
2014 

H1 
2013 

Balance sheet line item Category Financial instrument product type £m £m £m £m 

1. Derivative assets   Exchange rate contracts Cross-currency swaps 11 14 (1) (6) 
2. Derivative assets   Interest rate contracts Bermudan swaptions 25 - (4) - 
3. Derivative assets   Equity and credit contracts Reversionary property interests 75 71 6 (2) 
4. Derivative assets   Equity and credit contracts Credit default swaps 9 13 3 (1) 
5. Derivative assets   Equity contracts Options and forwards 42 47 (8) - 
6. FVTPL  Loans and advances to customers Roll-up mortgage portfolio 52 51 2 (3) 
7. FVTPL  Debt securities Reversionary property securities 211 212 14 (2) 
8. FVTPL   Debt securities Asset-backed securities  - 58 - 9 
9. Derivative liabilities Interest rate contracts Bermudan swaptions (8) - 2 - 
10. Derivative liabilities Equity contracts Options and forwards (44) (48) (5) 3 
11. FVTPL   Debt securities in issue Non-vanilla debt securities  (24) (37) 1 5 
Total net assets 349 381 - - 
Total income - - 10 3 

 
Valuation techniques  
 
1. Derivative assets - Exchange rate contracts 
These cross currency swaps are used to hedge the foreign currency risks arising from the PRDC notes issued by the Santander UK group, as 
described in Instrument 11 below. These derivatives are valued using a standard valuation model valuing each leg of the swap, with 
expected future cash flows less notional amount exchanged at maturity date discounted using an appropriate floating rate. The floating 
rate is adjusted by the relevant cross currency basis spread. Interest rates, foreign exchange rates, cross currency basis spread and long-
dated foreign exchange (‘FX’) volatility are used as inputs to determine fair value. Interest rates and foreign exchange rates are observable 
on the market. 

Cross currency spreads may be market observable or unobservable depending on the liquidity of the cross currency pair. As the 
Japanese Yen-US dollar cross currency pair related to the PRDC notes is liquid, the cross currency spreads (including long-dated cross 
currency spread) for these swaps are market observable. The significant unobservable inputs for the valuation of these financial instruments 
are the long-dated FX volatility and the correlation between the underlying assets.  

The correlation between the underlying assets is assumed to be zero, as there are no actively traded options from which 
correlations between the underlying assets could be implied. Furthermore, the zero correlation assumption implies that the sources of the 
long-dated FX volatility are independent. 
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Long-dated FX volatility 
Long-dated FX volatility is extrapolated from shorter-dated FX volatilities which are directly observable on the market. Short-dated FX 
volatility is observable from the trading of FX options. As there is no active market for FX options with maturities greater than five years 
(long-dated FX options), long-dated FX volatility is not market observable. Furthermore, as historical prices are not relevant in determining 
the cost of hedging long-dated FX risk, long-dated FX volatility cannot be inferred from historical volatility. The Santander UK group 
extrapolates the long-dated FX volatility from the shorter-dated FX volatilities using Black-Scholes model.  

FX volatility is modelled as the composition of the domestic interest rate, foreign interest rates and FX spot volatilities using 
standard Hull-White formulae. The Hull-White approach is used for estimating the future distribution of domestic and foreign zero-coupon 
rates, constructed from the relevant yield curves. Using short-dated FX options, the FX spot volatility is calculated which is then extrapolated 
to derive the long-dated FX volatility. 
 
2. Derivative assets - Interest rate contracts  
These derivatives assets are options giving the holder the right to enter into an interest rate swap on any one of a number of predetermined 
dates. These Bermudan swaptions are valued using a standard valuation model. 

In determining the value of Bermudan swaptions, the main inputs used are market observable information in the vanilla swaption 
market and a mean reversion parameter. The significant unobservable input for the valuation of these financial instruments is mean 
reversion. 
 
Mean reversion  
The mean reversion input used in valuing Bermudan swaptions reflects the level of de-correlation in the swaption market. This parameter is 
not directly observable in the market but can be deduced from broker quotes or using expert judgement. An adjustment is made to reflect 
this uncertainty by stressing the parameter.  
 
3. Derivative assets - Equity and credit contracts  
These reversionary property derivatives are valued using a probability weighted set of HPI forward prices, which are assumed to be a 
reasonable representation of the increase in value of the Santander UK group’s reversionary interest portfolio underlying the derivatives. 
The probability used reflects the likelihood of the home owner vacating the property and is calculated from mortality rates and acceleration 
rates which are a function of age and gender, obtained from the relevant mortality tables. Indexing is felt to be appropriate due to the size 
and geographical dispersion of the Santander UK group’s reversionary interest portfolio. These are determined using HPI Spot Rates 
adjusted to reflect estimated forward growth. Launched in 1984, the Halifax’s UK HPI is the UK's longest running monthly house price data 
series covering the whole country. The indices calculated are standardised and represent the price of a typically transacted house. Both 
national and regional HPI are published. The national HPI is published monthly. The regional HPI reflects the national HPI disaggregated into 
12 UK regions and is published quarterly. Both indices are published on two bases, including and excluding seasonal adjustments in the 
housing market. The Santander UK group uses the non-seasonally adjusted (‘NSA’) national and regional HPI in its valuation model to avoid 
any subjective judgement in the adjustment process which is made by Halifax. 

The inputs used to determine the value of the reversionary property derivatives are HPI spot, HPI forward growth and mortality 
rates. The principal pricing parameter is HPI forward growth. 
 
HPI Spot Rate 
The HPI spot rate used in the model is a weighted average of NSA regional HPI spot rates i.e. adjusted for difference in the actual regional 
composition of the property underlying the Santander UK group’s reversionary interest portfolio and the composition of the published 
regional indices. The regional HPI spot rate (which is observable market data) is only published on specific quarterly dates. In between these 
dates, its value is estimated by applying the growth rate over the relevant time period inferred from the national HPI spot rates (which are 
observable market data and published monthly) to the most recently calculated weighted average regional HPI spot rate based on published 
regional indices.  

An adjustment is also made to reflect the specific property risk i.e. possible deviation between the actual growth in the house 
prices underlying the Santander UK group’s reversionary interest portfolio and their assumed index-linked growth, which is based on the 
regional HPI. This adjustment is based on the average historical deviation of price changes of the Santander UK group’s actual property 
portfolio from that of the published indices over the time period since the last valuation date. 
 
HPI Forward Growth Rate 
Long-dated HPI forward growth rate is not directly observable in the market but is estimated from traded forward contracts. A specific 
spread is applied to the long-dated forward growth rate to reflect the uncertainty surrounding long-dated data. This spread is calculated by 
analysing the historical volatility of the HPI, whilst incorporating mean reversion. An adjustment is made to reflect the specific property risk 
as for the HPI spot rate above.  
 
Mortality Rate 
Mortality rates are obtained from the PNMA00 and PNFA00 Continuous Mortality Investigation Tables published by the UK Institute and 
Faculty of Actuaries. These mortality rates are adjusted by acceleration rates to reflect the mortality profile of the holders of Santander UK 
group’s reversionary property products underlying the derivatives. Mortality rates do not have a significant effect on the value of the 
instruments. 
 
4. Derivative assets - Credit contracts 
These derivative assets are credit default swaps held against certain bonds. The credit default swaps are valued using the credit spreads of 
the referenced bonds. These referenced bonds are valued with the assistance of valuations prepared by an independent, specialist valuation 
firm as a deep and liquid market does not exist.  

In valuing the credit default swaps, the main inputs used to determine the underlying cost of credit are quoted risk premiums 
and the correlation between the quoted credit derivatives of various issuers. The assumptions relating to the correlation between the values 
of quoted and unquoted assets are based on historical correlations between the impact of adverse changes in market variables and the 
corresponding valuation of the associated unquoted assets. The measurement of the assets will vary depending on whether a more or less 
conservative scenario is selected. The other main input is the probability of default of the referenced bonds. The significant unobservable 
input for the valuation of these financial instruments is the probability of default. 
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Probability of default 
The probability of default is assessed by considering the credit quality of the underlying referenced bonds. However, as no deep and liquid 
market exists for these assets the assessment of the probability of default is not directly observable and instead an estimate is calculated 
using the Standard Gaussian Copula model. 
 
5. Derivative assets - Equity contracts  
There are three types of derivatives within this category: 
 
European options – These derivatives are valued using a modified Black-Scholes model where the HPI is log-normally distributed with the 
forward rates determined from the HPI forward growth. 
Asian options – Asian (or average value) options are valued using a modified Black-Scholes model, with an amended strike price and 
volatility assumption to account for the average exercise period, through a closed form adjustment that reflects the strike price relative to 
the distribution of stock prices at each relevant date. This is also known as the Curran model. 
Forward contracts – Forward contracts are valued using a standard forward pricing model. 
 
The inputs used to determine the value of the above instruments are HPI spot rate, HPI forward growth rate and HPI volatility. The principal 
pricing parameter is HPI forward growth rate.  
 
HPI Spot Rate 
The HPI spot rate used is the NSA national HPI spot rate which is published monthly and directly observable in the market. This HPI rate 
used is different from the weighted average regional HPI spot rate used in the valuation of Instrument 3 above, as the underlying of these 
derivatives is the UK national HPI spot rate.   
 
HPI Forward Growth Rate 
The HPI forward growth rate used is unobservable and is the same as used in the valuation of Instrument 3 above. 
 
HPI Volatility 
Long-dated HPI volatility is not directly observable in the market but is estimated from the most recent traded values. An adjustment is 
applied to the long-dated HPI volatility rate to reflect the uncertainty surrounding long-dated data. This adjustment is based on the 
empirical standard deviation of historical volatility over a range of time horizons. HPI volatility rates do not have a significant effect on the 
value of the instruments. 
 
6. FVTPL – Loans and advances to customers 
These loans and advances to customers represent roll-up mortgages (sometimes referred to as “lifetime” mortgages), which are an equity 
release scheme under which a property owner takes out a loan secured against their home. The owner does not make any interest 
payments during their lifetime and the fixed interest payments are rolled up into the mortgage. The loan or mortgage (capital and rolled-up 
interest) is repaid upon the owner’s vacation of the property and the value of the loan is only repaid from the value of the property. This is 
known as a ‘no negative pledge’. The Santander UK group suffers a loss if the sale proceeds from the property are insufficient to repay the 
loan, as it is unable to pursue the homeowner’s estate or beneficiaries for the shortfall.  

The value of the mortgage ‘rolls up’ or accretes until the owner vacates the property. In order to value the roll-up mortgages, the 
Santander UK group uses a probability-weighted set of European option prices (puts) determined using the Black-Scholes model, in which 
the ‘no negative pledges’ are valued as short put options. The probability weighting applied is calculated from mortality rates and 
acceleration rates as a function of age and gender, taken from mortality tables. 

The inputs used to determine the value of these instruments are HPI spot, HPI forward growth, HPI volatility, mortality rates and 
repayment rates. The principal pricing parameter is HPI forward growth. The HPI forward growth rate used is unobservable and is the same 
as used in the valuation of Instrument 3 above. The other parameters do not have a significant effect on the value of the instruments. 
 
7. FVTPL – Debt securities 
These debt securities consisting of reversionary property securities are an equity release scheme, where the property owner receives an 
upfront lump sum in return for paying a fixed percentage of the sales proceeds of the property when the owner vacates the property. 
These reversionary property securities are valued using a probability-weighted set of HPI forward prices which are assumed to be a 
reasonable representation of the increase in value of the Santander UK group’s reversionary interest portfolio underlying the derivatives. 
The probability weighting used reflects the probability of the home owner vacating the property through death and is calculated from 
death rates and acceleration factors which are a function of age and gender, obtained from the relevant mortality table.   

The inputs used to determine the value of these instruments are HPI spot, HPI forward growth and mortality rates. The principal 
pricing parameter is HPI forward growth. Discussion of the HPI spot rate, HPI forward growth rate and mortality rates for this financial 
instrument is the same as Instrument 4 above. An adjustment is also made to reflect the specific property risk. Discussion of the specific 
property risk adjustment is the same as Instrument 3 above. 
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8. FVTPL – Debt securities  
These securities consist of asset-backed securities issued by Banco Santander group entities. Each instrument is valued with reference to the 
price from a consensus pricing service. This is then corroborated against the price from another consensus pricing service due to the lack of 
depth in the number of available market quotes. An average price is used where there is a more than insignificant difference between the 
two sources. The significant unobservable input is the adjustment to the credit spread embedded in the pricing consensus quotes.  
 
9. Derivative liabilities – Interest rate contracts  
These derivatives are the same as Instrument 2 with the exception that they have a negative fair value. 
 
10. Derivative liabilities - Equity contracts 
These derivatives are the same as Instrument 5 with the exception that they have a negative fair value. 
 
11. FVTPL - Debt securities in issue 
These debt securities in issue are PRDC notes. These notes are financial structured products where an investor is seeking a better return and 
a borrower/issuer a lower rate by taking advantage of the interest rate differential between two countries. The note pays a foreign interest 
rate in the investor's domestic currency. The power component of the name denotes higher initial coupons and the fact that coupons rise 
as the domestic/foreign exchange rate depreciates. The power feature comes with a higher risk for the investor. Cash flows may have a 
digital cap feature where the rate gets locked once it reaches a certain threshold. Other add-on features are barriers such as knockouts and 
cancellation provisions for the issuer. 

These debt securities in issue are valued using a three-factor Gaussian Model. The three factors used in the valuation are 
domestic interest rates, foreign interest rates and foreign exchange rates. The correlations between the factors are assumed to be zero 
within the valuation. 

The Hull-White approach is used for estimating the future distribution of domestic and foreign zero-coupon rates, constructed 
from the relevant yield curves. A Geometric Brownian Motion model is used for estimating the future distribution of spot foreign exchange 
rates. The foreign exchange and interest rate volatilities are the most crucial pricing parameters; the model calibrates to the relevant 
swaption volatility surface. 

The significant unobservable inputs for the valuation of these financial instruments are the long dated FX volatility and the 
correlation between the underlying assets and are the same as Instrument 1. 
 
Reconciliation of fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy 
The following table provides a reconciliation of the movement between opening and closing balances of Level 3 financial instruments, 
measured at fair value using a valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: 
 

 Assets  Liabilities 
 Derivatives Fair value 

through P&L 
Total  Derivatives Fair value 

through P&L 
Total 

 £m £m £m  £m £m £m 
At 1 January 2014 145 321 466  (48) (37) (85) 
Total gains/(losses) recognised in profit/(loss):        
- Fair value movements (4) 16 12  (3) 1 (2)
- Foreign exchange and other movements - (1) (1)  - - -
Transfers in 29 - 29  (10) - (10) 
Transfers out - (58) (58)  - - - 
Settlements (8) (15) (23)  9 12 21
At 30 June 2014 162 263 425  (52) (24) (76)

        
Gains/(losses) recognised in profit/(loss) relating to 
assets and liabilities held at the end of the period 

(4) 15 11 (3) 1 (2)

 
Total gains or losses are included in ‘Net trading and other income’ (see Note 3).  
 

 Assets  Liabilities 
 Derivatives Fair value 

through P&L 
Total  Derivatives Fair value 

through P&L 
Total 

 £m £m £m  £m £m £m 
At 1 January 2013 215 345 560  (57) (86) (143) 
Total gains/(losses) recognised in profit/(loss):        
- Fair value movements (16) 10 (6)  8 7 15 
- Foreign exchange and other movements (11) 7 (4)  (11) 12 1 
Sales - (27) (27)  - - - 
Settlements (43) (14) (57)  12 30 42 
At 31 December 2013 145 321 466  (48) (37) (85) 

        
Gains/(losses) recognised in profit/(loss) relating to 
assets and liabilities held at the end of the year 

(27) 17 (10)  (3) 19 16 
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Effect of changes in significant unobservable assumptions to reasonably possible alternatives (Level 3) 
The fair value of financial instruments are, in certain circumstances, measured using valuation techniques that incorporate assumptions that 
are not evidenced by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument and are not based on observable market 
data and, as such require the application of a degree of judgement. Changing one or more of the inputs to the valuation models to 
reasonably possible alternative assumptions would change the fair values significantly. The following table shows the sensitivity of these fair 
values to reasonably possible alternative assumptions. 

Favourable and unfavourable changes are determined on the basis of changes in the value of the instrument as a result of 
varying the levels of the unobservable input as described in the table below. The potential effects do not take into effect any hedged 
positions. 
 
30 June 2014     Reflected in income statement 

Balance sheet note line item and product 
Fair 

value 
 

Significant unobservable input Shift 
Favourable 

changes 
Unfavourable 

changes 
  

 
£m 

 
 

Assumption description 

Assumption value  

£m £m 
Range(1) Weighted 

average 
2. Derivative assets – Interest rate contracts:  

- Bermudan swaptions 
25 Mean reversion 

 
4%  

 
4% 

  
1% 

 
1 
 

(1) 
 

3. Derivative assets – Equity and credit 
contracts: 

– Reversionary property derivatives 

75 HPI Forward growth rate 
HPI Spot rate 

0%-5%  
n/a 

2.66% 
578(2)   

1% 
10% 

 

10 
8 

(10) 
(8) 

4. Derivative assets – Credit contracts:  
– Credit default swaps 

9 Probability of default 0%-4.9%  
 

0.3% 
 

20% 2 (2) 

5. Derivative assets – Equity contracts:  
– Options and forwards 

42 HPI Forward growth rate 
HPI Spot rate 

0%-5%  
n/a  

2% 
565  

1% 
10% 

3 
2 

(3) 
- 

6. FVTPL – Loans and advances to customers: 
– Roll-up mortgage portfolio 

52 HPI Forward growth rate 0%-5%  
 

2.82% 
 

1% 2 (2) 

7. FVTPL – Debt securities: 
– Reversionary property securities 

211 HPI Forward growth rate 
HPI Spot rate 

0%-5%  
n/a 

2.66% 
578 

1% 
10% 

15 
20 

(15) 
(20) 

9. Derivative liabilities – Interest rate 
contracts:  

- Bermudan swaptions 

(8) Mean reversion 
 

4%  
 

4% 
  

1% 
 

1 
 

(1) 
 

10. Derivative liabilities - Equity contracts:  
– Options and forwards 

(44) HPI Forward growth rate 
HPI Spot rate 

0%-5%  
n/a 

2% 
565(2)   

1% 
10% 

4 
15 

(4) 
(18) 

 

(1) The range of actual assumption values used to calculate the weighted average disclosure. 
(2) Represents the HPI spot rate index level at 30 June 2014. 

 
31 December 2013     Reflected in income statement 

Balance sheet note line item and product 
Fair 

value 
 

Significant unobservable input Shift 
Favourable 

changes 
Unfavourable 

changes 
  

 
£m 

 
 

Assumption description 

Assumption value  

£m £m 
Range(1) Weighted 

average 
3. Derivative assets – Equity and credit 

contracts: 
– Reversionary property derivatives 

71 HPI Forward growth rate 
HPI Spot rate 

0%-5%  
n/a  

2.67% 
578(2)  

1% 
10% 

11 
8 

(11) 
(8) 

4. Derivative assets – Credit contracts:  
– Credit default swaps 

13 Probability of default 0.1%-1.2%  
 

0.7% 20% 3 (3) 

5. Derivative assets – Equity contracts:  
– Options and forwards 

47 HPI Forward growth rate 
HPI Spot rate 

0%-5%  
n/a 

1.62% 
565(2) 

1% 
10% 

5 
11 

(5) 
(10) 

6. FVTPL – Loans and advances to customers: 
– Roll-up mortgage portfolio 

51 HPI Forward growth rate 0%-5%  2.85% 1% 1 (1) 

7. FVTPL – Debt securities: 
– Reversionary property securities 

212 HPI Forward growth rate 
HPI Spot rate 

0%-5%  
n/a 

2.67% 
578(2) 

1% 
10% 

15 
20 

(16) 
(20) 

8. FVTPL – Debt securities: 
    – Mortgage-backed securities 

58 Credit spread 0%-15% 5% 10% 6 (6) 

10. Derivative liabilities - Equity contracts:  
– Options and forwards 

(48) HPI Forward growth rate 
HPI Spot rate 

0%-5% 
n/a 

1.62% 
565(2) 

1% 
10% 

2 
7 

(2) 
(10) 

 

(1) The range of actual assumption values used to calculate the weighted average disclosure. 
(2) Represents the HPI spot rate index level at 31 December 2013. 
 
No sensitivities are presented for the FVTPL - debt securities in issue (instrument 11) and related exchange rate derivatives (instrument 1), as 
the terms of these instruments are fully matched. As a result, any changes in the valuation of the debt securities in issue would be exactly 
offset by an equal and opposite change in the valuation of the exchange rate derivatives. 
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33. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND RESOURCES 
 
This note reflects the transactions and amounts reported on a basis consistent with the Santander UK group’s regulatory filings at 30 June 2014, 
following the adoption of CRD IV with effect from 1 January 2014. The amounts presented for 2013 have been prepared on a consistent basis, 
to aid comparability. The amounts presented for 2013 have not been adjusted to reflect the adoption of IFRC 21, as set out in Note 1. The 
adjustment would not have had a material effect on Santander UK’s regulatory position. 
 
Capital adequacy 
 
The Santander UK group manages its capital on a Basel III basis. During the six months ended 30 June 2014 and the year ended 31 December 
2013, the Santander UK group held capital over and above its regulatory requirements, and managed internal capital allocations and targets in 
accordance with its capital and risk management policies. 
 
Group capital 
 
 
 

30 June 2014 
£m 

31 December 2013 
£m 

Core Equity Tier 1 (‘CET 1’) capital before regulatory adjustments 12,494 11,916 
Regulatory adjustments to CET 1 capital (3,029) (2,947) 
CET 1 capital  9,465 8,969 
Additional Tier 1 (‘AT1’) capital 1,797 1,298 
Tier 1 capital 11,262 10,267 
Tier 2 capital 2,990 3,020 
Total capital  14,252 13,287 
 
During the first half of 2014, CET 1 capital increased by £496m to £9,465m (2013: £8,969m). This increase was largely due to retained profits 
for the period. During the first half of 2014, the increase in AT1 capital was due to the issuance of £500m Perpetual Capital Securities to the 
Company’s immediate parent company as detailed in Note 31. 

 
 
34. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE  
 
None. 
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Risk Factors 
 
An investment in Santander UK plc (the ‘Company’) and its subsidiaries (‘us’, ‘we’ or ‘Santander UK group’) involves a number of risks, the 
material ones of which are set out in the 2013 Annual Report on pages 317 to 334. The principal risks described in these risk factors, a summary 
of which can be found on page 120, remain unchanged. 

 
Contact Information  
 
Santander UK plc principal executive office and registered office, principal office and investor relations 
department  
 
2 Triton Square 
Regent’s Place 
London 
NW1 3AN 

Phone number: 
0870-607-6000  

 

 
Designated agent 
The designated agent for service of process on Santander UK in the United States is Abbey National Treasury Services plc (Connecticut branch), 
400 Atlantic Street, Stamford, CT 06901. 
 
Santander Shareholder Relations 
 
2 Triton Square 
Regent’s Place 
London 
NW1 3AN 

Phone numbers: 
0871-384-2000 
+44 (0) 121-415-7188 (outside the UK) 
 

Email: 
shareholders@santander.com 
 

 
 

Glossary 
 
A glossary of financial services industry terms is set out on pages 336 to 341 of the 2013 Annual Report. The following additional term arose in 
the first half of 2014: 
 
Term Definition 
Single Supervisory Mechanism 
(‘SSM’) 
 

The SSM will create a new system of financial supervision in the EU comprising the European Central Bank (‘ECB’) and the national 
competent authorities of participating EU countries. Among these EU countries are those whose currency is the euro and those 
whose currency is not the euro but who have decided to enter into close cooperation with the Single Supervisory Mechanism. The 
ECB will become responsible for specific banking supervision tasks relating to the prudential supervision of credit institutions. The 
main aims of the SSM will be to ensure the safety and soundness of the European banking system and to increase financial 
integration and stability in Europe. The ECB will be responsible for the effective and consistent functioning of the SSM, cooperating 
with the national competent authorities of participating EU countries. The ECB will assume its new banking supervision 
responsibilities in November 2014. 
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Santander UK plc (the ‘Company’) and its subsidiaries (together ‘Santander UK’ or the ‘Santander UK group’) may from time to time make written or oral forward-
looking statements. The Company makes written forward-looking statements in this Half Yearly Financial Report and may also make forward-looking statements in its 
periodic reports to the SEC on Forms 20-F and 6-K, in its offering circulars and prospectuses, in press releases and other written materials and in oral statements made 
by its officers, directors or employees to third parties. Examples of such forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to: 
 
> projections or expectations of revenues, costs, profit (or loss), earnings (or loss) per share, dividends, capital structure or other financial items or ratios; 
> statements of plans, objectives or goals of Santander UK or its management, including those related to products or services; 
> statements of future economic performance; and 
> statements of assumptions underlying such statements.  
 
Words such as ‘believes’, ‘anticipates’, ‘expects’, ‘intends’, ‘aims’, ‘plans’, ‘targets’ and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements, but 
are not the exclusive means of identifying such statements. 

By their very nature, forward-looking statements are not statements of historical or current facts; they cannot be objectively verified, are speculative and 
involve inherent risks and uncertainties, both general and specific, and risks exist that the predictions, forecasts, projections and other forward-looking statements will 
not be achieved. Santander UK cautions readers that a number of important factors could cause actual results to differ materially from the plans, objectives, 
expectations, estimates and intentions expressed in such forward-looking statements made by Santander UK or on Santander UK’s behalf. Some of these factors, 
which could affect the Santander UK group’s business, financial condition and/or results of operations, are considered in detail in the Risk Management Report on 
pages 36 to 82 of this report and the Risk Factors section on pages 317 to 334 of the 2013 Annual Report. They include: 

 
> the disruptions and volatility in the global financial markets;  
> the effects of UK economic conditions; 
> Santander UK’s exposure to UK political developments; 
> the extent to which regulatory capital and leverage requirements and any changes to these requirements may limit Santander UK’s operations; 
> the extent to which liquidity requirements and any changes to these requirements may limit Santander UK’s operations; 
> Santander UK’s exposure to UK Government debt; 
> 
> 
> 

the effects of the ongoing economic and sovereign debt tensions in the eurozone; 
Santander UK’s exposure to risks faced by other financial institutions; 
Santander UK’s ability to access liquidity and funding on acceptable financial terms; 

> the effects of any movement in the external credit rating assigned to the Santander UK group, any Santander UK group member or any of their respective 
debt securities; 

> the effects of fluctuations in interest rates, exchange rates, equity prices and other market risks; 
> the extent to which Santander UK may be required to record negative fair value adjustments for its financial assets due to changes in market conditions; 
> the risk of failing to successfully implement and continue to improve Santander UK’s credit risk management systems; 
> the risks associated with Santander UK’s derivative transactions; 
> the extent which Santander UK may be exposed to operational losses (e.g. failed internal or external processes, people and systems); 
> the risk of failing to effectively improve or upgrade Santander UK’s information technology infrastructure and management information systems in a 

timely manner; 
> Santander UK’s exposure to unidentified or unanticipated risks despite its risk management policies, procedures and methods; 
> the effects of competition, or intensification of such competition, in the financial services markets in which Santander UK conducts business and the 

impact of customer perception of Santander UK’s customer service levels on existing or potential business; 
>  the various risks facing Santander UK as its expands its range of products and services (e.g. risk of new products and services not being responsive to 

customer demands or successful, risk of changing customer needs); 
> Santander UK’s ability to assess the credit quality of borrowers and control the level of non-performing loans, loan prepayment and the enforceability of 

collateral, including real-estate securing such loans; 
> the ability of Santander UK to manage any future development effectively (e.g. efficiently managing the operations and employees of expanding 

businesses and maintaining or growing its existing customer base); 
> the ability of Santander UK to realise the anticipated benefits of its business combinations and the exposure, if any, of Santander UK to any unknown 

liabilities or goodwill impairments relating to acquired businesses; 
> the effects of the financial services laws, regulations, governmental oversight, administrative actions and policies and any changes thereto in each location 

or market in which Santander UK operates; 
> Santander UK’s exposure to any potential uncertainly and changes to the UK regulatory regime as a result of the reform and reorganisation of the UK 

financial regulatory authorities and the UK regulatory framework;  
> the effects of any new reforms to the UK mortgage lending and the personal loans market; 
> Santander UK’s exposure to any risk of loss form legal and regulatory proceedings; 
> the power of the FCA, the PRA or an overseas regulator to potentially intervene in response to e.g. attempts by customers to seek redress from financial 

service institutions, including Santander UK, in case of industry-wide issues; 
> the effects which the UK Banking Act 2009 (as amended), the UK Financial Services (Banking Reform) Act 2013 and similar European legislation may have 

on Santander UK’s business; 
> the extent to which members of the Santander UK group may be responsible for contributing to compensation schemes in the UK in respect of banks 

and other authorised financial services firms that are unable to meet their obligations to customers; 
> the risk of third parties using Santander UK as a conduit for illegal or improper activities without Santander UK’s knowledge; 
> the effects of taxation requirements and other assessments and any changes thereto in each location in which Santander UK operates; 
> the effects of any changes in the pension liabilities and obligations of Santander UK; 
> the ability of Santander UK to recruit, retain and develop appropriate senior management and skilled personnel; 
> the effects of any changes to the reputation of the Santander UK group, any Santander UK group member or any affiliate operating under the Santander 

UK brands; 
> the effects of any changes to accounting and reporting standards applicable to preparation of the Company or the Santander UK group’s financial 

statements; 
> the basis of the preparation of the Company’s and the Santander UK group’s financial statements and information available about the Santander UK 

group, including the extent to which assumptions and estimates made during such preparation are accurate; 
> the extent to which disclosure controls and procedures over financial reporting may prevent errors or acts of fraud; 
> the extent to which Santander UK rely on third parties for important infrastructure support, products and services; 
> the possibility of risk arising in the future in relation to transactions between the Company and its parent, subsidiaries or affiliates; 
> Santander UK’s success at managing the risks to which it is exposed, including the items above. 
 
Undue reliance should not be placed on forward-looking statements when making decisions with respect to Santander UK and/or its securities. Investors and others 
should take into account the inherent risks and uncertainties of forward-looking statements and should carefully consider the foregoing non-exhaustive list of 
important factors. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which they are made and are based on the knowledge, information available and views 
taken on the date on which they are made; such knowledge, information and views may change at any time. Santander UK does not undertake any obligation to 
update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. 
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